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Vision

We will remain the water supplier of choice throughout the region by:

» Providing best-of-class quality, customer service and value

» Bxpanding the geographic areas we serve
« Creating new lines of business building on existing competencies
Purpose

To provide safe, high quality water and related business services
earning customer trust and confidence.
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President’s Message

ur company met all major

business objectives in 2006
except one: total water sales. The
reason: Total precipitation in the
Louisville area was the seventh-
highest in history. This reduced the
need for irrigation, and the amount
of water we sold was the lowest
since 1993.

As a result, revenue was below
expectations, and we had to take
measures to reduce costs.Vacant
posinons were not filled, and our employees stepped
in to help fill the gaps.

The weather has been the biggest unknown—
and the biggest variable—in our operations for several
years. Three of the past four years have been unusually
wet. But 2005 was unusually dry, which produced
high sales and record revenue. Total water sold

declined by three billion gallons from 2005 to 2006.

Weather also brought a benefit in 2006. Mild
temperatures during the winter reduced the number
of cold-weather water main breaks and leaks
throughout our system during the year to nearly 33
percent below average.

Reesidential water sales vary widely with the
weather, but have shown an overall decline for the
past 15 years or more. A major reason is the federal

+ regulations that require fixtures and appliances ro

use less water; and these regulations are expected to
become stricter in the future. The other major reason
is the slow decline in the nunber of persons per
household, confirmed by census figures.

We took these factors under consideration
in preparing a new strategic plan for 2007-2021.
Our major focus will continue to be enhancing
water quality, maintaining high levels of customer
satisfaction, and providing value in our services.
Other goals include expanding our service area,
expanding our range of services, supporting
community-wide economic development, and
creating and designing a new work force to meet
future demands. Another major emphasis will be
on growth in total income and revenue, which will
provide growth in dividends paid to our owner,
Louisville Metro.

Enhancing water quality is one of our most
impaortant goals. Advancements in scientific
measurcment techniques and knowledge of the
effects of impurities in water have resulted in stricter
regulations for water quality. Treatment beyond
traditional methods—called advanced treatment—
will be necessary. We have been preparing for the
future by setting our own stricter water quality goals
and developing ways to meet them.

The major development has been riverbank
filtration, which uses the filtering ability of the earth
to clean the water from the Ohio River. For the past
six years, our first filtration well at the B. E. Payne
plant has been providing about one-eighth of the
total water we sell. It consistently provides water that
is free from nearly all pollutants in the river.

[n 2006, we completed arrangements for
expanding this source by building four more such
wells at the plant. They should be completed and in
service by the end of 2009.

At our Zorn Avenue pumping station and
Crescent Hill treatment plant, we are experimenting
with several alternatives for advanced treatment. Two
test wells are being built to determine if the aquifer
there is suitable for riverbank filtration. Two year-
long tests are also being conducted to determine the
effectiveness of ozone disinfection and biolegical
fileration of the water from the river.

Advanced treatment is one of the major reasons
our costs are increasing. The growing cost of the
state’s County Employees Retirement System, which
covers our employees, is another factor; it has been
increasing at an average of about 20 percent a year
for several years. And the cost of health care has been
outpacing inflation for many years.

To meet future costs, our new strategic plan
forecasts rate increases that will be two percentige
points higher than the consumer price index for the
foreseeable future. We believe this will be necessary
to enhance water quality, maintain high levels of
customer satisfaction, and provide true value in our
services.
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Operations
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Water Delivered to Mains 44,590 47733 46,276 46340 47405
Tetal Consumption* 36,97 40,052 38,243 38044 40,204
Unmetered Water 6,810 6,838 7,086 7,423 7,201
Average Daily Delivery 122 131 127 127 130
Average Daily Water Usage 101 10 105 104 110
Average Daily Pumpage 122 131 127 127 130
Maximum Daily Pumpage 206 205 161 174 178
Percent of Water Unmetered 15.5% 15% 15% 6% 15%
Average Residential Monthly Water Bill** $17.25 $16.43 $1543  ***14.73(1587)  $14.13

*Excludes femporary service consumption
* *Based upon medion usage of 6,000 gallons per month
***figures corrected from 2003 annual report figures, which are shown in pereniheses

Water Revennes
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Financial Highlights

Historical Review

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Operating Revenues $114,092,112 $115,230,255  $103,462,053 $97.687143 $98,172,031
Total Operating Expenses 80,028,845 76,376,589 70,024 119 68,980,817 65,742,954
Net Non-Operating Expenses (3,373,310) (4,131,917) (4,868,918) (4,125,792) (4,596,329)
Ne# Income Before Distributions,

Contributions ond Exiraordinary ltems 30,689 957 34,721,750 28,569,016 24,580,534 27832,748
Extraordinary llems - - - - -
Distributed Property - - - — (879,564)
Dividends Paid and Payable (14,058,861) (16,178,050) (14,552,137) (12,318,831) (12,379,623)
Contributions 19,299,646 15,797.959 16,430,901 13,249,414 16,646,769
Increase in Net Assets 35,930,740 34,341,659 30,447,780 2551117 31,220,330
Net Assets, Beginning of Yaar 605,540,756 571,199,097 540,751,317 515,240,200 484,019,870
Nef Assets, End of Year 641,471,496 605,540,756 571,199,097 540,751,317 515,240,200
Other
Investment in System $61,655,812 $ 61,700,410 § 52414164  60,413,810(42,340,839)* 62,703 948(61,760,384)*
Debt Service Coverage 2.74 3.48 3.03 2.79 333
Return on Total Assets 3.53% 466% 3.95% 3.53% 4.13%
*Figures correcied from 2003 annual report figures, which ure shown in parentheses
Toial Water Consumption
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INTRODUCTION

" An eightounce gloss of water—3,84C drops—makes a long journey from the cloud fo the consumer and can iake many detours
along the way. Water fram the tap in Louisville starts s precipitation over more than 90,000 square miles of land in parts of seven
states. Most of the water travels down the Ohio River. Some arrives in the aquifer, the underground water that flows through the earth
along and below the riverbed. For more than a century, Louisville Water Company drew all of its water from the Ohio River. Now, an

increasing percentage is being drawn from the aquifer.

l onisville Water Company provides water to about 810,000 people in Louisville Metro and parts of
Oldham and Bullitt counties. In 2006, the company delivered an average of more than 122 million

gallons per day through more than

3,900 miles of water mair.

Water is drawn from the Ohio
River at two points: the raw water
pump station at Zorn Avenue and
River Road, and the B. E. Payne
pump station northeast of Harrods
Creek. Water is also drawn from the
river through a riverbank filtration

well at the Payne plant.

The water is treated at two
locations: the Crescent Hill plant,

which has a capacity of 180 million

gallons per day, and the Payne plant,

which has a capacity of 60 million gallons per day. Both plants treat the water using processes that include
coagulation, softening, corrosion stabilization, disinfection, filtration, fluoridation and final disinfection.
Storage capacity for treated water totals more than 90 million gallons, in reservoirs, elevated tanks

and standpipes.

Mains range up to 60 inches in diameter. Booster pumnp stations, pressure-reducing stations and water

storage facilities are used to maintain the appropriate pressure throughout the system.

To ensure the highest quality, the company operates a laboratory certified by the state of Kentucky
under U. S. Environmental Protection Agency standards, performing more than 120,000 water quality

tests every year.

In addition to water sold to its retail customers, the company wholesales water to West Shelby Water

District, North Shelby Water Company, North Nelson Water District, Taylorsville and Mount Washington.

)
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Year in Review

ASSURING WATER QUALITY
NI

. On its way to Louvisville, our glass of water has had the spportunity to pick up many impurities. Water first enters the freatment system
at the B. E. Payne plant, along the Chio River northeast of Harrods Creek in northern Jefferson County. There are fwo sources: the
river itself, and the oquifer along the Kentucky side of the river. The rest of the water enters the system af the historic pumping station

at the end of Zorn Avenue. This has been the major source of Louisville's water since 1860,

The often muddy look of Ohio River water prompted Louisville Water Company to become a pioncer
in water treatment methods more than a century ago. As science and technology have advanced
through the vears, knowledge of the effects of contaminants in the water has increased tremendously.

The company has kept ahead of the times, studying and adopting new ways to purify the water. Company
standards are stricter than federal and state regulations require. Finished water has met all the government

standards for many years and, in 2006, met the company’ stricter goals for the fifth year in a row.

When unusual problems occur, such as an oil spill upstream or a growth of algae that cause the water to
taste and smell bad, powdered activated carbon is added to absorb the problem substances. In 2006, carbon
was added to the treatment process in May to remove herbicides washed into the river by heavy rains; in
August, it was added again to remove taste and odor from large algae blooms in the river. The additional

treatment alleviated potential customer concerns about taste and odor.

Since 1999, the company has been using a new source of water that will provide a more efficient way to
meet increasingly strict standards in the future. A large riverbank filtration well was constructed at the B, E.

Payne plant to draw water from the river through the aguifer.

The water from this well is almost as clean as the water currently leaving the plant. It has also been free
of oil spilled in the river, and of the taste and odor from algae. For six years, it has provided about half the

water processed at the B. E. Payne plant—or about one-eighth of the total amount of water sold.

Keeping the plants efficient and up-to-date is a
continuing process. In 2006, a coagulation basin at
the Crescent Hill plant was rehabilitated at a cost of
more than $3.7 million. The original slate roofs on
the historic chemical and north/south filter buildings
were replaced at a cost of nearly $4 2 million. Other
renovation and improvement projects at the plant
totaled more than $800,000.

At the B. E. Pavne plant,a §13.5 million process

to rchabilitate major basins and systems was begun;

the work should be completed in 2008.

ez = §
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EXPANDING AND MAINTAINING THE SYSTEM

' Our gloss of water leaves the filter plant clear and pure—mesting all government standards for drinking water, and meeting our

e

stricter standards as well. [t clso meets or exceeds all the government standards for botlled waler—for o fraction of the cost-making it

an outstanding bargain for drinking. Next, it is delivered to more than 293,000 homes and businesses.

It takes more than 3,900 miles of water main to serve our customers. The system 1s constantly growing to

serve new customers, and the older parts of the system are being renovated to meet the needs of the future.

In Jefferson County, 32.3 miles of new mains were built in 2006, at a cost of more than $6.4 million.

The mains will serve 3,746 potential new customers in new developments.

In Bullitt County, two extension programs were at work. The Bullitt County Water Improvement
Program installed 12.9 miles of new mains, at costing more than $3.7 million, to serve 173 present residences.
An additional 5.6 miles of main were built, for nearly $1 million, to serve 421 potential new customers in
new developments. And 3.2 miles of mains were replaced, costing

more than $1.6 million.

In Oldham County, 9.9 miles of mains were built to serve
new developments, at a cost of more than $1.9 million. About 536

potential new customers will be served.

A 15-year program to replace or rehabilitate 500 miles of
old cast-iron mains in Louisville had met most of its goals by the
end of 2006, and will be completed on schedule in 2007, The

program was aimed at pipes

that had become increasingly troublesome, with relatively high rates of
breaks and leaks, or were having flow constriction and periodic discolored
water from iron rust tubercles in the pipes. During 2006, about 11.3 mules
of these mains were replaced and 6.7 miles were rehabilitated, at a cost of
more than $6.3 million. The total cost over the 15 years is expected to be
$132 million—3§18 million less than the original estimate. It has reduced
the company’s system-wide water main failure rate by nearly 30 percent—

slightly more than its goal.

In addition, the company replaced 775 lead service lines in 2006,

continuing its progress toward replacing all such lines.

|
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SERVING THE CUSTOMERS

%

~ After a long and eventful journey, our glass of water arrives at the customer’s faucet In the comfort of a home, it could provide
a refreshing drink or a warm bath, or be used to prepare o fami{y meal. Businesses and industries use it for firefighting, manufacturing,

hecting and cooling.

The three major categories of customers served by Louisville Water Company are residential, commercial

and industrial. Usage in all three categories declined in 2006, mainly because the wet weather

(Louisville’s seventh-wettest year on record) reduced the

amount of water used for irrigation.

The residential category is the largest, with more than
244,000 customer accounts. This number increased by about
one percent in 2006, but residential water usage declined by

more than 10 percent.

Reduced lawn-and-garden

watering accounted for most of this,

but there are other factors, as well:
a slow but steady decline in the number of people per household, and

an increase in the use of water-conserving fixtures and appliances. Average residential

houschold water consumption in Louisville has decreased by more than

12 percent since 1990.

The commercial category is the second-largest, at
more than 23,000 customers, The number increased by 2.7

percent in 2000, but usage declined by 4.7 percent.

The third-largest category is industrial. The number
of these customers declined by 2.4 percent in 2006—
continuing a long-time trend of a shrinking industrial base
in the Louisville area. Water usage was down 9.2 percent.

Overall, the amount of water sold in 2006 was 7.7
percent below 2003 sales, despite an increase in the number

of customers.

e
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into the ground to the aquifer, or simply evaporating and becoming an element of the weather. Some day, part of it will return

to Louisville,

A variety of trends will influence Louisville Water Company’s plans for the future:

* Stricter drinking water standards to respond to new scientific developments. New treatment
methods have been in development for some time.
* Stricter security standards, to meet the challenges of terrorism.
* Continuing growth in the Louisville area; changes in the patterns of development and the
changing economy,.
Our treatment system already exceeds the EPA’s 2012 standards for disinfection by-products. But
our traditional treatment methods just meet the 2012 standards for removal of particles from water, with

little margin for error.

The stricter standards for particle removal are designed
to help ensure that microscopic parasites, specifically
cryprosporidium and giardia, are kept out of the finished water.

The well at the B. E. Payne plant has shown it can easily meet
the new particle standards with room to spare. In late 2006, we
awarded a contract, signed by President John Huher, to build four
new wells at the plant, to be completed by the end of 2009. The
new wells will have horizonral collectors similar to the present
well. But instead of having a pump house at each well, there will
be only one pump house. A 7,700-foot tunnel in the bedrock
below the wells will connect them. Each well will be capped at
ground level.

This system was adopted after an earlier design—for 31
vertical wells connected by a tunnel—turned out to be too costly.
The lowest bid for construction of the carlier design was more
than 50 percent higher than engineering estimates. The new
design will be less costly, totaling just over $43.4 million.

The four new wells plus the present well will provide more water than the Payne plant’s current capacity,

climinating the need to draw water directly from the river. But different methods may be required at the
Crescent Hill plant, which provides three-fourths of the system’s water.

In late 2006, the company began a program to test two ways to improve the treatment methods at the

Crescent Hill plant: riverbank filtration wells (different from the wells at the Payne plant), or

LWC 0014



8 2 combination of ozone disinfection and biological
| filtration.

Test wells will be operated for a year at two
locations: near the pumping station at Zorn Avenue,
and near River Road and Glenview Avenue, where
the aquifer is narrow. The test wells, plus smaller
monitor wells around them, will determine the

quantity and quality of the water available.

Ozone disinfection is a promising alternative

P ’ . : : for eliminating taste, odor and the threat from
microscopic parasites. Biological filtration uses colonies of biological organisms on filtration media to eat
harmful organic matter in the water. The two methods will be evaluated in year-long tests on water drawn
from the river at Zorn Avenue.

The total budget for this testing program is nearly $3.2 million.

Security has been a major concern since the terrorist attacks on New York and Washington, D.C. 1n
September 2001, Security measures at our facilities have increased substantially since then. One remaining

concern is the delivery of liquid chlorine in 90-ton tank cars for our disinfection process at Crescent Hill.

The plan is to build a new facility to make a mild hquid chlorine bleach solution from salt and water.
The original propesal was to build it on an open field on our property north of the Crescent Hill reservoirs.
Neighbors objected, however, saying it would eliminate their traditional use of the field as park land.

The company organized a community advisory group ta study the problem and possible solutions.
After several months of study, the group recommended that the facility be built on company land south of
Frankfort Avenue, instead of north of the reservoir. The company’s board agreed and allocated $12.2 million
for the project. Preliminary design work should be complete during the first half of 2007, and construction
will take another two to three years. In announcing the decision, the company also emphasized to the
community that the field may be needed for additional treatment facilities in the future.

Challenges and solutions for the future are described in detail in the 2007-2021 Strategic Plan,
completed in 2006. The timeframe is nearly three times as long as the previous five-year strategic plans, and

the board played an expanded role in developing the plan.

The key issues addressed include water quality and water quality regulations; rebuilding or refurbishing
existing plants and mains; sistaining and enhancing high levels of customer satisfaction; finding ways for
the company to grow and increase its revenue; recruiting and retaining skilled and talented employees; and

financing the improvements needed.

Vo i
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FINANCING OUR OPERATIONS

Our customers consumed nearly 592 billion glosses of water in 2006. Filtering it, purifying it, and delivering it took the efforts

of 437 pecple, warking with a system volued ol more than $746 million. Operating expenses in 2006 totaled more than $80

million. The costs of providing this water are paid with the income from water sales.

W ater utility costs have been increasing more than inflation

for years. Many factors have contribured, including:

stricter government standards for water which require new and
more expensive treatment methods; repair, replacement and
| rehabilitation of aging facilities; new facilities to accommodate

growth; and inflation. The costs of employee benefits have been

rising faster than inflation. Health insurance costs are constantly
rising, and our required contributions to the state’s County
Employees Retirement System (a defined benefit plan which
covers our employees) have risen about 20 percent for several

years in a row—with more large increases forecast in the future.

To cover these costs, the company increased retail rates an
average of 5 percent on January 1, 2006, and increased wholesale rates (charged to other water companies)
4.3 percent in May.

Despite the rate increases, the income from water sales actually declined in 2006. The amount of water

sold was the lowest since 1993.

Lower-than-expected sales began in January and continued
for most of the year. Only June and July brought sales that were
more than expected, but their volume wasn't enough to offset the
lower sales 1n earlier months.

To meet the decline in sales, the company reduced costs
wherever possible—including not hiring replacements for
employees who lett. And because of the long-term trends, the
torecasts for water usage in 2007 were reduced when the new
budget was prepared.

A dip in water sales, however, doesn’t reduce the demand for
funds needed for improvements and expansion. The 2007-2021

Strategic Plan predicts that water rates will have to increase by
two percentage points more than inflation to continue to provide quality water for a growing and changing

community. In late 2006, the board approved a retil rate increase averaging 6.5 percent in 2007.

gl S
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SERVING OUR COMMUNITY

ey

_ Meare than twe million empty Pure Tap bollles have been given away since 1996, and roughly half a million of the smaller filed
( botiles are distribuled each year. Filling the bettle costs about one fwentyfifth of a cent.

he Pure Tap program, which completed its 10th year in 2006, has been an outstanding success. The
program is a reminder that pure, good-tasting drinking water can
be had at reasonable cost—and that Louisville Water Company is a good
corporate citizen with programs that benefit the public. Many of these
' programs involve an emphasis on health.

The Smile! Kentucky program provides fice dental screenings for
elementary school pupils and free dental treatment for those who qualify. The
program is a partnership of the company, the Louisville Dental Society and the
University of Louisville School of Dentistry, and receives support from other
organizations. [n November, more than 6,000 children at 33 schools in six
| counties received free screenings, and 667 qualified for free treatment in early

2007 (twice as many as those who received free treatment in early 2006.)

Another program, Tap Into Fitness, was implemented to improve the
| overall health and fitness level of students at six elementary schools in Jefferson County. Part of the program

| focuses on the importance of water in fitness and health.

The Clean Hands Up program is designed to teach
children the value of washing their hands to prevent the
spread of communicable discasc. Health-and science-related

experiments are also presented to area students.

The labor/management partnership between the company
and AFSCME Local 1683 has received national attention for
its success. In 2006, it won the University of Louisville’s Labor-
Management Award for the second time; the first time was in
1998.The partnership has produced important results for the

company, its employees and the community.

The company’s dedication to diversity also brought recognition in 2006.The Kentuckiana Minority
Business Council named the company its Corporation of the Year and again bestowed its Million Dollar
Spend award to Louisville Water Company. Each award recognizes the company’s goods and services

procurements with local wemen-and minority-owned businesses.

Maintaining the company’s historic structures has been ¢ commitment to the community for many

| years. Louisville Water Company's historic architectural legacy has helped brand the company and has been

| recognized with many awards. During 2006, a major renovation of the landmark water tower at Zorn Avenue
‘ and the Ohio River was being planned. Construction was scheduled to start in 2007, at a total cost of more

f than $590,000.
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Management’s Discussion and Aunalysis

The following discussion and analysis of Louisville Water Company’s financial performance provides an
overview of the Company’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31,2006 as compared with
the prior year. Please read it in conjunction with the President’s Message at the front of this report and the
Company’s financial statements which follow this section.

Owerview of the Financial Statements

This annual financial report consists of three parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Financial
Statements, and Additional Information. The Financial Statements also include notes that explain in more
detail some of the information in the financial statements. The statements are followed by a section of
Additional Information that further explains and supports the information in the Financial Statements. The
\ Financial Statements of the Company report information about the Company using accounting methods
similar to those used by private sector water utility companies, except for the reporting of contributions in
aid of construction, equity capital and retained earnings. For financial reporting purpeses, the Company is
considered a Special-purpose Government Engaged Only in Business-type Activities. These statements offer
| short and long term financial information about its activities. Figure 1 shaws how the required parts of the

annual financial report are arranged and relate to one another,

Figure 1
[ Required Components of Louisville Water Company’s Annual Financial Report

| Management’s Basic Additional

‘ Discussion Financial Information

| and Analysis Statements

|

' Statement of Statement Statement Notes to the

| Net Assets of Revenues, of Cash Flows Financial
Expenses and Statements
Changes in
Net Assets

: Summary € > Detail

The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the Company’s assets and labilities and provides information
about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to Company creditors
(liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Company and assessing the
liquidity and financial flexibility of the Company.

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assers. This statement measures the success of the Company’s operations in
meeting financial objectives over the past year and can be used to determine whether tie Company has
successfully recovered all of its costs through its water rates and other charges, has earned a profit, and has
maintained credit-worthiness.

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of this
statement is to provide information about the Company’s cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in
cash resulting from operations, investing, and financing activities and provides information on the sources and
uses of cash and the changes in cash balances during the vear.

rage = #
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Highlights
* Total Assets increased by $118,986,554 or 15.8%, from $751,284,149 in 2005 to $870,270,703 in 2006,
due to proceeds from the issuance of the Series 2006 Bonds in the amount of $83,845,000 and due to
increases in Utility Plant that were financed from cash generated from operations, contributions in aid of
construction, and draws from the Construction Fund.

Operating Revenues decreased by $1,138,144 or 1.0%, from $115,230,256 to $114,092,112, due to
decreased water sales to residential, commercial and industrial customers and despite 2 5.0% increase in
water rates effective January 1, 2006, Water sales in 2006 of 37 billion gallons were at the lowest level
since 1993.

Operating Expenses increased by $3,652,256 or 4.8%, from $76,376,589 to $80,028,845, due to
increases in Operation and Maintenance Expenses, Depreciation and Amortization Expenses, and Water
Service Provided in Lien of Taxes,

* Net Non-Operating Expenses decreased by $§758,607 or 18.4% fram $4,131,917 to $3,373,310. Interest
earned on investments of the proceeds from the Series 2006 Bond Issue more than offset the interest
paid on the Series 2006 Bonds.

* Net Income before dividends and contributions decreased by $4,031,793 or 11.6%, from $34,721,750 to

$30,689,957, due to decreases in sale of water revenue and increases in operating expenses which were

only partially offset by the decrease in net non-operating expenses.
» Dividends Paid and Payable decreased by $2,119,187 or 13.1%, from $16,178,050 to $14,058,863.

Statement of Net Assets

Total Assets increased by $118,986,554 or 15.8% in 2006 (see Figure 2). The largest portion of Net
Assets 15 Utility Plant, which increased by $40,896,416 in 2006 through capital improvements. The capital
improvements were funded by cash generated from operations, draws from the Construction Fund, and
by Contributions 1n Aid of Construction from developers, customers and governmental agencies. Other
Property and Investments increased by $71.078,646 due to reimbursement of Depreciation Fund and
Infrastructure Replacement Reserve tunds that had been previously requisitioned with proceeds from the
Series 2006 Bond Issue and due to deposit of the remainder of the bond proceeds into the Construction
Fund. There were no deposits made to the Infrastructure Replacement Reeserve from operating revenues
during 2006. Long-term Liabilities increased by $79,465,750 due to the issuance of the Series 2006 Bonds in
the amount ot $83,845,000 and offset by principal payments in the amount of $2,210,000 on the Series 2000
Bonds and $4,000,000 on the Series 2001 Bonds made during the year. Long-term debt is discussed in more
detail in the section titled Debt Administration.

Figure 2
Cor}éeisgd Statement of I\_Iet_Assets

2006 2005 Difference Percent
Current Assets $ 33,130,979 § 26,119,487 $ 7,011,492 26.8%
Non-Current Assets 91,037,144 19,958,498 71,078,646 356.1%
Utﬂity Plant 746,102,580 705,206,164 40,896,416 5.8%
Total Assets 870,270,703 751,284,149 118,986,554 15.8%
Current Liabilities 34,881,080 31,291,016 3,590,064 11.5%
Long Term Liabilities 193,91 8127 114,452,377 79,465,750 69.4%
Total Net Assets $ 641,471,496  $ 605,540,756 $ 35,930,740 5.9%
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Revenues decreased by $1,138,144 or 1.0% in 2006 (see Figure 3). Water sales decreased by
three billion gallons or 7.7% in 2006. This is equivalent to approximately more than twenty-eight days of
billable consumption. The decrease in operating revenues from lower water sales to residential, commercial,
and wholesale customers more than offSet a 5.0% increase m water rates effective January 1, 2006.

Operating Expenses increased by $3,652,256 or 4.8% in 2006. The key components of operating
expenses are: Operation and Maintenance Expenses, Depreciation and Amortization Expenses, Taxes and
Water Service Provided in Lieu of Taxes, and Loss on Disposition of Assets. Operations and Maintenance
Expenses increased by $1,070,068 due to higher labor and labor related overhead costs, contractual services,
power, and warehouse costs. Depreciation Expense increased by $1,833,269 due to increased investments
in utility plant. Amortization Expense increased by $628,064 due to amortization of research costs for
preliminary engineering for Crescent Hill Filter Plant advanced ueatment technology options and other
non-plant assets. Taxes and Water Service in Lieu of Taxes increased by $470,898 due to increased rates
on municipal water usage and increased fire hydrant charges. Loss on Disposition of Assets decreased by
$350,043, primarily due to a gain on the sale of surplus property.

Net Non-Operating Expenses (non-operating expenses less non-cperating income) decreased by
$758,607 or 18.4% in 2006 due to the interest earned on investment of the proceeds from the Series 2006
Bond Issue more than offsetting the interest paid on the Series 2006 Bonds.

Net Income before Distributions and Comntributions decreased by $4,031,793 or 11.6% in 2000 due to
decreases in sale of water revenue and increases in operating expenses which were only partially offset by the
decrease in net non-operating expenses. The formula for computing the dividend is established as a covenant
in the Series 1992 Bond Resolution (the Master Bond Resolution). The dividend is calculated as sixty
percent of net income after deducting bond principal payments and certain other items. Dividends Paid and
Payable decreased by $2,119.187 or 13.1%, from $16,178,050 to $14,058,863.

Contributions in Aid of Construction are composed of: pipeline contributions from developers for
water main extensions and from governmental agencies for water main relocations; service installation fees
from customers; apportionment warrant fees and tapping fees from customers to extend water service to
unserved area; and system development charges from customers for growth-related expansion. The level of
capital contributions varies from year-to-year and is affected by economic cycles. These types of projects are
fully funded or nearly-fully funded by outside entities in advance of construction. Contributions in Aid of
Construction increased by $3,501,687, primarily due to reimbursement for three large transmission main
relocation projects associated with road widening work,

Figure 3
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
2006 2005 Ditference Percent
Operating Revenue $114,092,112  $115,230,256 $( 1,138,144 (1.0%)
Operating Expenses 80,028,845 76,376,589 3,652,256 4.8%
Net Operating Revenue 34,063,267 38,853,606/ (4,790,400) (12.5%)
Net Non-Operating Expenses 3.373,310 4,131,917 (758,607) (18.4%)
Net Income Before Distributions
and Contributions 30,689,957 34,721,750 (4,031,793) (11.6%)

Dividends Paid and Payable (14.058,863) (16,178,050) (2,119,187) (13.1%)
Contributions in Aid
of Construction 19,299,646 15,797,959 3,501,687 22.2%
Increase in Net Assets 35,930,740 34,341,659 1,589,081 4.6%
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 605,540,756 571,199,097 34,341,659 6.0%
Net Assets, End of Year $641,471,496  $605,540,756 $35,930,740 5.9%
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Figure 6

Computation of Stockholder’s Equity

2006

Total Equity Capital,

Beginning of Year

$345,990,260

Plus Income before Distributions

and Contributions
Less Dividends Paid and Payable

30,689,957
14,058,863

Total Equity Capital,

End of Year

362,621,354

Less Cumulative Deposits
to Infrastructure Replacement

R.eserve

36,103,333

Stockholders Equity Eligible

for Return Computation

$326,518,021

2005
$327.446.560

34,721,750
16,178,050

345,990,260

36,103,333

$309,886,927

Difference
$18,543,700

(4,031,793)
(2,119,187)

16,631,094

0

$16,631,094

Percent
5.7%

(11.6%)
(13.1%)

4.8%

0.0%

5.4%

The net income for 2006 available for the return on equity computation was $29,881,379 based on
Income before Distributions and Contributions of $30,689,957 less interest earned on the Construction
Fund of $808,578. The return on equity earned by Louisville Water Company in 2006 was 9.15% which
compares unfavorably to the return on equity warget for 2006 of 9.48% and the return on equity earned for

2005 of 10.60%.

Comparative Analysis of Financial Results

To optimize long-term financial viability, Louisville Water Company management plans for and
monitors five groups of financial metrics: liquidity, capitalization, coverage, profitability and dividend payout.

Figure 7 below describes management’s computation of certain financial ratios within each of these groups of

metrics,
Figure 7
Comparative Analysis of Financial Results N e =
Liquidity Access Readily Available Assets 2007 Budget 2006 2005 Target
| toMeet Near-Term Obligations A Piyegly L || DN o0 I e
Days of Funded (Cash + Unrestricted Fund Reserves)/ 581.05 418.82 96.07 > 200
_ Operations (O&M Expense/365)
Days of Cash Cash / (O&M Expense/365) 60 50 21.16 > 60
Funded Operations
Capitalization Reliance on Debt Financing for 2007 Budget 2006 2005 Target
S s e 1 Lo B e BT il e S| ) =y R e S | I 1
Long Term Debt to Long Term Debt/Net Utility Plant 23.85% 26.21% | 16.74% <35%
Net Utility Plant 1 el
Debt to Long Term Debt/(Long Term Debt+ 34.31% 37.46% | 27.58%
Capitalization Unrestricted Stock Equity
Coverage Capacity to Make Debt Service 2007 Budget 2006 2005 Target
i L Tapmenty | L IS S A A RS Bl ) LS
Debt Service EBIT/Debr Service
Coverage EBIT/Maximum Aggregate Debt Service Current 2.68 Current 2.74 | Current 3.48 | Target >2.0
Max Yeur 241 MoaxYear 2.09 | MaxMesr 340 |Minimum >1.3
Debt Service (O&M Expense Debr Service)/ 46.87% 46.88% | 48,93% >30%
Safety Margin {Operating Revenue+
Non-Operating Revenue) L
EBITDA/Interest EBITDA / Interest Expense 7.65 8.45 11.18 >5.0
Expense "8
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_ Profitability | Prehtability of the Company 2007 Budget | 2006 ‘ 2005 Target
Return on Equity | (Net Income-TRR-Construction Interest)/ 9.66% 9.15% 10.60% | 2005 saz2m
Stockholder Equity Eligible for Return 2006 >9.48%
2007 >974% |
Return on Assets | (Net Income-IRR-Construction Interest)/ 3.70% 3.43% 4.37% i
Total Assets #7
Return on Net (Net Income-IR R -Construction Interest)/ 4.21% 4.0% 4.66%
Utility Plan Net Utlity Plant
Net Profit Margin | (Net Income-IRR -Construction Interest)/ 26.55% 26.19% | 28.52%
Par. Operating Revenue
Operating Margin EBITDA / Operating Revenue 57.88% 57.48% | 58.83%
Dividend Payout  Measurement of Distribution of 2007 Budget| 2006 2005 Target
dl,_omd_ 113 PofitasaPresiend 0 0 | 0 3 N, B!
Dividend Payout Dividends Declared/ 47.39% 47.05% | 49.23%
| (Net Income-IRR-Construction Interest)
Total Transfers (Water in Lieu of Taxes+Dividends)/ 21.00% 21.00% | 22.23%
Operating Revenue
Dividend Yield Dividends Declared/ 4.58% 4.31% | 5.22%
Stockholder Equity Eligible for Return

Contacting the Company’s Financial Management

‘T'his financial report is designed to provide our citizens, ratepayers, customers, creditors and stockholder
with a general overview of the Company’s finances and to show the Company’s accountability for the money
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Treasurer’s Office at Louisville Water Company, 550 South Third Street, Louisville, KY, 40202.

e 2o
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Water Works
Louisville Water Company
Louisville, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of Louisville Water Company as of
December 31,2006 and 2005, and related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of Louisville Water Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally aceepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Louisville Water Company as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information on pages 14
through 20 and 39 through 43 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statemnents that
collectively comprise Louisville Water Company’s basic financial statements. The supplemnental schedules
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The supplemental schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relacion to the basic

financial statements taken as a whole.
Fd
W— 5 4;*7/"“

Strothman & Company PSC
Louisville, Kentucky
February 28, 2006
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Statements of Net Assets
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December 31

2006 2005
Assets
Current Asscts
Cash and temporary investments $ 6,700,455 $ 2750513
Accounts recevable 15,521,441 14,790,155
Contracts receivable, current portion 244,485 213,983
Materials and supplies 6,890,745 6,576,023
Bond service account - Series 2000 747,550 534,082
Bond service account - Series 2001 1,021,444 513,511
Bond service account - Series 2006 419,893 -
Other current assets 1,444,303 709,225
Accrued interest receivable 140,663 32,195
Total Current Assets 33,130,979 26,119,487
Utility Plant, net of accumulated depreciation 746,102,580 705,206,164
Non-current Assets
Non-utility property 170,583 171,084
Contracts receivable 2,496,510 2,646,981 |
Reeserves 81,281,267 14,461,517
Retirement plan past Service costs, net 924,739 1,138,140
Unamortized debt discount and expense 1,734,317 1,368,829
Preliminary engineering charges 152,919 170,106
Prepaid regulatory assets 4,276,809 1,841 '
Total Non-current Assets 91,057,144 19,958,498

Total Assets

Continued

$ 870,270,703

$ 751,284,149

paspe - Bl
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Statemients of Net Assets |

December 31
2006 2005 |

Liabilities and Net Assets |
Current Liabilities |

Accounts payable $ 5,444,321 $ 3,088,551 !
Sewer collections (contra) 10,134,652 9,251,667 {
Customer deposits 6,915,958 6,263,606 ‘
Tax collections payable 638,204 451,171
Accrued interest payable 1,186,232 724 437
Dividend payable - 302,351
Contracts payable, retainage percentage 797,925 1,514,477 |
Accrued payroll 310,177 315,571
Accrued vacation and sick leave 894,544 1,683,048
Insurance reserve 1,399,067 1,213,637
Bonds and nctes payable, current portion 7,160,000 6,482,500

Total Current Liabilities 34,881,080 31.291.016 ]

Long-Term Liabilities

Customer advances for construction 2,955,109 2,444,307
Unamortized debt premium 2,563,018 458,070
Bond payable, less current portion 188,400,000 - 111,550,000 !
Total Long-Term Liabilities 193,918,127 114,452,377 ‘
Total Liabilities 228,799,207 145,743,393
Net Assets }
Unrestricted 7,458,762 2,857,982 |
Invested in capital assets, net of related debe 550,542,580 587,173,664 il
Restricted, expendable 83,470,154 15,509,110 i|
Total Net Assets 641,471,496 605,540,756 ;I
' |
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 870,270,703 $ 751,284,149 i

See Notes to Finandal Statements

S
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Statements of Revenes and Expesnses

Revenues
Operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance expenses
Depreciation
Amortization
Taxes and water service provided in lieu of taxes
Loss from sale and salvage of retired assets
Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Revenue
Non-Operating [ncome (Expense)
Interest income
Interest expense
QOther expense
Net Non-Operating Expense
Income Before Distributions and Contributions
Distributions and Contributions
Dividends paid and payable
Contributions in aid of construction
Total Distributions and Contributions
Increase in Net Assets

Net Assets, beginning of year

Net Assets, end of year

Sex Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31

2006

$ 114,092,112

2605

$ 115,230,256

48,512,042 47,441,974
20,242,541 18,409,272
548 955 (79,109)
9,906,087 9,435,189
819,220 1,169,263
80.028.845 76,376,589
34,063,267 38,853,667
3,061,129 690,549
(6,693,988) (4,855,929)
259,549 33.463
(3,373,310) (4.131,917)
30,689,957 34,721,750
(14,058,863) (16,178,050)
19,299,646 15.797.959
5,240,783 (380,091)
35,930,740 34,341,659
605,540,756 571,199,097

$ 641,471,496 $ 605,540,756

» - B
//!,56
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Statements of Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and others
Cash paid to employees for services

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Acquisition and construction of utility plant
Proceeds from 2006 Series Bonds
Contributions in aid of construction

Customer advances for construction

Reefunds of customer advances for construction
Preliminary engineering charges

Principal paid

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Non-utility property reduction

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Reserved funds
Restricted funds
Contracts
Contracts, retainage percentage
Interest received
Other non-operating expense

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Investing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Temporary Investments
Cash and Temporary Investments, Beginning of Year

Cash and Temporary Investments, End of Year

Continued

Years Ended December 31

2006 2005
$104,509,825 $107,478,375
(28,309,297) (24,576,818)
(22,011,385) (21,380,020)

54,189,143 61,521,537
(61,655,812) (61,700,410)
83,845,000 u
19,299,646 15,797,959
510,802 (2,033,129)

i (23,271)

17,187 92,692
(6,317,500) (6,180,888)
(6,232,194) (5,038,089)
(14,361,214) (17,728,956)
501 (64.509)
15,106,416 (76,878,601)
(66,819,750) 10,710,487
(1,141,294) (47,347)
119,969 256,093
(716,552) 208,536
2,952,661 690,549
259,549 33,463
(65,345,417) 11,851,781
3,950,142 (3,505,283)
2,750,313 6,255,596
$ 6,700,455 $ 2,750,313
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Years Ended December 31
2006 2005

Reconciliation of Net Operating Revenue
to Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Net operating revenue $ 34,063,267 $ 38,853,667
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenue
to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation 21,130,680 19,385,049
Amortization 548,955 (79,109)
Amortization of retirement plan

past service costs 213,401 213,401
Loss from sale and salvage of retired assets 819,220 1,169,263

Increase (decrease) in cash due to changes in
current assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable (731,286) (291,651)
Marterials and supplies (314,722) (773,972)
Other current assets (735,077) (75,678)
Other deferred charges (4,274,968) 17,302
Accounts payable 2,355,770 821,217
Accounts payable, sewer collections 882,985 20127
Customer deposits £52.352 1,947 587
‘Tax collections payable 187,033 194,882
Accrued vacation and sick leave (788,503) (211,390)
Accrued payroll (5,394) (185,952)
Insurance reserve 185,430 326,794
Net Cash Provided By Cperating Activities $ 54,189,143 $ 61,521,537

See Notes to Finandal Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2006 and 2003

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of the Business: Louisville Water Company (the “Company”) is a provider of water and related
p ? pany pany 124

services to residential, commercial, industrial, fire and wholesale consumers in Jefferson, Bullitt and Oldham
Counties. The Company is wholly owned by Louisville Jelleson County Metro Government (“Metio
Government”) and therefore follows Governmental Accounting Standards.

Basis of Presentation: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepred in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). The financial statements include the accounts of Louisville Water
Company and have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred. The
Company reports as a Business Type Activity (“BTA”). BTAs are those activities that are financed in whole or
in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services.

The Company classifies resources for accounting and reporting purposes into the following net asset
categories:

s Invested in capital assets, net of related debr:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

* Restricted:
Nonexpendable - Net assets subjected to externally imposed stipulations that they be maintained
permanently by the Company.

Expendable - Net assets whose use by the Company is subject o externally imposed stipulations that
can be fulfilled by actions of the Company pursuant o those stipulations or that expire by the pasage
of time.

¢ Unrestricted:
Net assets whose use by the Company is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. Unrestricted
net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board of Water
Works or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.

Method of Accounting: The Company’s accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America for water utilities. Although the Company is not subject to
regulation, the accounts are maintained in accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed by the
National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, except with respect to the treatment of gains and
losses from the retirement or disposition of utility plant. The Company recognizes gain or loss, including cost
of removal, upon the retirement or disposition of utility plant rather than the transfer of cost to accumulated
depreciation, as provided by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners.

Prepaid Regulatory Assets: The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standard No. 71 “Accounting for
the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” effective January 2006 and is currently amortizing development costs
of $3,186,000 over five years beginning in 2006 and abandoned plant assets of $3,593,782 over eight years
beginning in 2008,

Estimates in the Financial Statements: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
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contingenr assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resules could differ from those estimates.

Utility Plant: Utility plant is stated at cost of acquisition or construction, including certain indirect costs.
The Company applies the straight-line method of depreciation to the estimated useful lives of the various
classes of depreciable property. The estimated useful lives of some significant asset categories are as follows:

Buildings 50 to 100 vyears
Pipelines 65 to 100 years
Fire hydrants 50 years
Services 40 years
Meters 15 years
Equipment 5 to 10 years
Trucks and autos 5 years

Depreciation expense for 2006 was $21,130,680 of which $888,139 was allocated to other operating
expenses. Depreciation expense for 2005 was $19,385,049 of which $975,777 was allocated to other

operating expenses.
2

Capitalized Interest: The Company follows the practice of capitalizing interest during construction on
capital projects. Interest in the amount of $979,016 and $1,228,611 was capitalized during 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Revenue: Revenue is recognized in the period in which billings are rendered to consumers. The
Company does not accrue revenue for water delivered but not billed.

Allowance for Doubtful Awounts: The allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on historical
collection experience and a review of the current status of existing receivables.

Materials and Supplies: Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the average cost.

Stalements of Cash Flows: For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly
liquid investments purchased with a maturicy of three months or less to be temporary investments.

Acerued Vication and Sick Leave: Employees’ vested and accumulated vacation and sick leave are recorded
as liabilities in the financial statements, Accrued vacation and sick leave was $894,544 at December 31, 2006,
and $1,683,048 at December 31, 2005.

Customer Deposits: In 2005, the Company implemented a security deposit policy for all customers
applying for residential, commercial or industrial water service who: (i) have not had an account with
Louisville Water Company for three consecutive years; or (ii) have had a previous account in bad debt
or bankruptey status; or (iii) have had a service disconnected due to non-payment within the last three
years of service. The Company refunds the security deposit when: (i) a customer closes the account; or (ii)
the customer has paid their bill in a timely manner for three consecutive years. Total security deposits at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $1,468,045 and $777,795, respectively. Customer deposits are included as
current liabilities on the statement of net assets.

Customer Advances for Construction: The Company requires customers to make a deposit for the cost of
construction of pipelines and special services. Advances are refundable, within certain time limits up to 20
years. under the terms of the various contracts.

The customer advance accounts reflect the lability for probable refunds of these construction advances.
Once the refund period has expired, any balance is transferred to net asscts as a contribution in aid of
construction.
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Investment Securities: Investments are reported at fair value with gains and losses included in the
statements of revenues and expenses. Gains or losses on dispositions are determined using the specific
identification method.

Ulnion Employees: The Company has numerous employees who are covered by a collective bargaining
agreement. At December 31, 2006, approximately 47% of the Company’s employees were covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. The exasung agreement expired January 31, 2006 and was renegotizated for

five years, expiring January 31,2011, and ratified on January 31, 2006.

Taxes: The Company, by virtue of its ownership by Metro Government, is exempt from taxation by
federal, state and local taxing authorities. However, the Company is liable for certain other taxes and provides
water and fire services in lieu of taxes to Metro Government. Tax expense, which includes warer and fire
services in lieu of taxes for December 31, 2006 and 2005, was $9,906,087 and $9,435,189, respectively.

Amortization: Amortization of bond discounts, expenses and premiums are amortized over the life of

the bonds.

Reclassification: Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2005 financial statements to conform to
the 2006 presentation. There was no change to net assets or to the change in net assets.

NOTE 2 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable include:

Year ended December 31

2006 2005

Water b 5523573 § 5202388
Sewer (contra) 9,467,859 8577357
Other 912,439 1,702,916
Allowance for uncollectable accounts (382,230) (692,456)
$ 15,521,441 $ 14,790,155

NOTE 3 = 2006 BOND [ISSUE RESOLUTION FUNDS

Bond Reserve Account: The Master Bond Resolution requires that a bond reserve account be established
at one-half of the highest future annual maximum aggregate net bond service of §18,089,390 to be paid

in 2011.The fund is to be used to pay maturing bonds and interest in the event funds in the Bond Service
Account are not sufficient. Otherwise, funds may not be withdrawn until the bond issue is paid in full.
However, the income earned on investiments may be transferred to the Bond Service Account. The 2006
reserve is invested in mutual funds and a certificate of deposit and is stated at fair value.

Depreciation Fund: The Series 2006 Bond Resolution authorizing the Bond Issue of 2006 requires the
Company to maintain the depreciation fund in the same manner as required for the 2001 series (refunding
1992) bond issue (see Note 4).

Bond Service Account: Except o the extent that the interest and principal are to be paid from other
available sources, the Company is required to deposit monthly, into the Trustee’ Bond Service Account, one-
sixth of the amount of the next succeeding interest payment on the 2006 Bonds oustanding and one-twelfth
of the next maturing principal of those bonds. The account is invested in a government obligation mutual
fund and is stated at fair value.
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NOTE 4 - 2001 BOND ISSUE RESOLUTION FUNDS

Bond Reserve Account: The Master Bond Resolution requires that a bond reserve account be established
at one-half of the highest future annual maximum aggregate net bond service of $18,089,390 to be paid
in 2011. The fund is to be used to pay maturing bonds and interest in the event funds in the Bond Service
Account are not sufficient. Otherwise, funds may not be withdrawn until the bond issue is paid in full.
However, the income earned on investments may be transferred to the Bond Service Account. The 2001
reserve 1s invested in UL 8. Treasury Bonds and 1s stated at fair value.

Depreciation Fund: The Master Bond Reesolution requires the Company to make monthly deposits of an
amount equal to one-twelfth of an amount not less than the annual depreciation charges into a depreciation
fund. The balance includes interest income earned and the gain on sale of property and is available to fund
capital improvements to the water system. The fund is invested in a sweep account. This fund and the funding
requirements are also included in the 2000 and 2006 bond issues (see Note 3 and 5). .

Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund: The Master Bond Resolution was revised to provide for the
creation and funding in 1993 of the Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund to support the infrastructure
muain replacement and rehabilitation projects. Budgeted funding was $480,000 and $875,000 for 2006 and
2005, respectively. The total actual deposits were $1,858,333 in 2005 and there were no depasits to the fund
in 2006 other than reimbursement for capital projects funded by the Company from the 2006 bond issue.
The balance at December 31, 2006 is stated at fair value and represents the remaining funds and interest
earned on monies invested in a sweep account.

U. 8. Treasury State and Local Government Fund: The Series 2 Note Reserve was established in the amount
of $1,440,400 pursuant to the Master Bond Reesolution. The note was paid in August 1993 and the reserve
amount was transferred to the Company and was deposited in the U.S. Treasury State and Local Government
Fund. The excess funds from the 2001 Bond Refunding were deposited in this fund. The fund is invested in
U.S. Treasury bonds and is stated at fair value.

Bond Service Account: Except to the extent that the interest and principal are to be paid from other
available sources, the Company is required to deposit monthly,into the Trustee’s Bond Service Account, one-
sixth of the amount of the next succeeding interest payment on the 2001 Bonds outstanding and one-twelfth
of the next maturing principal of those bonds. The account is invested in a government obligation mutual
fund and is stated at fair value.

NOTE 5 - 2000 BOND ISSUE RESOLUTION FUNDS

Bond Reserve Account: The resolution authorizing the Bond Issue of 2000 requires that a bond reserve
account be established at one-half of the highest future annual maximum aggregate net bond service. As
an alternative, the Resolution provides for deposit of an insurance policy, surety bond or other comparable
security into the Reserve Account in an amount sufficient to meet the bond reserve requirement. The
Company maintains an insurance policy to meet this requirement. The policy is to be used to pay maturing
bonds and interest in the event funds in the Bond Service Account are not sufficient.

Depreciationn Fund: The Series 2000 Bond Resolution authorizing the Bond Issuc of 2000 requires the
Company to maintain the depreciation fund in the same manner as required for the 2001 series (refunding
1992) bond issue (see Note 4)

Bond Service Account: Per the Series 2000 Bond Resolution, except to the extent that the interest and
principal are to be paid from other available sources, the Company is required to deposit monthly, into

the Trustees Bond Service Account, one-sixth of the amount of the next succeeding interest payment
on the 2000 Bonds outstanding and (beginning with the 12th month preceding the first maturity of any
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bonds) one-twelfth of the next maturing principal of those bonds. The account is invested in a government
obligation mutual fund and is stated at fair value.

Operation Fund: Per the Series 2000 Bond Resclution, each month the Company shall, after making
required payments to the Bond Service Account, the Bond Reserve Account, and the Depreciation Fund,
withdraw from the Revenue Fund and deposit with a Depository in the name of the Company to the
credit of the Operation Fund the balance remaining in the Revenue Fund.The fund is included in cash and
temporary investments.

Rebate Fund: The Rebate Fund is created by the Series 2000 Bond Resolution. Monies credited to
the Rebate Fund shall be free from the lien of the Resolution. Payments shall be made by the Board and
the Company within 15 days following cach five-year computation period for the calculation of excess
rebateable arbitrage under the Code.The Board and the Company have covenanted to rebate excess earnings
to the United States in accordance with law. There were no deposits required to be made to this fund during
2006 or 2005.

NOTE 6 - EXTENSION OF WATER SERVICE IN JEFEFERSON COUNTY

In 2004, the Company completed the implementation of a plan to extend water service to unserved
residences in Jefferson County. The cost of the planned extension of water service was approximately $60
million and was funded by a combination of customer, government and Company funds, summarized as
follows:

Apportionment Warrant Reserve: Monies from the County and from new customers in the extension
area are deposited in the Apportionment Warrant Reserve account. New customers in the extension area
must pay an “apportionment warrant” fee. To supplement these customer momnies, Metro Government
made commitments to fund a total of $6 million of the cost of the water service extension project through
2003. Disburscments from this account can only be used to pay for the cost of construction of water main
cxtensions in the desighated arca. The account was closed in 2006.

System Development Charge Reserve: A System Development Charge Reserve has been established to
finance growth-related expansion in the apportionment warrant extension area and is assessed for new
service connections other than initial connections. The collections are deposited to the System Development
Charge Reserve account and disbursements from this account can only be used to pay for growth-related
expansion. Disbursements exceeded collections in 2005 and this account was closed in 2006.

Company Monies: The Company budgeted a total of $17 million of Company funds to pay for the

transmission component, or “backbone grid,” of the extension program.
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NOTE 7 - RESERVES
Reserve Funds include the following:

Year ended December 31

2006 2065

Bond Related Reserves
Bond reserve account $ 6.032,590 $ 3.059.858
Depreciation fund 34,825,830 7,419,053
Infrastructure replacement reserve fund 14,138,347 1,057,898
U.S. Treasury state and local government fund 1,640,143 1,640,143
Construction Fund 24,610,149 =
Cost of Issuance 19,135 -
Total Bond Related Reserves 81,266,214 13,176,952

Other Reserves

Apportionment warrant reserve - 1,260,330
System development charge reserve - 22,703
Bullitt County water reserve 15,0533 89
Shepherdsville water reserve - 1,443
Total Other Reserves 15,053 1,284,565
$ 81,281,267 $ 14,461,517

NOTE 8 - CASHAND INVESTMENTS

The Company has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk
Disclosures. This statement adds certain additional disclosures about cash and invesuments, including common

areas of investment risk,

The Company'’s investment policy specifies that the primary objectives, in priority order, of investment
activities is safety, liquidity and yield. In addition, funds are to be invested in conformity with Federal, state
and other legal requirements, including bond resolutions.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had cash and temporary investments of $6,703,685
and $2,778,829, respectively. Of these amounts, $200,000 was covered by insurance provided by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Company (“FDIC”). The remaining balance was uninsured and uncollateralized.

The Company had investments as follows:

Year ended December 31

2006 2005
U.S. Treasury Bonds, 8.22%, due November 15, 2013 $ 4,700,000 $ 4,700,001
Mutual Funds 17,071,923 1,047,593
Commercial Paper 9,750,000 -
Certificate of Deposit 2,969,000 =
Sweep Accounts 48,976,000 9,737,000
$ 83,466,923 $ 15,484,594

Custodial Credit Risk—Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Company’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Company does not have a formal deposit policy for
custodial credit risk; however, accounts are set up with overnight sweep accounts so that cash is invested in

short rerm, liquid investments daily to minimize the amount of cash not covered by insurance provided by
the FDIC.,
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Custodial Credit Risk—Investments: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event
of the failure of the counterparty, the Company will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Company’s investments are held in the
name of the Company by a wrustee.

Concentration of Credit Risk:The Company has no restrictions on the amount it may invest in any
one issuer.

Interest Rate Risk: The Company does not have a formal policy limiting maturities of its investments.
Investments are made based on the prevailing market conditions and anticipated cash needs at the time of the
rransaction.

Credit Risk: The Company has historically only purchased investment grade securities. The Standard &
Poors rating (ot the U.S. Treasury Bonds and commercial paper listed above s AAA.

NOTE 9 — UTILITY PLANT, NET
The following is a schedule of utility plant for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Beginning Ending
Balance Addidons Reductions Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ AT % o % (160652) § 7179623
Construction in progress 54,874,025 74,427,744 (78,329,733) 50,972,036
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 62,214,300 74,427,744 (78,490,385) 58,151,659
Other capital assets:
Buildings 80,778,414 4,120,859 (3,037.507) 81,861,766
Machinery and equipment 43,768,073 4,294,467 (1,672,799) 46,389,741
Infrastructure 766,633,547 65,329,570 (11,600,579) 820,382,538
Total other capital assets
at historical cost 891,200,034 73,744,896 (16,310,885) 948,634,045
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (29,628,993) (1,751,701) 1,876,165 (29,504,529)
Machinery and equipment (25,268,849) (4,172,900) 1,653,279 (27.788,470)
Infrastructure (193,310,328) (15,254,529) 3,174,732 (203,390,125)
Total accumulated depreciation  (248,208,170) (21,179,130) 8,704,176 (260,683.124)
Other Capital Assets, Net 642,991,864 52,565,766 (7,606,709) 687,950,921
Capital Assets, Net $ 705,206,164 $126,993,510 $(86,097,094)  § 746,102,580
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The following is a schedule of utility plant for the year ended December 31, 2005:

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being

depreciated

Other Capital Assets:

Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total other capital assets

at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Other Capital Assets, Net

Capital Assets, Net

Beginning Additions Reductions Ending
Balance Balance
$ 6,122,892 § 1,217,383 - $ 7,340,275
63,769,042 68,526,575 (77.421,592) 54,874,025
69,891,934 69,743,958 (77,421,592) 62,214,300
71,909,507 88971991 (103,084) 80,778,414
36,793,808 8,004,558 (1,030,293) 43,768,073
716,880,073 54,154,695 (4,381,221) 766,653,547
825,583,388 71,131,244 (5,514,598) 891,200,034
(27,999,6-28) (1,681,948) 52,583 (29,628,993)
(22,860,210) (3,399,140) 990,501 (25,268,849)
(180,664,836)  (13.719.838) 1,074,346  (193,310,328)
(231,524,674) (18,800,926) 2,117,430 (248,208,170)
594,058,714 52,330,318 (3,397,168) 642,991,864
$ 663,950,648 § 122074276 § (R0O,818,760) $ 705,206,164
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NOTE 10 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities at December 31, 2006 are summarized as follows:

Beginning Ending Current Noncurrent
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion
Bonds Payable $118,032,500 $83,845,000 § (6,317,500) $195,560,000  $7,160,000 $188,400,000
Unamortized Debt
Premium 458,070 2,200,539 (95,590) 2,563,019 - 2,563,019
Customer Advances
for Construction 2,444 307 310,301 - 2,955,108 - 2,955,108
Total Long-Term
Liabilities $120,934,877  $86,556,340  $(6,413,090) $201,078,127  $7,160,000 $193.918,127
Long-term liabilitics at December 31, 2005 are summarized as follows:
Beginning Ending Current Noncurrent
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion
Bonds Payable 8124213388 § - $(6,180.888) $118,032,500 $6,482 500 $111,550,000
Unamortized Debt
Premium 509,651 - (51,581) 458,070 - 458,070
Customer Advances
for Construction 4,500,707 1,415,257 (3,471,657) 2,444,307 - 2,444 307
Total Long-Term
Liabilities $129,223,746  § 1415257 $(9,704,126) $120,934,877  $6,482,500  §114,452377
Bonds and notes payable at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consist of the following:
2006 2005
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2000 tax exempt,
interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 5.5% with
maturities from 2003 through 2025 $ 71,800,000 $ 74,010,000
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2001 tax exempt,
interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 4.7% with
maturities from 2001 through 2014 39,750,000 43,750,000
‘Water System Revenue Bonds, 2006 tax exempt,
interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% with
maturities from 2007 through 2031 83,845,000 -
Other Debr 165,000 272,500
Total Debr 195,560,000 118,032,500
Less Current Porton 7,160,000 6,482,500

$ 188,400,000

$ 111,550,000

All bonds are subject to optional redemption provisions.

The Water System Revenue Bond resolutions contain a rate covenant requiring that the schedule of
rates and charges, and the rules and regulations for water services will not be revised so as to result in a
decrease of revenues. Also, future adjustments tc water rates and charges are required as necessary so that
annual net revenues will not be less than 1.30% of the total annual bond debt service requirements for the

then outstanding bonds.
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NOTE 14 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company retains certain insurable risks up to a fixed maximum per claim exposure. Liability claims
are retained up to $1,000,000 per occurrence, with insurance coverage for any judgment or settlement of up
to $35,000,000 above that amount. Workers’ compensation is self-funded up to $350,000 per claim prior to
October 1,2004 and $450,000 beginning October 1, 2004, with an aggregate limit of 90% of the premium
that would be developed by applying the rate times the payroll. A reserve of $1,399,067 and $1,213,637 was
established at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, to provide for liability and worker’s compensation
claims incurred.

The Company is involved in litigation, which has arisen out of operations in the ordinary course of
business. While it is not possible to forecast the outcome of this litigation, it is the opinion of the Company’
management, based on evaluations by outside counsel, that it will not have a material adverse effect on the
financial statements of the Company.
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Supplemental Information

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY

December 31,2006

Bond Reserve Account - Series 2001
U.S. Treasury Bonds

Bond Reserve Account - Series 2006
First American Funds
US Bank Certificate of Deposit

Depreciation Fund
Sweep Account

Infrastructure Replacement
Sweep Account

U.8. Treasury State and Local Government Fund

U.S. Treasury Bonds

Bullitt County Water Reeserve
Sweep Account

Bond Service Account - Series 2000
First American Funds

Bond Service Account - Series 2001
First American Funds

Bond Service Account - Series 2006
First American Funds

Construction Fund
First American Funds

US Bancorp Commercial Paper

Cost of Issuance Fund
First American Funds

See Indepenient Auditor’s Report

Maturity Par Fair Mkt Value

8.22% 11/15/13 $ 3,059,858 § 3,059,858
4.90% 10/16/07 3,730 3,730
5.23% 7/23/07 2,969,000 2,969,000
5.51% 34,824,000 34,824,000
5.51% 14,137,000 14,137,000
8.22% 1,640,143 1,640,143
5.47% 15,000 15,000
4.89% 10/16/07 747,550 747,550
4.89% 10/16/07 1,021,445 1021445
4.89% 10/16/07 419,893 419,893
4.89% 10/16/07 14,860,149 14,860,149
5.00% 03/01/07 9,750,000 9,750,000
4.89% 10/16/07 19,155 19,155

$83,4660,923  $83,466,925

R
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SUMMARIZED SCHEDULE OF BOND ISSUES

LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY
December 31, 2006

2006 SERIES BOND ISSUE

The Water Reevenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only from revenue

of the Company.

Master resolution date

Third supplemental resolution date
Original amount

Interest rate

Bonds payable

Interest pavable

Call provisions in whole or in part

July 14, 1992

May 25, 20006

$83.845.,000

4.00% to 5.00%

November 15

May 15 and November 15
100% after November 15, 2016

Sinking Fund installments for 2030 and 2031 maturity bonds: 2006 Issue

November 15, 2030

November 15, 2031

Year Amount Year Amount
2030 $ 5,225.000 2031 $ 5,470,000
3 3000 _§ 5470000

2001 SERIES BOND ISSUE

The Water Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only from revenue

of the Company.

Master resolution date

Second supplemental resolution date
Original amount

Interest rate

Bonds payable

Interest pavable

Call provisions in whole or in part

Continuzd

July 14, 1992

February 13,2001
$60,300,000

4.00% to 4.70%

November 15

May 15 and November 15
100% after November 15,2010

e~ 4
Ve
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SUMMARIZED SCHEDULE OF BOND ISSUES

LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY
December 31,2005

2000 SERIES BOND ISSUE

The Water Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only from revenue

of the Company.

Master resolution date
Supplemental resolution date
Original amount

Interest rate

Bonds payable

Interest payable

Call provisions

July 14, 1992

August 8, 2000

$78,500,000

5.00% to 5.50%

November 15

May 15 and November 15
100% after November 15, 2010

Sinking Fund installments for 2022 and 2024 maturity bonds:

November 15, 2022

Year Amount
2021 $ 4,710,000
2022 4,975,000

$ 9,685,000

See Independent Auditor’s Report

November 15, 2024
Year Amount
2023 $ 5,260,000
2024 5,555,000
_35 10,_815,000

ik
o
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SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING BOND INDEBTEDNESS

AND ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

December 31, 2006

2006 Bonds

Aggregate

Principal Bond

Year Ending December 31 Installinents Interest Service
2007 $ 500,000 $ 3,974,856 $ 4474856
2008 1,725,000 3,954,856 5,679,856
2009 2,180,000 3.885,856 6,065,856
2010 2,465,000 3,798,656 6,263,656
2011 2,370,000 3,700,056 6,070,056
2012 2,460,000 3,605,256 6,065,256
2013 2,555,000 3,506,856 6,061,856
2014 2,655,000 3,404,656 6,059,656
2015 2,760,000 3,298,456 6,058.456
2016 2,870,000 3,160,456 6,030.456
2017 2,985,000 3,016,956 6,001,956
2018 3,110,000 2,867,706 5,977.706
2019 3,240,000 2,731,644 5.971.644
2020 3,375,000 2,585,844 5,960,844
2021 3,520,000 2,429,750 5,949,750
2022 3,675,000 2.255.750 5,928.750
2023 3,835,000 2,070,000 5,905,000
2024 4,000,000 1,878,250 5,878.250
2025 4,180,000 1,678,250 5,858,250
2026 4,365,000 1,469,250 5,834,250
2027 4,565,000 1,251,000 5,816.000
2028 4,770,000 1,022,750 5,792,750
2029 4,990,000 784,250 5,774,250
2030 5,225,000 534,750 5,759,750
2031 5,470,000 273,500 5,743,500
$ 83,845,000 $ 63,137,610 $ 146,982,610

See Independent Auditor’s Report
2001 Bonds
Aggregate
Principal Bond

Year Ending Decemnber 31 Iustallments Interest Service
2007 $ 4,185,000 $ 1,789,978 $ 5,974,978
2008 4,380,000 1,612,115 5,992,115
2009 4,590,000 1,415,015 6,005,015
2010 4,820,000 1,208,465 6,028,465
2011 5,055,000 991,565 6,046,565
2012 5,305,000 764,090 6,069,090
2013 5,570,000 525,365 6,095,365
2014 5,845,000 274,715 6,119,715
$ 39,750,000 $ 8,581,308 $ 48,331.308

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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December 31, 2006

SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING BOND INDEBTEDNESS
AND ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

2000 Bonds
Aggregate
Principal Bond

Year Ending December 31 Installments Interest Service
2007 $ 2,310,000 $3725M9 $ 6,035,019
2008 2,420,000 3,609,519 6,029,519
2009 2,540,000 3,488,519 6,028,519
2010 2,660,000 3,361,519 6,021,519
2011 2,790,000 3,228,519 6,018,519
2012 2,930,000 3,089,019 6,019,019
2013 3,075,000 2,942,519 6,017,519
2014 3,235,000 2,788,769 6,023,769
2015 3,405,000 2,627,019 6,032,019
2016 3,520,000 2,452,512 6,042,512
2017 3,790,000 2,264,037 6,054,037
2018 4,000,000 2,065,062 6,065,062
2019 4,225,000 1,855 062 6,080,062
2020 4,460,000 1,633,250 6,093,250
2021 4,710,000 1,399,100 6,109,100
2022 4,975,000 1,151,825 6,126,825
2023 5,260,000 890,637 6,150,637
2024 5,555,000 614,487 6,169,487
2025 5,870,000 322,850 6,192,850
$ 71,800,000 $ 43,509 243 $ 115,309,243

See Independent Auditors Report

SCHEDULES OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES AND TAXES

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Operation and Maintenance Expenses
Pumping
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Customer accounts expenses
Administrative and general expenses
Operation expenses under applied
Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses

Taxes
Water and fire services in lieu of taxes
Social security taxes
State unemployment taxes
Payroll taxes allocated
Total Taxes

See Independent Auditor’s Report

2006 2005

$ 5,191,650 $ 5,029,576
6,878,006 6,027,511
12,066,154 11,357,218
7,148,485 6,883,294
16,571,526 17,791,010
656,221 343,365

$ 48,512,042 § 47,441,974
$ 9,857,822 $ 9,415,500
1,937,219 1,940,162
48,265 19,689
(1,937,219) (1,940,162)
§ 9,906,087 $ 9,435,189
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Corperate Information

Board Members

Jerry Abramson
Mayor, Lovisville Metra
{ex cfficia)

Wendy . Welsh
Board Viee Chairman
Senior Vice President,
Information Technology
EON US

Executive Leadership Team

Board of Water Works

The Board of Water Works is composed of seven members:

* The TLouwsville Metro Mayor appoints all members.

Stewar | L. Conner
BOC’I’G‘ Ch(]”mcﬂ
Managing Fartner
Waatl, Tarrant & Combs

Marta Willis
Assistant Vice President
PNC Bank

Geraid Martin

Vice President and
Managing Member
River Hill Capital, LLC

/Margaret Leavell Horris
ketired Frecufive
BellSauth Telecommunications

Dr. Joseph B. Wise, Ill
fusiness Manoger,
Secrefary/Treasurer
Greater louisville Building

and Consiruction Trades Council

Front row: Barhara Dickens, Vice President, General
Counsel and Secreiary - John Huber, President and
Chief Executive Officer - Susan Lehmann, Vice Presdert,
Human Resourses and Organizaniona!' Effeciveness

Back row: Roberf K. Miller, Vice President and Treasurer,
Business Resourcing - Kara Olson Teasley, Vice President,
Serving Customers and Business Development - Gregery
C. Heizman, Senicr Vice President of Operations

and Chief Engineer- Billy Meeks, President, AFSCME
local 1683

Edwin Chestut, Ir, Assisiant fo the
Fresidert, Director of Business
Perfermance Management

* The membership is bi-partisan, with no more than 50 percent from the same political party.
* All new board members serve staggered four-year terms.

* The Louisville Metro Mayor serves as ex officio.

The Board meets the second Tuesday of each month at 12:30 pm at 550 South Third Street.

Each April, the Board appoints officers of the company.

Aage — FF
i
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John L. Huber Retires

A g et e TR 1 e S A T

A L

As [ complete a career that includes more than 16 years as President and
CEO of Louisville Water Company, and over 40 years in the water business,
I want to express my gratitude to the taleated and dedicated people who have
suppeorted me. I owe a debt of gratitude to my mentors and teachers, including the
members of Louisvills Water Company’s Board of Directors. I've been privileged
to werk with and learn from skilled, effective leaders, Working alongside the
dedicated and gifted employees of Louisville Water Cowmpany, in the spirit of

service to our custoniers and community, has been gratifying.

My biggest thanks and gratitude go to my wife, Cindy. Her encouragement,
participation and support underlie the success ve achieved and the community
and water industry honors and awards I've received.

It been a privilege jor us ta be a part of the water industry,
1t been an honor for us to be a part of Louisville Water Company.

i
\ N

LOUISYILLE, KENTUCKY
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

JERRY E. ABRAMSON
MAYOR

March 7, 2007

Mr. John Huber

President

Louisville Water Company
550 8. Third 5t
Louisville, KY 40202

Dear John,

On behalf of our community’s citizens, thank ycu for your commitment o the
Louisville Water Company and to three decades of volunteerism here and around the
world.

Your 30 years with the Louisville Water Company and especially your 16 years
as its president have been marked by accomplishments and innovatinns. From the clean
and affordable water service we all enjoy every day to the Louisville Water Company's
integral role in philanthropy and community involvement, our entire community has
hengfited from yourlondeivhi

In Louisville, you have shown your dedication to higher education by working
with the University of Louisville Board of Overseers and Speed School, as well as
Spalding University’s Board of Trustees. As board chair for the Louisville Science
Center. vou helped complete 2 major capital campaign for new exhibits and eam the
center valuable national recognition. On a global scele, your leadership &s board
president of Water for People has had a powerful impact un lives all over the world,

lohr, you are leaving 2 legacy that will hold the Louisville Water Company in
good stead for many years to come ind our community is hanored to salute yvou

LOUIIVILLE METRO HALL 537 wEST JEFFERSON FTREET LOUISVILLE, KINTUCKY 482031 502.574.1003

)
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24/7 WATER - PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE

Providing a safe, continuous supply of
high quality water has been our goal for
more than a century, and we performed
very well in 2005. After two years of Very
wet weather, most of the 2005 growing
scason was dry, increasing the amount
of water used for residential irrigation.
Water production in May set a new
record for the month; water production
in June topped 200 million gallons in
one day for the first time in our history.

The dry weather, plus our growing customer base, produced
record revenues in 2005, which in turn allowed us to pay a
record dividend.

For the fourth vear in a row, delivered water quality exceeded
our own standards, which are higher than government regula-
tions require. Our continuing improverments in this area mean
we already meet or exceed most of the new federal water
quality regulations going into effect in 2012; plans are well
under way te assure we exceed all of them by that date.

Our talented water quality and treatment staff again demon-

strated exceptional skill in January, when a major spill dumped

several hundred thousand gallons of oil into an Ohio River
tributary tipstream from our intakes. We began intensive test-
ing immediately and devised special measures in our treatment
processes to remove the oil. As a result, no detectable amounts
of oil were ever found in our finished water, and we were able

to provide all the water our community needed.

The spill helped prove the value of our riverbank filtration
well, the forerunner of planned major improvements. The
B. E. Payne plant well uses natural filiering processes to cleanse
Ohio River water as it flows through the aquifer. Throughout
the spill and afterward, there were no detectable signs of oil in
the water from the well. No additional treatment was needed.

Plans to expand the number of wells at the Payne plant were
set back early in the year, when bids for constructing a new

well field exceeded our estimates by more
than 50 percent. Special engineering stud-
ies identified several major areas where
costs could be reduced, and we plan to
advertise for bids on the redesigned project
in 2006.

The Crescent Hill treatment plant will re-

standards. A steering committeé of board
members and senior staff engaged techni-
cal experts to identify and evaluate different
ways to meet the new standards. By the end of the year, two
alternatives were identified for preliminary engineering stud-
ies. One alternative includes riverbank filtration wells, and the
other includes ozone and biologically activated filters for water
drawn directly from the river.

A maj or renovation and expansion project was completed at the
30-year-old Payne 'pl-,mr during the year. The project renovated
filters and electrical gear and raised the plant’s capacity by 15
million gallons per day to a total of 60 million. Improvements
also included backup electrical generating equipment capable
of operating the plant at 30 million gallons per day. This project
was completed at a cost 12 percent less than budgeted.

Our beard and staff continued to work on corporate
governance in 2005, establishing new policies and procedures
designed to-assure our actions remain fully transparent and in
compliance with best practices.

In December, I announced my plans to retire in August 2007, to

allow the board to begin the process of choosing my successor. Several
initiatives over the past faw vears have been designed to help with this

transition in leadership.

I have been blessed 10 have spent nearly 40 years in the water industry
and at Louisville Water Company; it has been an immensely challeng-
ing and rewarding experence. I look fonward to helping prepare the
company for its next generation of leadership.

( AD yh

wwn, lowisvillewater. com — page 3
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24/7 WATER - FINAN CIALHEGHLIGI"I;E?

I O N B I 8 B E L& H T §

Water Delivered to Mains 47,733 46,276 46,340 47,405 46,313
Total Consumption” 40,052 38,243 38,044 40,204 39,378
Unmetered Water 6,838 7,086 7423 7,201 6934
Average Daily Delivery 131 127 127 130 127
Average Daily Water Usage 1o 105 104 110 108
Average Daily Pumpuge 131 127 127 130 127
Maximum Daily Pumpuge 205 161 174 178 175
Other Maasures:
Percant of Water

Unmefered 15% 15% 16% 15% 15%
Average Residential

Manthly Water Bill** 51643 SI543  ™51473(15.87) §14.13 $13.50

*Escludes temporary service onsumption
**Based upon median wsage of 6,000 gallons per month
*H%Figures corrected from 2003 annual report fignres, which ave shown in parentheses

Rsidential - 46%

Wholesal __.‘5“;2%

C' Municipal - 3%

Private fire services -

Fire hydrants - 6% —

Industrial - 7%

. Commercial - 34%

2003 Anmual Report — page 4
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Operating Revenues
Tolal Operating Expenses

let Non-operating Expenses

Net Income Before Distributions,
Contributions and Extroordinary ltems

Extraordinary lrems
Distributed Property
Dividends Paid and Payable
Contributions

Increase in Net Assets

Net Assats, Beginning of Year
Net Assats, End of Yeor

Other

Investment in System
Debt Service Coverage
Return on Total Assets

50,000
| 40,052
40,000

20,000

10,000

2005

72004 2003 2002 2001 2000

il R EVIEW
§115,230,25¢ $§103,462,053 697,667,143
76,376,589 70,024,120 68,980,817
(4.131,917) (4.868,917) (4,125,792)
34,721,750 28,569,016 24,580,534
(16,178,050) (14,552,137) (12,313,831)
15,797,955 16,430,901 13,249, 414
34,341,659 30,447,780 25,511,117
571,199,097 540,751,317 515,240,200
605,540,756 571,199,097 540,751,317

§ 61,700,408 § 52414164
3.3 29 2.77
4.66% 3.95% 353%

mTAL WATER cONSEIITION

38243 38044 40204 39378 39776

Figures in million WLE

HI EH L I

e
§92,769,157

$98172031
45,742,954
(4,596,329)

27,832,748

(879,564)
(12,379,623)
16,646,769
31,220,330
484,019,870
515,240,200

60,413,819(42,340,839)" 62,703,948(61,760,384)*

3.33
413%

G H T 5

2001

82,814,427
(1,429,411)

28,525,319

(1,253,356)

(13,076,344)

14,527,045

21,722,664
456,297.208 !
484,019,872 T

548,515,271
435
4.06%

wunw lowispilleivater. com — page 5
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24/7 WATER - YEAR IN REVIEW

INTRODUCTION

One of ou
young cusiomers
enjoying Pure

Tap on the rwir.

2005 Annual Report — page 6

iding high quality water—24 hours a day,
n days a week, throughout the year with-
out interruption—is Louisville Water Company's
reason for.being. All of the company’s efforts
are aimed toward continuing to meet this goal,
by providing for the community’s growth and
for continuous service in the face of natural and
man-made problems.

The company provides water to about 810,000
people in Louisville Metro and parts of Oldham
and Bullitt counties. In 2005, the company deliv-
ered an average of nearly 131 million gallons per
day through nearly 3,600 miles of water main.

Water is drawn from the Ohio River at three
points: the raw water pump station at Zorn
Aventie and River Road, and the B. E. Payne
pump station northeast of Harrods Creek. Water
is also drawn from the river through a riverbank
infiltration well at the Payne plant.

The water is treated at two locations: the Cres-

cent Hill plant, which has 2 capacity of 180 mil-
lion gallons per day, and the Payne plant, which

has a capacity of 60 million gallons per day. Both

plants treat the water using processes that include
coagulation, softening, corrosion stabilization,
disinfection, filtration, fluoridation, and final dis-
infection. Storage capacity for treated water totals
over 90 million gallons in reservoirs, elevated
tanks and standpipes.

Mains range up to 60 inches in diameter. Boost-
er pump stations, pressure-reducing stations and
water storage facilities are used to maintain the
appropriate pressure throughout the system.

To ensure the highest quality, the company oper-
ates a laboratory certified by the state of Kentucky
under U. S. Environmental Protéction Agency
standards, performing more than 120,000 water
quality tests every year.

In addition to water sold to our retail custom-
ers, the company wholesales water to West Shelby
Water. District, North Shelby Water Company,
North Nelson Water District, Taylorsville, Mount
Wiashington and Lebanon Junction.

VERY GOOD YEAR

at _m@s‘:non broke several records in 2005, as
dry g "wi'ng season followed the area’s wettest
year in history in 2004. Rainfall from February
“:thmuéh July was below average, and water usage
.increased as the growing season progressed.

While several other water utilities in Kentucky
and Tndiana had to restrier water use during the
drv weather, our company continued to provide
all the water our customers needed. In May, wa-
ter production averaged 157.7 million gallons per
day—a new record for the month. Then on June
24, water production topped 200 million gallons
per day for the first time, reaching 201.5 million.
This easily surpassed the previous record of 198
million gallons per day, set during the height of
the drought of 1999. June 25 set another record:

LWC 0054



In late January, a
22Zinch ol pineling
rustured near
Carrolltan, Ky,

‘dumping more

fh_rJ'Jj_mQéO,OOO
gdllms of crude
oifinta the
Kentucky River.

204.5 million" gallons. Total production for the
year was the fourth largest in our history.

Our water sales for the year also set a record: more
than $115 million. Dividends paid and payable
totaled a record of more than $16 million.

Our effort to supply quality witer 2 bnind. the

- clock was not without its challenges. The largest
came in late January, when a 22-inch oil pipe-

line ruptured near Carrollton, Ky, dumping more

“than 260,000 gallons of crude oil inta the Ken-

tucky River. While efforts to contain the spill

began quickly, some oil escaped and was washed

down the Kentucky River into the Ohio River.
Qur staff began preparations immediately to deal
with the oil, taking samples from the Ohio River
at Carrollton, Westport and Goshen to determine

what would be needed for treatment. Less than 48 _

hours after the spill, traces of oil were detected at

*our intakes, and additional treatment began.

Five days after the spill, the booms designed to
contain the o1l failed, and a large quantity was
d,tscharge::imto the Ohio River. Environmen-
tal officials reported that oil covered. the surface
of the river from bank te bank. Our president

. declared an operational emérgency, and our com-

pany's emergency [‘CSPDI“]SQ team was activated.

To remove the oil, powdered activated carbon was
added to the water from the river at our Zorn
Avenue pumping station and at our Crescent Hill
treatment plant. The effort continued until mid-
February, when the oil on the river had passed
downstream of Louisville. (During the spill, out
B.E. Payne plant stopped withdrawing water flom
the river and relied on the riverbank filtrarion
well, which never showed signs of the oil.)

The spill was one ;)t-the largest on the Ohio River
dn at least 25 years. Throughout the emergency,

there were no detectable amounts of the oilin our

finished water. Our cost of treatment to remove
the oil was more than $387,000, which was to be
- paid by the pipeline company.

The dry weather brought another problem which

.8 not uncommon along the Ohio River: the

water becomes clearer than normal, which allows
more sunlight to penetrate it and causes more
algae to grow. The algae, in turn, produce sub-
stances that can make the water taste, and smell,
like algae. The problem began in May 2005 and

- continued off and on through mid-October.

Powdered activated carbon was added to the treat-

__ment process to remove the algae taste and odor;

the total cost for this treatment for the year was
more than $190,000.

WATER QUALITY

nes to providing safe water 24/7,
reliability are paramount. For years,
e Water Company’s standards for water
quality have been higher than federal and state
regulations require.In 2005, for the fourth yearina
row, we met or exceeded all of our own standards
for water qualicy.

wiinw, lowisvillewater com — page 7 {
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For the Touth vear

in a row, we met or
exceeded all rege
latory standards for

water quoi by

.. has shown the value of this system. Basically, -

2005 Annual Report — page 8

Our standards have kept us ahead of the trends as
science discovers more about the possible contents
of water and their effects on human health. In De-
cembet 2005, the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency promulgated new drinking water regula-
tions that will require utilities serving populations
of more than 100,000 to meet stricter standards
by 2012. Thanks to our efforts over the years, our
company already meets the new standards for
disinfection byproducts. And riverbank filtration
wells will hielp our B. E. Paynie plant to meet the
new regulations for particles, including cryptospo-
ridium and giardia parasites.

The riverbank filtration well at the Payne plant,
which finished its sixth year of cperation in 2005,

it uses the natural filtration of the soil and sand
strata along the Ohio River to remove contami-
nants from our source of water. Over the vears, the
quality of the water from the well has approached
the quality of water taken from the river after
being processed by our treatment plants. During

and after the January 2005 oil spill, the water from

the well showed no traces of contarmination from

the oil. In summer, the water from the well is also
free of the byproducts of algae growth that cause
taste and odor problems with water from the river.

Experience with this well demonstrated the
value of this approach for meeting stricter wa-
ter quality standards and, in 2003, our board ap-
proved design of a new systemn of wells to provide
nearly all the water at the B. E. Payne plant. As
proposed in 2004, the system included a 12-foot-
diameter tunnel in the bedrock along the river,
supplied by 31 vertical wells in the aquifer above
the rock, Competitive bids for construction were
received in March 2005; the lowest was more than
$17 million more than the eéngineering estimate

of 8§31 million.

‘The bids were rejected and we began a special
value engineering eftort to identify the costlier
items and find ways to deal with them.

One problem was the classification of the bed-
rock as “gascous,” based on reports of natural gas
in some of the bedrock south of the tunnel. A
series of 28 new test bores in late 2005, taken
about every 250 feet along the route of the tunnel,
showed no gas—and no fractures in the rock.

Another problem was the cost of accurately
drilling vertical wells to meet the tunnel. A new
design mcludes fewer and larger vertical shafts with
horizontal collector wells extending from them
into the aquifer. This design is similar to the basic
idea of the demonstration well, with an important
difference: the shafts will be capped at ground
level, and the pump station will be builtat the end
of the tunnel.

Other changes are expected to bring the con-
struction cost of the project down to the arigi-
nally planned $31 million, adjusted for inflation
and special construction conditions at the time of

LWC 0056



Ccnfmumg
developmenr in
the area we serve
brought us more
than 3,600 new
retail customers

i 2005, 5

bidding. The new design should _be ready to
advertise for bids the summer o 2006, with

; ,-.w‘gegr_]:stmctlon starting sometime in 2007,

While riverbank filtration can be 2 great way o
provide clean dnnk.mg Water, it may not be the
best way in all instances. The charaeteristics of the
aquifer. the bedrock and potential for contamina-
tion-from human activity can have a great effect
on its efficiency. Because of this, the cost and use-
fulness of a series of wells running northeast slong

“the river from our historic Zorn Avenue Ohio

River intake to supply the Grescent Hill treatment
plant is uncertain.

Early in 2005, our board set up a Steering Group
on Alternative Treatment Technology for the
Crescent Hﬂl treatment plant. Made up of board
members, company officials and a representative

of Louisville Metro government, it met with our

“ronsulting engineers five tinies during the year.
Nine preliminary treatrment aptions were con-

sidered, then narrawed down to five that were
review d in depth. Three options were chosen for

n November, the board approved $2.5 million

for preliminary engineering studies to test two

of the options: riverbank ﬁi;;a (wells) and an
Ohio River intake with treatment by ozone and
biologically active filters. While no timetable for a

final decision was set, the new systein should meet
EPA’s 2012 deadline.

The continuing need for improvements to meet
water quality goals and to provide adequate service

“ for a growing commuinity will increase expenses

in the future To meet this need, the board in De-
cember approved a 5 percent across-the-board

‘increase in water rates for 2006. One percent of

this amount is reserved for developing advanced

tieatinent technology for our Crescent Hill planty.

to enable it to meet future, more stringent, water
qguality regulations.

(The increase did not apply to customers in the

recently acquired Goshen, Kentucky Turn-

. pike and Shepherdsville systems, where rates arc

already higher than our regular rates. The rate
differential is used to make improvements in those
systems; when chis is accomplished, rates will

be equaii;_ze_d._?_-_

EXPANSION

ontinuing developmentin thearea we serve brought
us more than 3,600 new retail customers in 2005,
e experienced increases in all customer catego-
except industrial, Whl(,h remzined the same
as in 2004,

The major areas of growth are to the eastern and
sotthern parts of our service area, and several

‘projects were under way and completed to meet

the growing demand.

wnow, lowisvillewater. som — page 9
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Foremost was the completion of the project to
expand.the capacity of our B. E. Payne plant by
15 million gallons per day, to a total of 60 million
gallons per day. The expansion, originally budget-
ed at $20.5 million, actually cost $1-_'8.'2 million—
12 percent underbudget.

The new facilities include higher capacity filters,
a new backwash system, additional pumps, new
electrical switch gear and a diesel-powered back-
up power supply capable of operating the plant at
30 mtl}wn gallons per day.

The plant operated at its full 60 million gallons

sper day capacity during the company’s record

2005 Annval Report — page 10

production peak in June, and the backup power
supply operated at full capacity during a test

exercise in August.

Other capacity improvements mcluded new or
enlarged water mains. The largest was the re-

location of a major main to make way for an.

expansion at Louisville International Airport. The

60-inch mun through the airport property was
relocated with a new 60-inch main at a cost of
$5.6 million; the airport authority shared in the
funding of this relocation to accommodate the
west runway extension.

In 2005, developers installed most of the new water
lines built to serve customers in our service area.

In Jefferson County, 41.1 miles of new main were
built at a cost of more than $7.3 million. They will
serve 3,855 new customers.

In Bullitt County, 8.4 miles of main were built at
a‘cost of nearly $2 million. They will serve 399

new custormers.

And in Oldham Coﬁnty, 3.8 miles of main were
built at a cost of more than $600,000. They will
serve 249 new customers,

In Bullitt and Oldham counties, we contin-
ued to make improvements to systems acquired
in the past few years. These improvements are
financed by the higher rates historically paid by the
customers in ithose areas. Their rates will be
adjusted to Louisville Water Company rates when
the improvements are paid for. (Because they are
already paying more than our standard rates, they
were not subject to our rate increases in 2004,

2005 and 2006.)

. As part of our Bullitt County Extension Pro-

gram, we spent $3.5 million to build 14.7 mmles of
water mains into unserved areas, providing ser-
vice to 235 customers. We also renovated or re-
placed 4.6 miles of existing mains at a cost of
$1.7 million. Twenty-six new fire hydrants were
installed, qualifying the Zoneton Fire District for
an upgraded fire insurance rating and lowering
insurance premiums in the area.
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On the evenirg of
November 2, a
mdijer breck ¢t the
downtown intersec:
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and Second Strest

fooded the streels.

We also added ene new wholesale customer dur-
ing the year. Lebanon Junction water system ap-
praved a contract to use Louisville Water Compa-
ny as a backup to provide water in emergencies.

MAINTAININC OUR SYSTEM

upplying water 24/7 requires an efficient, smooth-
“functioning system. This poses challenges when
s of the system are a century old or more.

One ongoing problem is breaks in our water mains.
Stress from cold weather is one common cause;
in December 2005, we repaired 168 of them—52
more than the average for recent Decembers.

Occasionally, the breaks can be quite distuptive.
On the evening of November 2, a major bredk in

‘a 30-inch water main at the downtown intersec-

tion of Broadway and Second Sueet fuovded the
streets and caused traffic congestion for mwore than
a week. Our crews worked around the dock w

make repairs, which were complicated by natu-
ral gas lines, underground electric and fiber-optic

. cable lines and a large brick sewer line. Our cost

for the repair totaled more than $98,000.

A 12-inch break on Baxter Avenue near Breck-
enridge Street the evening of March 30 damaged
several propertics and closed the street to waffic.
The break was repaired and service was restored
carly the next morning. Our cost for this repair
was $38,000, not including damage claims.

A regular program to repair or replice aging

facilities is one of the ways we try to reduce these
challenges. Since. 1992, we have been renovating
or replacing the 500 miles of unlined cast iron
water mains that were installed before 1935, In

2005, about 5.1 miles of main were replaced at a7

cost of $5.3 million. The entite 500 iniles of work
should be completed by the end of 2007. In the
meantime; other mains are becoming troublesome
and will require replacement or rehabilitation.
Preliminary discussions of a new rehabilitation
program arc alicady under way to address the next
generation of aging infrastructure installed from
1935 to 1970.

Another legacy of the past is the lead pipe ser-
vice lintes that connect the warer mains with water
meters in older parts of our system. In an ongo-

ing program, we replaced 710 of them in 2005.

Approximately 19,700 lead service lines remain in
service. We expect to replace all of them by 2015.

I an effort to slow the deterioration of our cast-
iron mains, we launched a pilot program in 2005
to install sacrificial anedes to reduce corresion.
A sacrificial anode is made of magnesium, a
metal that will corrode faster than cast iron. The
anodes are buried alongside the water main and
attached to it.

The anodes are expected to help preserve water
muains in areas where there are stray clectrical cur-

- rents and soil types that promote corrosion. They

ww, Towisyillewates. com — page 11

LWC 0059



Since 1992,
we hove Heen
renovating or
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were installed in 2005 in two areas in western
Touisville and one in Jeffersontown.

Another new program is designed to reduce the
percentage of water that we list as “unmetered”—
the difference between the amount of water we
pump into the system, and the amount of water
metered. Part of this water, but not all. is lost in
main breaks. A special team was formed to deal
with the problem; one of its main findings was
that a certain type of water meter, as it aged, was
not registering all the water passing through.

Normally, meters are expected to remain accu-
rate for approximately 20 years. We had a regular
program Lo replace them but it was discontinued
in anticipation of a new automated meter read-
ing system. However, automated meter reading
feasibility appears to be farther in the future than
originally anticipated, so the replacement program
was reinstated. More than 14,000 were exch:inged
during 2005. Other meters are being resred, both
at our plants and at our customers’ connections. In
two yeafs, the program, plus the reduction in the
number of main breaks becanse of our rehabilita-
tion and replacement program, has reduced the

amount of unmetered water.:

2005 Annual Repert — page 12

Qur Crescent Hill treatment plant facilities
underwent extensive repairs and renovations

in 2005.

The slate roofs on our historic chemical and filter
buildings had been scheduled for replacement be-
ginning in 2005, at a cost of more than $3.6 mil-
lion. But an inspection early in the yvear revealed an
unexpected problem at the filter building. During
the ice, sleet and snow storm of December 2004,
a buildup of ice had slid off the higher chemical
building reof, crashing into the filter building roof

* and causing significant damage. The estimated cost

increased to more than $3.8 million.

Repairs to the iron, steel and wood of the roof
structure and the masonry of the building are part
of the project; work began in the fall of 2005 and
should be completed in two vears. Slate will be
used once again. in the hope that the roof will last
for another century.

Another major project at Crescent Hill was the
$3.8 million renovation of the south coagulation
complex, which removes particles from the water.
The work began in April 2004 and is expected to
be completed in March 2006.

While ongoing repairs, replacements and renova-
tions have kept the Crescent Hill plant operating
efficiently, emergencies still happen. On August
11, while demand for water was heavy because of
dry weather, a 36-inch backwash supply line at the
Crescent Hill plant failed spectacularly, shooting a
plume of water 30 feet in the air and flooding the
parking lar. The water was shut off quickly. but

__the failure kept the filters from being backwashed,
 which Hushes away the particles they remove from

the water so they can function efficiently.

Our crews went into emergency operation,
adjusting the filtering process and uncovering the
problem pipe for repair. The repair was accom-
plished in 26 hours, without affceting the quality
of the water provided to our customers.
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TECHNOLOGY AT WORK

ystems that are much more user-friendly

sources Management System that went into op- -
ceration in mid-December 20055

Pla.ﬁ"ﬁing for the new systemr began in 2004,

as specifications were drawn up. Implementation
began in May 2005.

Some of the advantages of the new system
mclude

- lvinteracts with our financial, payroll and
timekeeping systems. Data is entered only
once, Under the old arrangement, the same
data had 1o be entered. separately in up ‘to
four different systems, -

* Itis expandable. One of the old systems was
runmng out of room for new entries, and
there was no way to expand it to add capacity.

* It maintains a record of past changes. Under

d scalable. The most recent is the Human Re-

the old system, a change would replace the
old data, and there was no rccord in the
system of past changes.”

* It can handle much more information, such
as state and federal training requirements,
union contractual issues, safety requirements,
Department of Labor statistics, certifications
and licenses, and other items.

* For the first time, employees can view their
information by computer, either at the office
or on their home computers.

* And, for the first time, employees can make
corrections or changes in some of the
information in their files, such as changes
of address, income tax withholding, and
beneficiaries, In early 2006, the system was
used to allow employees to enroll online in
their health benefit plans, for the first time
without paper forms.

C ORPORATE GOVERNANCE

e Buard of Water Works adopted a new set of
orporate governance policies and procedures in
2005 to assure continued public confidence in

*the financial integrity and operatlons of Louisville
~. Water Company

The action represented the company’s efforts to
adopt best management practices from the fed-
eral Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. While the Act
does not apply to Louisville Water Company, its
requirements are recognized as the best gover-
nance practices for today’s corporations. As part of
the company’s efforts to meet these standards, the
board voted in 2004 to separate the offices of the
president of the company from the chairman of its
board. The board now elects its own chairman and
vice chairman.

wine lowtsvillewater. com — page 13
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The guiding principles of the new corporate
governance policy are: -

+ Transparency of financial conditions and
operations.

+ Transpareney of transactions with interested
parties, with no improper benefits at the
expense of the organization. =

+ Access to sound counsel unaffected by
conflict of interest.

The detailed policies and procedures were there-
sult of work by the company’s staff based on pubh—
cations from not-for-profit universily and hospital
industry groups. The individual sections include

detailed standards including: the independence of

external auditors, the responsibilities of the board’s
audit committee and company officers; senior
financial officers’ code of ethics; accountability for

corporate fraud or criminal actions; and cersifica-

tion by the treasurer of the financial reports.

The new policies are also consistent with guidance
from standards recommended by the Commit-
tee of Sponsoring Orgamzatlons of the Treadway
Commission, :

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

ding safe water 24/7 is our major goal,
ommitted to helping improve our com-
health in other ways, as well.

In 2005, we visited 1,054 classrooms with our
educational programs, reaching 44,622 children.
And more than 200 teachers attended our sum-
mer workshops,

_"fSﬁiile Kentucky!” is co-sponsored by the Uni-
" yetsity of Louisville School of Dentistry and the

Kentucky Dental Association and began its fourth
year of dental education. screening and free treat-
ment for school children in the area. In the 2005
‘school ‘vear, 31 schools in Jefferson, Bullitt, Shelby
and Nelson counties took part. About 15,000 chil-
dren saw the educational programs, 7.000 received
free dental screening and about 400 were sched-
uled for free dental tréatment in February. 2006,
In 2005, the program won the Kentucky-Ten-
nessee American Water Works Association Award
for commumnication and public service and gained
grants and other help from Alcoa, Colgate and the
American Dental Association Foundation.

A new program, “Tap Into Fitness)” was tested
at two local elementary schools in 2004-2005.
It teaches the importance of fitness and nutri-
tion, and illustrates how advertising affects health
choices. Developed in partnership with the Heu-
ser Clinic, the program concentrates on fifth grad-
ers. Riesearch showed that about 80 percent of the
children who participated showed improved phys-
ical fitness afterward The pmgram was expanded
_to five schoals for the 2005-2(106 school year.

Our Customer Advisory Council continued to
meet in 2005, providing valuable suggestions con-
cerning -our cperations and programs. Memibers
are volunteers who represent different segments of

LWC 0062
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five years.

the community and different types of customers.
Topics covered during the year included water
main breaks and our response; the wells project at
“the B. E. Payne plant; improvements and renova-
tions at the Crescent Hill reservoir: our customer
satisfaction surveys-and index;and customer com-
munications regarding drought conditions,

When Hurricane Katrina struck:the. Gulf Coast,
we provided more than 10,000 bottles of vur Pure
Tap water for rescue teams hurrying to the area.
We also offered to send maintenance and repair
crews and technical personnel if needed; however,
there were no requests for their services.

pany; employees and programs won awards
005 recognizing achievements in several

In the realm of water guality, we received the na-
tional Partnership for Safe Waters Five-Year Di

rector’s Award for continuing to provide drinking
water that surpasses federal quality standards. Both

the B.E. Payne and Crescent Hill treacment plants

were recognized for their accomplishiments, The
partnership was developed by:hr United States
Environmental Protection Agency and  other
water organizations working to provide high-
quality drinking water,

“Smile Kentucky” carned the American Water

Works Association Kentucky-Tennessee regional -

award for communication/public Service. The pro-
gram was also awarded grants from Alcoa, Colgate
and the American Dental Association Foundation.

QOur Local 1683 of the Amwerican Federatdion of
State, County and Municipal Employees won the
union’s Council 62 Award: “In acknowledgemerit
of the contributions made towards training and
cmpowering labor/management skills of the rank-
and-file members and management both locally
and nationally” The bugoing partnership between
the union and the company has won international
atrention for its effectiveness.

Our “Water Works” documentary video won first
place in the documentary profile category at the
national Tlometown Video Festival in June. It also
received the Philo Award for oustanding jour-

nalism by a government access television station

in the four-state region composed of Kentucaq,"

Indiana, Michigan and Ohio.

The American Gouncil of Engineering Compa-
nies of Kentucky gave Louisville Water Company
and consultants GRW Engineers its Engineer-

©ing Excellence Award for development of our

auwmated mapping and facilities management
geographic information system.

And our team won the overall 2005 American

Public Works Association Roadeo competition
for utilities and other public agencies in Jefferson

County.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & SUPPLEM.ENTAL INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

“The following ‘managernents' discuission and analysis of Louisville Water Company’s (“LWC”) financial performance
pravides an overview of the Compzmy s financial activities for the fiscal yeur ended December 31, 2005 as compared
with the prmr year. Please 1ead it in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements whlch foIlow this section. 1

OVERVIEW OF TI—IE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual finaneial report consists of three parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Financial Statements, and
Supplemental Data. The Financial Statements also include notes that explain in more detail some of the information in

the financial statements. The statements are followed by a section of Supplemental Data that further explains and sup- |
ports the information in the Financial Statements. The Financial Statements of the Company repart information about

the Company using accounting methods similar to those used by private sector water utility companies, except for the
reporting of contributions in aid of construction, equity capital and retained earnings. For financial reporting purpaoses,

the Company is considered a Special-purpose Government Engaged Only in Business-type Activities. These state-

ments ofler short-and long-term financial information about its activities. Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of |
the annual financial report are arrangzd and relate to one another.

FIGURE 4 s
Required Components of Louisville Water Company’s Annual Financial Report

Management'’s Basic Additional

Discussion . Financial <+ Information
and Analysis Statements
Statetent of Statement " Sttement Notes to the
Net Asscts of Revenues, of Cash Flows Financial
et Expenses and ; Statements
Changes in
Summary < - — > Detail

The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the Company’s assets and liabilities and provides information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to Company creditors (liabilities). It ako

“provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Company and assessing the liquidity and tinancial flexibil-
ity of the Company.

All of the current year’ revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Chang- |
es in Net Assets, This statement measures the success of the Company’s operations in meeting financial objectives aver '
the past year and can be used to determine whether the Company has successfully recovered all of its costs through its

.water rates and other charges, has earned a profit, and has maintained credit worthiness.

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpase of this statement is to pro-
vide information about the Company’s.cash reczipts, cash payments, and-net changes in cash resulting fram operations,
investing, and financing activities and provides information on the sources and uses of cash and the changes in cash
balances during the year.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

+ Total Assets increased by $27,683,106 or 3.8%, from 3723,.14'2-,9?3‘ in 2004 to $750,826,079 in 2005, due to
increases in Utility Plant that were financed from cash generated from operations, contributions in aid of construc-
tion, and draws from the Depreciation Fund and the System Development Charge Fund.

wuw. lowisvillewater. com — page 17
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¢ Operating Revenues increased by $11,768,203 or 11.4%, from $103,462,053 to $115,230,256, due to increased
water sales to residential, commercial and wholesale customers and increased sale of water revenues from a 6.5%
increase in water rates effective January 1, 2005.

* Operating Expenses increased by $6,352,469 or 9.1%, from $70,024,120 to $76,376,589, due to increases in Opera-
tion and Maintenance Expenses, Depreciation Expense, and Water Service Provided in Lieu of Taxes.

¢ Net Non-Operating Expenses decreased by §737,000 or 15.1% from $4,868,917 to $4,131,917. Decreases in
interest earned on investments and the amount of bond interest expense allocated to capital projects were offset by
decreases in interest paid on the Series 2000 and Series 2001 Bonds and the non-recurrence of Early Retirement
Incentive Program costs incurred in 2004,

* Net Income before dividends increased by $6,152,734 or 21.5%, from $28,569,016 to $34,721,750, due to increases
in sale of water which were greater than increases in operating expenses.

» Dividends Paid and Payable increased by $1,625,913 or 11.2%, from $14,552,137 to $16,178.050.

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

‘lotal Net Assets increased by $34,341,659 vt 6.0% in 2005 (scc Figure A 2). The largest portion of Ner Assefs is
Urility Plant, whicl increased by $41,255,516 in 2005 through capital improvements. The capital improvements were
funded by cash generated from operations, draws from the Depreciation Fund and the System Development Charge
Fund, and by Contributions in Aid of Construction from developers, customers and governmental agencies. Non-
Current Assets decreased by $11,262,043 due to the draws from the Depreciation Fund and the System Development
Charge Fund.There were deposits made ro the Infrastructure Replacement Reserve in the amount of $1,858,333
during 2005 following two years with no deposits to that reserve, Long-term Liabilities decreased by $8,243,129 due
to principal payments on the Series 2000 and 2001 Bonds made during the year and the continued buyout of a por-
tion of the refunding contracts payable to developers. Long-term debt is discussed in more detail in the section tded
Debt Adnunistration.

FIGURE A-2
Condensed Statement of Net Assets

3 2005 20_(}4 Difference Percent
Current Assets $ 26,115,893 § 28,426.260 $ (2,310,367) (8.1%)
Non-Current Assets 19,504,022 30,766,065 (11,262,043) (36.6%)
quuy Plant i 705,206,164 663,950,648 41,255,516 6.2%
Total Assets 750,826,079 723,142,973 27,683,106 3.8%
Current Liabilities 31,291,016 29,706,440 1,584,576 5.3%
Long~Term Liabilities Lk 113,994,507 122,237,436 - (8,243,129) (6.7%)
Total Net Assets $ 605,540,756 $ 571,199,097 $ 34,341,659 6.0%

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NETASSETS

Operating Revenues increased by $11,768,203 or 11.4% in 2005 (see Figure A-3). Water sales increased by 1,809

- million gallons in 2005. This is equivalent to approximately more than 17 days of billable consumption. The increase
in operating revenues is due to a 6.5% rate increase effective January 1, 2005 and addicional water sales to residential,
commercial, and wholesale customers.

Operating Expenses increased by $6,352,469. The key components of operating expenses are: Operation and Main-
tenance Expenses, Depreciation Expense, and Water Setvice Provided i Lieu of Taxes. Operations and Maintenance
bxpenses increased by $3,839,405 due to higher labor and labor-related overhead costs, contractual services, chemicals,
power, and transportation costs. Depreciation Expense increased by $1,584,211 due to increased investments in utility
plant, Taxes and Water Service in Licu of Taxes increased by $936,873 due to increased municipal water usage and
increased fire hydrant charges.

Net Non-Operating Expenses (non-operating expenses less non-operating income) decreased by $737,000 due to de-
creases in interest earned on investients and the amount of bond interest expense allocated to capital projects, which
were offset by decreases in interest paid on the Series 2000 and Series 2001 Bonds and the non-recurrence of Early
Reetirement Incentive Program costs incurred in 2004.

Net Income before Distributions and Contributions mcred:,ed by $0,152,734 duc to Operating Revenue increasing
faster than Operating Expenses. The formula for computing the dividend is established as a covenant in the Series
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1992 Bond Resolution (the Master Bond Resolution). The dividend is calculated as 60% of net income after deduct-
ing bond principal payments and certain other items. Dividends Paid and Payable increased by $1,625,913 or 11.2%,
from $14,552,137 to $16,178,050. : ;

Contributions in Aid of Construction are composed of: pipeline contributions from developers for water main exten-
sions and from governmental agencies for water miain relocations; service installation fees from customers; apportion-

~ment warrant fees and tapping fees from customers to extend water service to unserved areas; and system development

charges from customers for growth-related expansion. The level of capital contributions varies from year to year and
is affected by economic cycles. These types of projects are fully funded or nearly fully funded by outside entities in
advance of construction. Contributions in Aid of Construction decreased by $632,942 due to fewer Apportionment
Warrants issued following completion of the Jefferson County Water Extension Program in 2004.

FIGURE A-3
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

: 2005 2004 Difference Percent
Operating Revenue : $ 115,230,256 $ 103,462,053 $ 11,768,203 11.4%
Operating Expémes 76,376.589 70,024,120 £ 6,352,469 o FI1%
Net Operating Revenue 38,853.667 33,437,933 5,415,734 16.2%
Net Non-Operating Expenses 4,131,917 4,868,917 . (737,000) (15.1%)

Net Income Before Distributions
and Contributions a9 721,750 28,569,016 6,152,734 21.5%
Dividends Paid and Payable (16,178,050) (14,552 137) 1,625913 11.2%
Contributions in Aid of Construction 15,797,959 16,430,901 (632,942) (3.99)
Increase in Net Assets 34,341,659 30,447,780 3,803,879 12.8%
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 571,199,097 540,751,317 30,447,780 5.6%
Net Asscts, End of Year $ 605,540,756 $ 571,199,097 $ 34,341,659 6.0%

STATEMENT OF CASH ELOWS

Cash and Temporary Investments at the end of 2005 were $3,505,283 or 56.0% lower than at the end of 2004 (sce
Figure A-4). Cash from Operating Activities increased hy $9,020,557 due to incressed amounts received from custormn-
ers. Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities decreased by $16,364,087 due to increased acquisition and
construction of utility plant and increased dividends paid. Cash from Investing Activities increased by $1,462,824 due
to decreased non-operating expenses. : '

- FIGURE A-4
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
i 2005 2004 Difference Percent

Cash from Operating Activities $ 61,523,378 $ 52,502,821 $ 9,020,557 17.2%
Cash from Capital and Related i i

Financing Activities (76,880,441) (60,516,354) {16,364,087) 27.0% :
Cash from Investing Activities 11,851,780 10,388,956 1,462,824 14.1%
Change in Cash and Temporary '

Investments (3,505,283) 2,375,423 (5,880,706) (247 .6%)
Cash and Temporary Investments,

Beginning of Year 6,255,596 3,880,173 2,375,423 61.2%
Cash and Temporary Investments,

End of Year § 2,750,313 $ 6,255,596 (% 3,505,283) (56.0%)

In addition to the amounts held in Cash and Temporary Investments, LW C also holds funds for capital improve-
mients in reserves totaling $9,761,516 under Other Property and Investments on the Statement of Net Assets. The
total amount of funds available for operations and capital improvements decreased by $14,215,769 in 2005, from
$26,727,598 to $12,511,829, as LWC spent down the fund balances in advance of the next long-term borrowing,

o
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QAP!TAL ASSETS

The Company uses a five-year Capital Improvements Program (CIP) that is updated annuaﬂy Development of the
CIP is based an the Company’s current Facilities Plan and recommendations from the annual inspection of facilities.
The CIP also identifies anticipated capital expenditures for a total of 20 years. The Company’s current Facilities Plan
covers the years from 2002 through 2021.The Company expects to invest $406,976,953 in capital improvements dur-
ing 2006-2010.The key capital projects for 2006 are: construction of riverbank filtration facilities, renewal of buried
infrastructure, renovation of water treatment planc facilities, improvenents to storage and boosted pressure systems,
m\restments in information technology architectures, and transmission and distribution system improvements.

DEBT ADMINISTR.AT[ON

At December 31,2005, the Company had $74,010,000 principal outstanding for the Series 2000 Bonds and
$43,750,000 principal outstanding for the Series 2001 Bonds, for a total of $117,760,000. The aggregate net debt
service for 2005 increased due to the mmping up of bond principal payments for the Series 2000 Bonds. As shown in
Figure A-5, the debt service coverage of 3.38 times in 2005 is favorable to the statutory and bond resolition limits of
1.3 times. The Series 2000 Bonds are insured, callable beginning in 2010, and carry a Aaa rating from Moody'’s and a
AAA rating from Standard & Poor’s. The Series 2001 Bonds are not insured, but are also callable beginning in 2010,

“and carry a Aal rating from Moody’s and a AA rating from Standard & Poor’s. The Company’s debt rating is among
the very highest in the United States for-water utility revenue bonds,

Debt service funding for a new money borrowmg of $40,000.000 in 2006 is included in the 2006 Annual Budget.
Management has not yet determlned the t:mmg and structure of that borrowing but anticipates that it will occur
prior to mid-2006 and may include a variable interest rate component, The Board of Water Works has selected Public
Financial Mamgemcnt to serve as financial advisor for the contemplated borrowing. Management will also evaluate
opportunities for advance refunding the existing bonds at the time of the new money borrowing.

FIGURE A-5
Debt Service Coverage

! 2005 2004 Difference Percent
Income Available for Debt Service 40,446,290 $33,329216 $7.117.074 21.4%
Current Aggregate Net Debt Service 11,961,809 $11,368,396 $593,413 5.2%
Covag;ge Tines 3.38 2.93 0.45 15.4%

ARBITRAGE REBATE LIABIL IT“Y

' An arbitrage rebate calculation for the Series 2000 Bonds was performed by the PEM Group for the Install-
ment Computation Period fiom September 7, 2000 through September 7, 2005. During that period, LWC earned
$51,995.34 in pasitive arbitrage; however, no rebate payment is due because the praceeds allocable to the Project Fund
and the Capitalized Interest Fund met the requirements of the two-year spending exception to arbitrage rebate.

A preliminary arbitrage rebate calculation for the Series 2001 Bonds was also performed by the PEM Group in 2005,
This was accomplished in advance of the required rebate computation date in 2006 due to the complexity of the
financings that preceded the Series 2001 Bonds and to allow for accrual of any arbitrage rebate lability. Based on the
computation by the PFM Group, the amount of the arbitrage earﬁings from March 2001 through December 2005
that must be rebated to the U.S. Treasury was computed as $608,250 and was accrued on the 2005 financial state-
ments. Staff is also accruing approximately $12,000 each month for additional arbitrage earnings in 2006.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD

The Company adopted Statement No.71 of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FAS 71) for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2005. This statement provides guidance in preparing financial statements of most regulated
public utilities. The type of regulation covered by this statement permits rates to be set at levels intended to recover the
estimated costs of providing regulated services or products, For a number of reasons, revenues intended to cover some
costs are provided either before or after the costs are incurred. If regulation provides assurance that incurred costs will
be recovered m the future, this statement requites companies to capitalize those costs. If current recovery is provided
for costs that are expected to be incurred in the future, this statement requires companies to recognize those current
receipts as liabilities. LW C’s rates for regulated services and products are subject to approval by its governing board, the
Board of Water Works, which is empowered by statute to establish rates that bind customers. The regulated rates are
designed to recover the specific costs of prov1dmg regulated services and productq
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In view of the demand for the regulated services and products and the level of competition, direct and indirect, it is
reasonable to assume that rates set at levels that will recover LWC’s costs can be charged to and collected from cus-
tomers. This criterion considers anticipated changes in levels of demand or competition during the recovery period
of the costs. The Board of Water Works authorized the capitalization of research costs for preliminary engineering for
Crescent Hill Filter Plant Advanced Treatment Technology Options in the amount of $2.500.000 as a regulatory asset

_that would otherwise be charged to expense, based on: (a) it is probable that future revenue in an amount at least equal
to the capitalized costs will result from inclusion of that cost in allowable costs for rate-making purposes and (b) based
on gvailable evidence, the future revenue will be provided to permit recovery of the previously incurred cost rather
than to p1ov1dt: for expected levels of similar future costs.

These casts will be amortized over five years and recovered through rates in equal amounts over that same period
beginning in 2006. The primary effect of this statement will be to better match the expense of this research with the
period in which water rates will recover this expense.

RISK MITIGATION/R ATE STABILIZATION RESERVE EVALUATED

Management comsidered the establishment of a risk mitigation/rate stabilization reserve in 2005 to allow for greater
flexibility in findncing business risks while optimizing the stability of water rate changes and dividend payments.
Staff evaluated several funding sources for creating this reserve. At that time, it appeared the most expeditious method
would be from existing cash reserves. However, after reviewing this matter with Bond Counsel, it was determined that
the reserve could be established without adverse impact on bondholders only through deferred dividend payments.
Also, the creation of the reserve would require a complex change to the dividend covenant in the Master Bond Reso-
lution that would have the unintended effect of making the dividend calenlation less transparent. Management has
determined that further consideration of establishing this reserve will be deferred pending a review of bond covenants
during a new money or refunding bond issue.

- RIVERBANK FILTRATION TUNNEL PROJECT DEFERRED

LWC opened bids for the Riverbank Filtration Tunnel and Pump Station Project at the B. E. Payne Water Treatment
Plant in March 2005. The low bid of $48.4 million exceeded the estimate of $31.0 million by $17.4 million. Manage-
ment conducted a value engineering exercise with the project engineering firm to consider design modifications or
scope alterations that would allow the project to be constructed within budget while meeting the funcuonal ebjective
of delivering a 45 million-gallons-per-day supply wing the riverbank filtradon method. The major areas of discrep-
ancy between the estimate and bid amounts include: the gas tunnel classification, construction cost escalation, tunnel
shaft construction, limited construction hours, and limited competition for the project. The recommended scope fol-
lowing the value engineering work was to construct a 6,000-linear-foot hard rock tunnel and three horizontal col-
lector wells with the construction shaft utilized and interconnected to the existing low-lift pump station. The project
budget was increased from $37.3 million to $40.8 million and is scheduled to be re-bid in August 2006.

As a result of the decision to defer award of the construction contract, the borrowing that was planned for 2005 was
also deferred. The 2005 Budget contained net interest expense of $983,333, based on interest expense of $1,333,333
for a planned borrowing of $40.000,000 at five percent interest on May 1, 2005 offset by $350,000 of interest income
on the investment of bond proceeds. The Board of Water Works approved a recommendation that the funds included
in the 2005 water rates for net interest expense be instead deposited to the Infrastructure R eplacement Reserve. This
increased the deposit to this reserve in 2005 from an original budget level of $875,000 to $1,858,333.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXTYEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

Management commissioned an in-depth analysis of historical water trends following lower water sales in 2003 and
2004 in order to update the water sales forecast contained in the long-range financial plan. Monthly data was com-
piled for the 30-year period from January 1975 through December 2004 for all customer classes. The overall per
customer trend for total usage/total customers over the 30-year period is clearly downwards for the combined
customer classes. Although the analysis did not specifically address causes for the decline in usage, management
attributes the decline primarily to the introduction of low-flow [ixtures and other conservation devices, the dramatic
decline in industrial sales over the period and reduction in average size of houseliold.

The rate of reduction in sales per customer for all customer classes has declined approximately 20% over the 30-year
period. The rate of decline for industrial customers is more significant, at approximately 45% for the period. The resi-
dential customer class showed a more moderate decrease of 7% over the period. Conversely, commercial and wholesale
sales have increased at 9% and 20% respectively in the last 30 vears. The analysis also modeled the forecast for con-
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sumption over the next 20-year period based on the historic trends for consumption per customer and for growth in
the number of custamer accounts. This analysis shows that total consumption over the next 20 years is projected to be
essentially flat and is dependent upon an increase in the number of customers to offset the decrease in usage per cus-
tomer. Staff has also evaluated several different growth scenarios over the 20-year period to project rotal consumption
if the current growth in customers slows to ene-half of the projected rate and if there is no growth in the number of
customers. These scenarios emphasize that total consumption would decrease over the next 20 years if the net change
in number of customers slows below the predicted amounts.

Declining sales per customer is a nacional trend. Most water utilities benchmarked by statf report similar long-term
trends in declining sales when they have conducted similar data analysis. Some water utilities in areas of the country
where water resources are limited and rates for service are high have actively promoted reduced consumption per
customer through water conservation programs and periodic water use restricions. The impact of nationally mandated
low-flow fixtures in new housing is having similar effects on water sales per customer across the country. The redue-
tion in residents per household is also 2 natignal trend. Likewise, the significant drop Louisville has experienced in
industrial sales from manufacmring industrics is consistent with a significant downward trend nationally over the past
30 years.

If no action is taken ta offset the trend'in declining sales per customer, total consuniption over the next 20 years is
projected to be flat. And, if the number of customers does not increase by the predicted amounts, then total consump-
non 15 expected to decrease. A flat or dedreasing sales trend has significant implications for short-and long-term finan-
cial planning. This includes impacts on the LWC’s capacity to fund: continuing increases in the cost of operations and
maintenance expenses; existing and future capital investment requirements; expected net income and dividends paid o
the owner; and increases in customer expectations for service.

This will require a balancing of providing adequate finaneial resources to deliver high customer satisfaction while
keeping rate increases within an acceprable level. At this point, rate increases contemplated in our current 10-year
financial plan exceed the forecast change in the Consumer Price Index by more than one percent. This is without
considering the impact of'a flat or decreasing sales trend. A forther risk is the decrease in customer satisfaction if
customers experience significant rate increases to compensate for declining sales or reductions in the level of water
quality or service they receive.

Utilities sometimes consider expanding into ventures beyond their primary business that build upon their strengths.
These ventures can take two primary forms:

* Horizontal integrition — The acquisition of additional business activitics at the same level of the value chain,
achieved by internal expansion (organic growth) or external expansion (mergers and acquisitions). This is pursued
to achieve cconomies of scalé to enhance profit margins.

* Vertical integration — The degree to which a firm owns its upstream suppliers and its downstream buyers. Fxpan-
sion of activities downstream is forward integration. Expansion upstream is backward integration. This is pursued to

- improve coordination and capture new profits. g

Horizontal integration of water utilitics typically remains as a regulated enterprise, where the amount of profit is

limited to the amount deemed fair by the governmental regulator. Vertical integration provides opportunities for non-

regulated activities, with profits limited only by what the market will bear.

LW C has successfully pursued horizontal integration since 1991 under the frameworks described in the Jefferson
County Extension Program, Bullit County Extension Program, and the Regionalization Policy. As a reqult, the
geographic area for retail service has approximately doubled in that time. The Company has also provided billing and
collection services for a fee to wastewater utilities serving our customer base. The Company has previously evaluated
but not pursued vertical integration opporranities such as laboratory services and bortled water. Research has shown
several examples of successes and failures by other large nvestor-owned water utilicies.

A ream of LWC munagers was chartered in carly 2005 to identify and evaluate new frontiers of revenue opportuni-
ties through the concept of “Strategy Innovation.” This requires a complete evaluation of the Company’s business
model and a wiliingness to make changes to accommodate new revenue opportunities. A fundamental assumption of
strategy innovation is that by theroughly evaluating new markets and aligning with corporate competencies, there are
“frontiers™ of new revenue opportunities that can be successfully entered. A project timeline has been developed for

a deliverable in 2006. This will allow the results of the strateglc innovation process to flow seamlessly into the next
update of the Strategic Plan
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Management believes that the 2006 Budget adequately addresses all revenue requirements. Water rates will be in-
creased for retail water serviee by 5.0% for water service on and after January 1, 2006 Water rates will also be increased
for wholesale water service effective May 1, 2006. The rate change for three wholesale customers are also subject to
approval by the Kentucky Public Service Commission.

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

LWC considers one of the roles of management as pumng assets at risk in order to achieve busmess objectives while
the role of risk management is to minimize the variance between business objectives and actual results. Risk can be
defined as occurrences which may adversely attect our ability to achieve our objectives and successfully execute our
strategies, LWC has developed an Enterprise Risk Management Program to identify, assess, and manage risks and
ensure adequate business risk control are in place. Business risk controls are the processes, plans, structures and systems
put into place to mitigate risks.As part of the 2004-2008 Strategic Plan, management has identified these key con-
stituents. objectives and risks:

of work life, continuous learning, employee
contribution, and well being.

Comnstituents - Objectives . Risks

Customers Meet and exceed customer needs and ex- Winter emergency; major loss of information
pectations, including providing appropriate technology architectures; loss or severe damage to
information on product quality and services. | communications systems; adverse media reports about

ILWC and/or industry; publicized threat or potential
act of terrorism; and destruction of or major damage
to corporate headquarters,

Water Quality Assure safe water supply, meet water quality Continued use of liquid ch!qrine and ammonia as
regulations and customer expectations for disinfectants; destruction of or major damage to 4
distribution water quality. critical LWC production facility; major Contamina-

tion of Ohio River; health-related issues in finished
water; and disruption of chemical supplies.

Stockholder Recognize and support the stockholder’s Uninsured property or liability loss: TWC cost strue-
interests. ture outpaces revenues; acquisition of regional utilities

by competitoss; inadequate due diligence (Or merger
or acquisition; and MSD Consent Decree adversely
impacts LWC finances and operations.

Employees Provide an environment which values quality | TWC healthcare costs continue to escalate; work-

place violence; escalating cost of henefits other than
healthcare; market competition for technical posi-

tions; deterioration of union relationship; and adverse

changes in LWC weork culture.

Elected Officials

Maintain effective communications and rela-

tionships with elected officials and their staffs.

Regulatory Agencies

Sustain effective partnerships with public
health, water quality, and regulatary agencies
to better serve our customers.

Failure to monitor regulated activities; and increased
stringency of contarmination regulations.

Community

Actively support employee and corporate
participation in establishing and supporting
community goals.

Suppliers

Build supplier and contractor partnerships to

support our ability to meet and enhance stan-
dards and service goals and link suppliers and
contractors to our diversity strategics,
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Management intends to continue to develop the Enterprise Risk Management program prope ional in scale and
complexity to the size and nature of our business, integrated and transparent, and using a common set of measures.
The Company enterprise risk management approach is consistent with the model promulgated by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission: The Treadway Commission is a veluntary, private
sector group jointly sponsored by five major professional accounting and financial associations, and the COSO model
phces its greatest emphasis on the evaluation of internal control effectiveness and upon risk- based audltmg

FUTURE AFFC)R_DAEIL} TY OF WATER AND SEWER BILLS

The 2[1069015 Long Range Financial Plan contemplates annual water rate increases of 5% during 2006-2010. In
addition, Metropolitan Sewer District anticipates annual sewer rate increases of 6.5% to 14, 5% as a result of a consent
decree filed with U.S. District Court on April 25, 2005. As a result, the combined water and sewer bi- monthl‘y bill
could exceed $100 and may become unaffordable for some low-income custonmers.

Affordability is the ability of customers to, pay for utility services billed to them. The affordability threshold is the
~ percentage of income that a household can afford to pay to a utility through user charges. Factors affecting affordabil-
ity fora community include the median Lowsehold income, poverty levels, and minimum Social Security and Supplc—
mental Security Income bencfits. The affordability threshold is rypically set by policy makers at 2% for water service
“iplus 2% for wastewater service, Inability to pay for service results in a combination of lower revenues and higher
expenses for the utility due to late payments, service disconnections, and uncollectibie accounts.

The median Louisville residential bi-monthly water and sewer bill i in 2005 is $72.48 for 12,000 gallons ($32.86 for
water and $39.62 for sewer). Thcsc. bill amounts are above the current 2% threshold for minimum Social Security
benefits, but below the 2% poverty threshold for a three-person household, and well below the 2% threshold for an
average household in Jefferson County. If the poverty threshold remainsat the current level and water and sewer rates
increase at projected levels. then the combined watcr and sewer bill is forecast to exceed the affordability threshold for
poverty-level customers by 2009. :

LWC does not have an aﬁ‘ordabxhty program comparable to cities with higher water rates :md/ or larger portions of
the population living below the poverty level. Affordability programs in those cities typic'llly congist of 2 combination
of rate design anditargeted assistance programs. R educed bill delinquencies and related service costs are often cited as
the primary benefits sought by utilities when implementing an affordability program. The most typical drawbacks to
aﬁ'ordabﬁlty programs are the cost of administration, the difficulty in sustaining the program over a long period, and
the perceived unfairness of one class of customers being subsidized by the other dlasses. Staff is currently evaluating
alternatives related to momhlv billing and automated meter reading. And, since affordablhty problems will likely occur
farst for bills with summer n'rzgatmn water usage, staff is considering options for equalized or level billing,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND PROCEDURES

‘The Board of Water Works is committed to effective governance and halds management to the highest standards of
accountablhry To assure continued public confidence in the financial integrity and operations of LWC, the Board of
Water Works expects management to adhere Lo these guiding prnmplcs transparency of financial conditions and op-
erations; transparency of transactions-with interested parties with no improper benefits at the expcnse of the organiza-
tion; and access to sound counsel unaffected by conflict of interest.

In addition, the Board of Water Works has adoptedmfar itself and the Audit Committee, for management, and for the

external auditors—consistent governance practices identified in the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, including:
External Auditor Independence - The external auditors are prohibited from providing nonaudit services (o
LWC unless extenuating circumstances exist and the Audit Committee approves the work in advance. Also,
the cxtemal auditors must report to the audic committee: all critical accounting policies and practices used
by the client that have been diseussed with management; all alternative weatments of financial information,
ramifications of such use, and the treatment preferred by the public accounting firm; and other material writ-
ten communication between the public accounﬂng firm and management, such as the management letter or
Schedule of unadjusted differences.

Corporate Responsibility - Each-member of the Audit Committee shall be 2 member of the Board of Water
Works and shall otherwise be independent. The Audit Committee shall have authority and funding to engage ...
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independent counsel or other advisors, as necessary to carry out its duties. Senior Financial Officers are pro-
*« hibited fiom taking any action to frandulently influence, coerce, manipulate, or mislead an auditor engaged in
the performance of an audit for the purpose of rendering the financial statements materially misleading.

Enhanced Financial Disclosures - Personal loans to any director or executive officer of the Company by the
Company are prohibited.

Corporate and Criminal Fraud Accountability - The Internal Auditor will maintain records of all complaints
covered by whistleblower procedures, trackmg their receipt, investigation and resolution and shall prepare a
periodic report to the Audit Committee until the matter identified in the complaint has been resolved to the
satisfaction of the Audit Committee. The Company will not discharge, demote. suspend, threaten, harass or
in any manner discriminate against any cmployee in the terms and conditions of his/her emp Yment based
upon the lawful action of any such employee with respect to good faith reporting of a matter covered by
whistleblower procedures. -

" Certification - The Treasurer will inelude the following certification in each month’s financial report pro-
vided to the Board of Water Works: “In connection with the accompanying monthly financal report of Louisville Water !
Company, I hereby certify that, to my knowledge, the mjbrmalwn contamed in the report fairly presents in all material
respects, the financial condition and resulis of the Company. - -

Staff is alse evaluating recommendations contained in Guidance for Smaller Public Companies Reporting on Internal Control
ovey Financial Reporting from the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission for additional
improvements to our governance practices.

RETUR\I ON EQUITY TARGET AND RESULTS

The equity capital invested by Metro Louisville in LWC accomplishes these purpeses: to maintain control of the

_ entity responsible for providing safe water for public health and fire protection to the community;to ensure commit-
ment to outstanding quality, service, and value as perceived by its customers; to earn 2 market return on the financial
stake it has in the Compary; to grow the value of the Company as a going concern; and to coordinate infrastructure
investments in support of community goals. Louisville and Jefterson County Metro Government has, through its direct
investmentin LWC, placed financial capital at risk in order to fund the infrastructure investments necessary 4o serve
the water needs of the citizens and businesses of Louisville and adjacent conmunities. A target return i3 established in
the annual budget as the “cost-of equity capital” to be recovered through the water rates. The Board of Water Works
has the sole autherity to establish the annual budget and retail water rates through KRS 96.260.

The Board of Water Works role is one of accurately identifyingand effectively balancing the interests of its constituen-
cies. When approving the return contained in the budget and water rates, the Board is acting equally and concurrently
as: the representative of Metro Government’s interest in a financial return on behalf of the Mayor and Metro Couneil;
the regulator of water rates on behalf of the citizens of Metro Louisville; and the protector of bondholder interests as
identified in the Master Bond Resolution on behalt of the Bond Teustee. :

The target return- on—equlty is based on a return-cn-equity methodology adopted by the Board to standardize the
carnings component in the annual budget and water rates. The target return percentage is computed as the simple
‘average of returns on equity allowed by state public service commissions for investor-owned utilities with common
equity of more than $100 million. The target return percentage is then multiplied by Metro Louisville’s equity stake in
LWC to establish a target return for the year.

The primary disadvantage of the current methodology is that stockholder’s equity for LWC is no longer published

mn the audited financial statements following adoption of GASB 34 in 2002. Also, revenues deposited into the Infra-
structure Replacement Reserve are not included in the stockholder’s equity for the purpose of computing the return.
Using the Common Stock; R etained Farnings and Total Equity Capiral reported in 2001 audited financial statements
and using Income Before Distributions and Contributions less Dividends Paid and Payable from audited financial
statements for subsequent years, Figure A<6 below describes management'’s computation of stockholder’s equity for the
‘year ended December 31, 2005.
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FIGURE A-6
Computation of Stockholder’s Equity
Common Stock, par value $100 per share, 12,751 shares outstanding

Retained Earnings December 31, 2001
Less Cummulative Deposits to Infrastructure R eplacement

Reeserve 2001 and prior
Total Equity Capital December 31, 2001

Plus Income Before Distributions and Contributions 2002
Less Distributed Property 2002

Less Dividends Paid and Payable 2002

Less 2002 Deposits to Infrastructure Replacement Reserve
Total Equity Capital December 31, 2002

Plus Income Before Distributions and Contributions 2003
Less Dividends Paid and Payable 2003
Total Equity Capital December 31, 2003

Plus Income Before Distributions and Contributions 2004
Less Dividends Paid and Payable 2004
Total Equity Capital December 31, 2004

$ 1275100
285,319,317

(31,725.000)
$ 254,869,417

27,832,748
(879,564)
(12,379,623)
(2,520,000)

$ 266,922,978

24,580,534
(12,318,831)
$ 279,184,681

28,569,016
(14,552,137)
$7293,201,560

Plus Income Before Distributions and Contributions 2005 34,721,750
Less Dividends Paid and Payable 2005 (16,178,050)
Less 2005 Deposits to Infrastructure Replacement Reserve (1,858,333)
Stockholder’s Equity Eligible for Return Computation December 31, 2005 $ 309,886,927

The net income for 2005 available for the return-on-equity computation was $32,863,417 based on Net Income
Before Distributions and Contributions of $34,721,750 less deposits to the Infrastructure Replacement Reserve of
$1,858,333. The return-on-equity earned by LWC in 2005 was 10.61%, which compares favorably to the return-on-
equity target for 2005 0f 9.22%.

L& ONTACTING THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, ratepayers, customers, creditors and stockholder with a general
overview of the Company’ finances and to show the Company’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have

questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Treasurer’s Office at LWC, 550 South

Third Sereet, Louisville, K, 40202.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Water Works
Louisville Water Company
Louisville, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of the Louisville Water Company as of December
31, 20053, and related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Louisville Water Company’s management.
Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. The financial state-
ments of Louisville Water Company as of December 31, 2004 were audited by other auditors whose report
dated February 11, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluat-
ing the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the 2005 financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Louisville Water Company as of December 31, 2005, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

The Management’ Discussion and Analysis o pages 17 through 26 s not a required parc of the basic finan-
cial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inqui-
ries of management regarding the methods of nieasurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the
Louisville Water Company taken as a whole. The supplemental data contained on pages 43 through 46 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supplemental data has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial state-
ments taken as a whole.

Lo 5 Loy e

Louisville, Kentucky
February 17, 2006
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STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

December 31, 2005 and 2004

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and temporary investments

$ 6,255,596

Accounts reccivable 14,498,504
Contracts receivable 204,121
Materials and supplies 5,802,051
Bond service account - Series 2000 510,837
Bond service account - Series 2001 489,400
Prepaid expenses 633,547
Accrued interest receivable 32,195
Total Current Assets 28,426,260
Utility Plant, net of accumulated depreciation 663,950,648
Noncurrent Assets
Non-utility property 106,576
Contracts receivable, less current portion 2,912,935
Reserves 25,172,003
Retirement plan past service costs, net 1,351,541
Unamortized debt discount and expense 941,070
Preliminary engineering charges 262,798
Other deferred charges {0 anag 19,142
‘Jotal Noncurrent Assets ; 1‘51,50%023 30,766,065
Total Assets § 750,826,079 $ 723,142,973
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December 31, 2005 and 2004

: 2005 2004
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities e
Accounts payable $ 3088551 $ 2,267,335 ,
Sewer collections (contra) - 9;25:_1-,657 9.041,539 ‘
Customer advances, currently refundable o . 23,271
Customer deposits 6,263,606 4,316,018
Tax collections payable o .4‘5},'};71. 256,289
Accrued interest payable : 724,437 406,598
Dividend payable At 1,853,257
Contracts payable, retainage percentage . 1,514”:‘7‘77 1,305,942
Accrued payroll 315571 501,523
Accrued vacation and sick leave - 1,633,@48 1,894,438
Insurance reserve - 1,213,,&37 886,842 :
Bonds and notes payable, current portion . 6,4_32 500 6,453,388
Total Current Liabilities - §1;2'9'11', 6 29,706,440 |
Long-Term Liabilities . |
Customer advances for construction ' 2“,444437 4,477,436
Bond payable, less current portion . III,SSQ,GUG 117,760,000
Total Long-Term Liabilisies _ 113,994,307 122,237,436 ;
Total Lisbilities 145,285,323 151,943,876 |
- \
Net Assets S
Unrestricted . -2,85?:,982 5,289 588 i
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt ' -537','1.73,--664 539,737,260 ‘
Restricted, expendable . '_1;5;-509-,-1 10 26,172,249
Total Net Asscts 605,540,756 571,199,097

Total Liahilities and Net Assets

§ 750,826,079

$ 723,142,973

See Notes to Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended December 31

2005 2004
Revenues : - :
Operating revenues $ 115,230,256 $ 103,462,053
Operating Expenses o _ :
Operation and maintenance expenses 47,441,974 43,602,569
Depreciation and amortization '1;3,3-3"(3,163' 16,821,561
Taxes and water service provided in lieu of taxes - 9435,189 8,498,316
Lass from sale and salvage of retired assets 1,169,263 1,101,674
Total Operating Expenscs * . 76,376,589 70,024,120
Net Operating Revenue 38,853,667 33,437,933
Non-Operating Income (Expense)
Interest income 690,549 1,024,396
Interest expense (4,855,‘939} (4,769,422)
Other income (expense) : 33,463 (1,123,891)
Net Non-Operating Expenses _ (4,131.917) (4,868,917)
Income Before Distributions and Contributions . 34,72 ,_750 28,569,016
Distributions and Centributions B
Dividends paid and payable ; '6316;1;73,9_59) (14,552,137)
Contributions in aid of construction 15,797,959 16,430,901
Total Distributions and Contributions (380,091) 1,878,764
Increase in Net Assets 34,341,659 30,447,780
Net Assets, beginning of year - BILIMO9T 540,751,317
Net Assets, end of year $ 605,540,756 $ 571,199.097

See Notes 10 Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2005 2004
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 107,478,375 % 94,614,677
Cash paid t suppliers and others (24,574,977) (21,932,456)
Cash paid to emplovees for services (21,380,020) (20,179,400
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities . 51,523,378 52,502,821
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of utlity plant (61,700,408) (52,414,164)
Contributions in aid of construction 15,797,959 16,430,901
Customer advances for construction (2,0:33,129) 1,624,399
Reefunds of customer advances for construction (23,271) (3,772,181)
Preliminary engineering charges 90,850 711,298
Principal paid (6,180,888) (5,608,101)
Interest paid (5,038,089) (4,787 631)
Dividends paid (17,728,956) (12,698,880)
Non-utility property reduction -(63\4,;539) (1,995)
Net Cash Used In Capital and Related Financing Activitics (76,880,441) (60,516,354)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities .
Reserved funds 10,710,487 9,365,771
Restricted funds (47,347) 453,628
Contracts 256,093 261,376
Conrracts, retainage percentage 208,336 371,423
Interest received - 690,549 1,060,649
Other non-operating income (expense) 33,462 (1,123,891)
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 11,851,780 10,388,956
Net Change in Cash and Temporary Investments (3,505,283) 2,375,423
Cash and Temporary Investments, Beginning of Year 6,255,596 3,880,173
Cash and Temporary Investments, End of Year § 2750313 $ 6,255,596

Corntinued
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—CONTINUED

Years Ended December 31
B e G

Reconciliation of Net Operating Revenue
to Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Net operating revenue $ 33,437,933
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenue
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 18,072,837
Amartization of retirement plan past service costs 213,402
Loss from sale and salvage of retired assets 1,101,674
Increase (decrease) in cash due to changes in
current assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (3,226,060)
Materials and supplies (753,508)
Prepaid expenses 37,058
Other deferred charges 62,276
Accounts payable 1,147,135
Accounts payable, sewer collections 1,694,920
Customer deposits 895,979
Tax collections payable 106,327
Accrued vacation and sick leave (479,235)
Accrued payroll 225,585
Insurance reserve 62,498

Net Cash Provided By Opeérating Activities

See Notes to Financial Statemenis
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deeernber 31, 2005 and 2004
NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of the Business: The Louisville Water Company (“The Company™) is a provider of water and related
services to residential, commercial, industrial, fire and wholesale consumers in Jefferson, Bullitt and Oldham Counties.
The Company is wholly owned by the Louisville Jefferson County Metro Government (“Metro Government™) and
therefore follows Government Accounting Standards.

Basis of Presentation: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of Amierica as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Stun-
dards Board (*GASB”).The financial statements include the accounts of Louisville Water Cowpany and have been
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred. The Company reports as a Business Type
Activity (“BTA"). BTAs are thosec activities that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for
goods and services.

The Company classifies resources for accounting and reporting purposes into the following net asset categories:

* Invested in eapital assets, net of related debt. Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal
balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

« Restricted:

Nonexpendable- Net assets subjected to externally imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently
by the Company.

Expendable- Net assets whose use by the Company is subject to externally imposed stipulations that can be
| fulfilled by actions of the Company pursuant to those stipulations or that expire by the passage of time.

+ Unrestriced: Net assets whose use by the Company is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. Unrestricted
net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board of Water Works or may
otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.

_ Method of Accounting: The Company’s accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted

i in the United States of America for water utilities. Although the Company is not subject to regulation, the accounts
are maintained in accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed by the National Association of Regula-
tory Utility Commissinners, except with respect to the treatment of gains and losses from the retirement or disposition
of utility plant. The Company recognizes gain or loss, mcluding cost of removal, upon the retirement or disposition

of utility plant rather than the transfer of cost to accumulated depraciation, as provided by the National Association of

' Regulatory Utility Commissioners.

i Estimates in the Financial Statements: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
i principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assnmprions
thar affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resules
could differ from those estimates.
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Utility Plant: Utility plant is stated at cost of acquisition or construction, including certain indirect costs. The Com-
pany applies the straight-line method of depreciation to the estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable
property. The estimated useful lives of significant asset categories are as follows:

Buildings 50 to 100 years
Pipelines 65 to 100 years
Fire hydrants 50 years
Services 40 vears
Meters 15 years
Equipment 5 to 10 years
Trucks and autos 5 years

Depreciation expense for 2005 was $19,385,049 of which §975,777 was allocated to other operating expenses. Depre-
ciation expense for 2004 was $18,076,337 of which $1,251,276 was allocated to other operating expenses.

Capitalized Interest: The Company follows the practice of capitalizing interest during construction on capital proj-
ects. Interest in the amount of $1,228,611 and $1,578,120 was capitalized during 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Revenue: Revenuc is recognized in the period in which billings are rendered to consumers. The Company does not
accrue revenue for water delivered but not billed.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: The allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on historical collec-
tion experience and a review of the current status of existing receivables,

Materials and Supplies: Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market.

Statements of Cash Flows: For purposes of the statements of cash flows. the Company considers all highly liquid
investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be temporary investments.

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave: Employees’ vested and accumulated vacation and sick leave are recorded as
liabilities in the financial statcements. Accrued vacation and sick leave was $1,683,048 at December 31, 2005, and
$1,894,438 at December 31, 2004.

Customer Deposits: In 2005, the Company implemented a security deposit policy for all customers applying for

residential, commercial or industrial water service who: (i) have not had an account with the Louisville Water Com- |
pany for three consecutive years; (i) have had a previous account in bad debt or bankruptcy status; or (iii) have had ‘
a service disconnected due to non-payment within the last three years of service. The Company refunds the security

deposit when: (i) a customer closes the account; or (ii) the customer has paid their bill in a timely manner for three

consecutive years. Total security deposits at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $777,795 and $99,495, respectively.

Customer deposits are included as current liabilities on the statement of net assets.

Customer Advances for Construction: The Company requires customers to make a deposit for the cost of con-

struction of pipelines and special services. Advances are refundable, within certain time limits up to twenty years, under

the terms of the various contracts. The customer advance accounts reflect the liability for probable refunds of these
construction advances. Once the refund period has expired, any balance is transferred to net assets as a contribution in 1
aid of construction.

Investment Securities: [nvestments are teported at fair value with gains and losses included in the statements of
revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. Gains or losscs on dispositions are deterined using the specific identifi-
cation method.

Union Employees: The Company has numerous employees who are covered by a collective bargaining agreement.
At December 31, 2005, approximately 48% of the Company'’s employees were covered by a collective bargaining
agreement. The existing agreement expired January 31, 2006 and was renegotiated for 5 years, expiring January 31,
2011, and ratified on January 31, 2006.

Taxes: The Company, by virtue of its ownership by the Metro Government, is exempt from taxation by federal,
state and local taxing authorities. However, the Company is liable for certain other taxes and provides water and fire
services in lieu of taxes to Metro Government. Tax expense, which includes water and fire services in lieu of taxes for
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December 31, 2005 and 2004, was $9,435,189 and $8,498,316, respectively.

Reclassification: The 2004 statement of net assets has been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation. Such
reclassifications have no effect on the total assets, total liabilities, or net asscts.

NOTE 2- ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE |
Accounts receivable include:

Accounts Receivable

Year Ended December 31
. ; 2005 2004
Water § 5,202,338 $ 4,942,935
Sewer (contra) 8,577,357 8,362.353
Other 1,702,916 1,906,271
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (692,456) (713,055)
$ 14,790,155 $ 14,498,504

NOTE 3 - 2001 BOND ISSUE RESOLUTION FUNDS

Bond Reserve Account: The Master Bond Reesolution requires that a bond reserve account be established at one-
half of the highest future annual maximum aggregate net bond service of $6,119,715 to be paid in 2014. The fund

is to be used to pay maturing bonds and intetest in the event funds in the Bond Service Account are not sufficient.
Otherwise, funds may not be withdrawn until the bond issue is paid in full. However, the income earned on invest-
ments may be transferred to the Bond Service Account. The reserve is invested in U. S. Treasury Bonds and is stated at
fair value.

Depreciation Fund: The Master Bond Resolution requires the Company to make monthly deposits of an amount
equal to onc-twelfth of an amount not less than the annual depreciation charges into a depreciation fund. The balance
includes interest income earned and the gain on sale of property and is available to fund capital improvements to the
water system. The fund is invested in a sweep account. This fund and the funding requirements are also included in the
2000 bond issue (see Note 4).

Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund: 'The Master Bond Resolution was revised to provide for the creation
and funding in 1993 of the Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund to support the infrastructure main replacement
and rehabilitation projects. Budgeted funding was $875,000 and $2,600,000 for 2005 and 2004, respectively. The total
actual deposits were $1,858,333 in 2005 and there were no deposits to the fund in 2004. The balance at December
31,2005 is stated at fair value and represents the remaining funds and interest earned on monies invested in a sweep
account.

U. S. Treasury State and Local Government Fund: The Series 2 Note Reserve was established in the amount of
$1,440,400 pursuant to the Master Bond Resolution. The note was paid in August 1993 and the reserve amount was
transferred to the Company and was deposited in the U.S. Treasury State and Local Government Fund. The excess
funds from the 2001 Bond Refunding were deposited in this fund. The fund is invested in U.S. Treasury bonds and is
stated at fair value.

Bond Service Account: Except to the extent that the interest and principal are to be paid from other available
sources, the Company is required to deposit monthly, into the Trustee’s Bond Service Account, one-sixth of the
amount of the next succeeding interest payment on the 2001 Bonds outstanding and one-twelfth of the next matur-
ing principal of those bonds. The account is invested in a government obligation mutnal fund and is stated at fair value.
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NOTE 4 - 2000 BOND ISSUE RESOLUTION FUNDS i

Bond Reserve Account: The resolution authorizing the Bond Issue of 2000 requires that a bond reserve account be
established at one half of the highest future annual maximum aggregate net bond service. As an aleernative, the Reso-
lution provides for deposit of an insurance policy, surety bond or other comparable sccurity into the Reserve Account
in an amount sufficient to meet the bond reserve requirement. The Company maintains an insurance policy to meet
this requirement. The policy is to be used to pay maturing honds and interest in the event funds in the Bond Service
Account are not sufficient.

——

Depreciation Fund: The Series 2000 Bond Resolution authorizing the Bond Issue of 2000 requires the Company to

maintain the depreciation fund in the same manner as required for the 2001 series (refunding 1992) bond issue (see
Note 3).

Bond Service Account: Per the Series 2000 Bond Resolution, except to the extent that the interest and principal are
to be paid from other available sources, the Company is required to deposit monthly, into the Trustee’s Bond Service
Account, one-sixth of the amount of the next succeeding interest payment on the 2000 Bonds outstanding and (be-
ginning with the twelfth month preceding the first maturity of any bonds) one-twelfth of the next maturing principal
of those bonds. The account is invested in a government obligation mutual fund and is stated at fair value.

Operation Fund: Per the Series 2000 Bond Reesolution, cach month the Company shall, after making required pay-
ments fo the Bond Service Account, the Bond Reserve Account, and the Depreciation Fund, withdraw from the
Revemue Fund and deposit with a Depository in the name of the Company to the credit of the Operation Fund the
balance remaining in the Revenue Fund. The fund is included in cash and temporary investments.

Rebate Fund: The Rebate Fund is created by the Seties 2000 Bond Resolution. Monies credited to the Rebate Fund
shall be free from the lien of the Resolution. Payments shall be made by the Company within 15 days following each
five-year computation period for the cilculation of excess rebateable arbitrage under the Internal Revenue Code. The
Company has covenanted to rebate excess earnings to the United States in accordance with law. There were no depos-
its required to be made to this fund during 2004 or 2005.

NOTE 5 - EXTENSION OF WATER SERVICE IN JEFFERSON COUNTY

Iu 2004, the Company completed the implementation of a plan to extend water service to unserved residences in Jef-
terson County. The cost of the planned extension of water service was approximately $60 million and was funded by a
combination of customer, government, and Company {unds, summarized as follows:

Apportionment Warrant Reserve: Monies from Metro Government and from new customers in the extension area are
deposited in the Apportionment Warrant Reeserve account. New customers in the cxtension area must pay an “ap-
portionment warrant” fee. To supplement these customer monies, Metro Government made commitments to fund a
total of $6 million of the cost of the water service extension project through 2003, Disbursements from this account
can only be used to pay for the cost of construction of water main extensions in the designated area. The account s
invested in a sweep account, which is stated at fair value,

System Development Charge Reserve: A System Development Charge Reserve has been established to finance
growth-related expansion in the apportionment warrant extension area and is assessed for new service connections
other than iitial connections. The collections are deposited to the System Development Charge Reeserve account and
disbursements from this account can only be used to pay for growth-related expansion. The account is invested in 2
sweep account, which is stated at fair value.

ol - B P = S S-S SESI- P FRN— S S TS
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Company Monies: A total of $17 million of Company funds was budgeted to pay for the transmission component, or
“backbone grid,” of the extension prograimn.
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NOTE 6 - RESERVES

Reserve Funds include the following:

Bond related reserves

Bond reserve account

Year Ended December 31

2005

coe 2004

$ 3.059.858

Depreciation fund 74 3 15,077,190
Infrastructure replacement reserve fund 1(}‘ ; 398 219,970 |
U.S. Treasury state and local government fund 1,5:4@, 143 1,640,143
Toual Bond related reserves ' 135176,952 19,997,161 |
Other o . ‘
Apportionment warrant reserve - 1,260,330 1,224,710 |
System development charge reserve 22,703 2,929,254 '
Bullitt County water reserve o 39 856,513 |
Shepherdsville water reserve 1,443 164,365 ;
Total Other reserves 1,284,565 5,174,842

 $ 14,461,517 $ 25,172,003 ‘
l

NOTE 7 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The Company has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures. This
statement adds certain additional disclosures about cash and investments, including common areas of investment risk.

The Company’s investment policy specifies that the primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities is ,|
safety, liquidity and vield. In addition, funds are to be invested in conformity with Federal, state and other legal re-
guirements, including bond resclutions. ‘

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had cash and temporary investments of $12,511,829 and $26,727,598,
respectively. Of these amounts, $300,000 and $100,000, respectively, was covered by insurance provided by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Company (“FDIC”). The remaining balance was uninsured and uncellateralized, and was invested
primarily in repurchase agreements supported by U. S. government obligations.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had investments as follows: |

U.S. Tresaury Bonds, 8.22%, due November 15, 2013 § 4,700,001 § 4,700,001
Federal Home Loan Bank Note, 1.85%, due May 20, 2005 S 6,041,440
Mutual funds . _1-3.(}47',593' 1,000,246

85,747,594 $11,741,687

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Company’s de-
posits may not be returned to it. The Company does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk; how-
ever, accounts are set up with overnight sweep accounts so that cash 1s invested in short term, liquid investments daily
to minimize the amount of cash not covered by insurance provided by the FDIC.

—— e

the counterparty, the Company will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are
in the possession of an outside party. The Company’s investments are held in the name of the Company by a trustee.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of \

Concentration of Credit Risk: "T'he Company has no restrictions on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. ‘
Interest Rate Risk: The Company does not have a formal policy limiting maturities of its investments. Investments are |
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made based on the prevailing market conditions and anticipated cash needs at the time of the transaction.

Credit Rusk: The Company has historically only purchased investment grade securities. The Standard & Poor’s rating

for the U.S. Treasury Bonds listed above is AAA.

NOTE § - UTILITY PLANT, NET

The following is a schedule of utility plant for the year ended December 31, 2005:

_ TR e este | el
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 6122892 § 1,217,383 $ 7,340,275
Construction 1n progress 63,769,042 68,526 575 $ (77,421,592) 54,874,025
Total capital asscts
not being depreciated 69,801,934 69,743 958 (77,421,592) 62,214,300
Other capital assets:
Buildings + 71,909,507 8,971,991 (103,084) 80.778.414
Machinery and equipment 36,793,808 8,004,558 (1,030,293) 43,768,073
Infrastructure 716,880,073 54,154,695 4,381,221) 766,653,547
Total other capital assets
at historical cost 825,583,388 71,131,244 (5,514,598) 891,200,034
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (27,999,628) (1,681,948) 52,583 (29,628,993)
Machinery and equipment (22,860,210) (3,399,140) 990,501 (25,268,849)
Infrastructure (180,664,836) (13,719,838) 1,074,346 (193,310,328)
Total accumulated depreciation (231,524,674) (18,800,926) 2,117,430  (248,208,170)
Other Capital Assets, Net 594,058,714 52,330,318 (3,397,168) 642,991,864

Capital Assets, Net

$ 663.950.648  § 122.074276

$ (80.818.760)

§ 705,206,164
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The following is a schedule of utility plant for the year ended december 31, 2004:

o : Beﬁ::éﬁ Addiﬁu.ns_ Reductions B%‘l?;::%
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 5,808,420 $ 314,472 $ 6,122,892
Construction in progress 63,854,050 61,574,140 $ (61,659,148) 63,769,042
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 69,662,470 61,888,612 (61,659,148) 69,891,934
Other capital assets:
Buildings 69,546,266 2,450,641 (87,400) 71,909,507
Machinery and equipment 32,262,790 5,651,940 (1,120,922) 36,793,808
Infrastructure 674,493,889 45,859,897 (3,473,713) 716,880,073
Total other capital assets
at historical cost 776,302,945 53,962,478 (4,682,035) 825,583,388
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (26,557,268) (1,463,738 21,378 (27,999,628)
Machinery and cquipment (20,491,307) (3,356,181) 987,278 (22,860,210)
Infrastructure - (168.236,156) (13,252,417) 823,737 (180,664,836)
Total accumulated depreciation (215,284.,731) (18,072,336) 1,832,393 (231,524,674)
Capital Assets, Net $ 630,680,684 $ 97,778,754 $ (64,508,790)  § 663,950,648

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities at December 31, 2005, are summarized as follows:

Beginning ; Ending Cutrent  Noncurrent
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion
Bonds payable $ 124,213,388 $0  $6,180,888 § 118,032,500 § 6,482,500 § 111,550,000
Customer advances
for construction 4,500,707 1,415,257 3,471,657 2,444,307 2,444,307
Total Long-Term
Liabilities $ 128,714,095 § 1,415,257 $9,652,545 § 120,476,807 & 6,482,500 § 113,994,307
Long-term labilities at December 31, 2004, are summarized as follows:
Beginning ' _ Ending Current  Noncurren
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion
Bonds payable $ 129,821,489 $0  $5,608,101 $124,213,388 § 6,453,388 $117,760,000
Customer advances
for construction 6,648,489 1,624,399 3,772,181 4,500,707 23271 4,477 436
Total Long-Term
Liabilities $ 136,469,978 § 1,624,399  $9,380,2682 $ 128,714,095 § 6,476,659 $122,237.435
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Bonds and notes payable at December 31, 2005 and 2004 consist of the following:
: s S 2005 2004
Wiater System Revenue Bonds, 2000 tax exemprt,
interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 5.5% with e :
maturities from 2003 through 2025 $ 74,(}19,@0@ $ 76,085,000
‘Water System Revenue Bonds, 2001 tax exempt, e
interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 4.7% with maturities

from 2001 through 2014 43,750,000 47,575,000
Other Debt . nap 553,388
118,032,500 124,213,388

Less currenit portion 6,482,500 6,453,388
 § 111,550,000 $ 117,760,000

All bonds are subject to optional redemption provisions.

The Water System Revenue Bond resolutions contain certain covenants that require, among other things, thar the
schedule of rates and charges, and the rules and regulations for water services will not be revised so as to result in a de-
crease of revenues, Also, future adjustments to warer rates and charges are required as necessary so that annuzl net rev-
enues will not be less than 1.30% of the total annual bond debt service requirements for the then outstanding bonds.

Maturities of long-term debt arc as follows:

TR R S e paBel S e e Tl
2006 $6,210,000 $5,795,497 $12,005,497 .
2007 6,495,000 5,514,997 12,009,997 '
2008 6,800,000 5,291,634 12,021,634 '
2009 7,130,000 4,903,534 12,033,534
2010 7,480,000 4,569,984 12,049,984
2011-2015 37,210,000 17,231,579 54,441,579
2016-2020 20,065,000 10,269,923 30,334,923
2021-2025 26,370,000 4,378,900 30,748,900

$117,760,000 $57,886,048 $175,646,048
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NOTE 10 - DIVIDENDS

The Company is required by bond resolution to pay a dividend to Metro Government, the sole stockholder. The divi-
dend is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the resolution and paid quarterly based on budgeted income.
The required annual dividend is sixty percent of the Company’s income before distributions and contributions with
certain adjustments and exclusions. The dividend computed under these provisions was $16,178,050 for 2005 and
$14,093,410 for 2004. A seulement based on actual income is made the following year.

NOTE 11 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457.The plan permits participating employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. An employee
may contribute up to a maximum of 25 percent of his or her adjusted gross compensation or §14,000, whichever

is less, to the plan The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseen emergency. Plan assets and liabilities are not recorded by the Company. The Company contributes $0.25
for every $1.00 of an employee’s contribution up to $1,500 ($375 maximum Company contribution) to the plan. The
amount contributed to the plan by the Company and charged to expense was approximately $53,400 and $83,000 for
the vears ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Company has a defined contribution plan covering substantally all employees of the Company. An eligible em-
ployee can contribute up to an annual maximum of 25 percent of his or her adjusted gross compensation or §14,000,
whichever is less, to the plan. The Company contributes $0.25 for every $1.00 of an emplovee's contribution ($375
maximum Company contribution) to the plan, The amount contributed to the plan by the Company and charged to
cxpense was approximately $34,200 and $31,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

NOTE 12 - PENSION PLAN

All full time employees of the Company participate in the County Employee Retirement System (“CERS”) which 1s
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan administered by Kentucky Retirement Systems, an
agency of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

Normal retirement is at age 65 with at least 48 months of service. This entitles an employee to a basic benefit of 2.2%
of final compensation multiplied by vears of service. Final compensation is the employee’s average salary for the high-
est five plan years. A reduced early retirement benefit is available from ages 55 to 64 with 60 months of service, at least
12 of which are current, or at any age after 25 years of service. CERS also provides death, disability, optional joint and
survivorship, and certain health carc benefits. Eligibility and benefits are established by state statute.

Eligible employees are required by state starute to contribute 5% of their salary to the Plan. The Company is required
by the same statute to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to pay benefits when due. The Company’s actuari-
ally determined contribution rate was 7.34% effective July 1.2003, 8.48% effective July 1, 2004 and 10.98% effec-

tive July 1, 2005. For 2005 and 2004, participating employees contributed 5% of creditable compensation to CERS
totaling $1,324,453 and $1,353,898, respectively. Employer contribution rates are intended to fund the normal cost on
a current basis plus an amount equal to the amortization of unfunded past service costs over thirty years. The Com-
pany contributed $2,888,640, $2,354,391, and $2,092,949 for 2005, 2004, and 2003 respectively. The Company’s total
payroll was $26,972,013 and $27,181,871 for 2005 and 2004, respectively. CERS covered payroll was $26,575,004 and
$26,984,394 for 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Vesting in a retirement benefit begins immediately upon entry into the System. The participant has a fully vested
< interest after the completion of sixty months of service, 12 of which are current service.

The “pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension bencfits, adjusted
for the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of
employee service to date. The measure, which is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits, is intended
to help users assess the CER S’ funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating suf-
ficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among the Public Employee Retirement Systems and
employers. The CERS does not make separate measurements of assets and pension benefit obligations for individual
employers.

waiw: louisulleivater. com — page 41

LWC 0089



The following table provides information on the CERS as a whale, determined through the most recent actuarial

valuations:
Juae 30
: 2005 2004
INet assets available for benefits $ 6,511,561,710 § 6,645,463,572
Pension benefit obligation .-71,13[)&?7‘4,@25_ 6,577,289,608
Net assets in excess of (less than) pension benefit obligation 5 .(669&'12&315‘) $ 68,173,964

Ten year historical trend information showing the CERS’s progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due is presented in the Kentucky Retirement Systems’ June 30, 2005 annual financial report (which is a matter
of public record).

In addition to the assets transferred from its previous plan, the Company became obligated to CERS [or $4,273,873
for remaining unfunded past service costs. The remaining liability for unfunded past scrvice costs plus accrued interest
was paid with proceeds from the 1992 Series 2 Note Payable. The related past service cost asset is being amortized
over twenty years on the straight-line method.

1l

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company retains certain insurable risks up to a fixed maximum per claim exposure. Liability claims are retained
up to $1,000,000 per occurrence, with insurance coverage for any judgment or settlement of up to $35,000,000 above
that amount. Workers’ compensation is self-funded up to $350,000 per claim prior to October 1, 2004 and $450,000
beginning October 1, 2004, with an aggregate limit of 90% of the premium that would be developed by applying the
rate times the payroll. A reserve of $1,213,637 and $886,842 was established at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respec-
tively, to provide for liability and worker’s compensation claims incurred.

The Company is involved in litigation, which has arisen out of operations in the ordinary course of business. While
it 1§ not possible to forecast the outcome of this litigation, it is the opinion of the Company’s management, based on
evaluations by outside counsel, that it will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements of the Com-

pany.
NOTE 14 - EARLY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

In December of 2003, the Company offered early retirement to 39 employees with greater than 20 years of continu-
ous service. Severance paid in 2004 totaled $949,266. This expense is included in other non-operating expense on the
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. A total of 30 employees accepted early retirement.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In the first quarter of 2006, the Company will prepare for a significant borrowing in 2006 to fund the long-term
capital project plan.
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LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2005

B e Maturity Par FairValue
Bond Reserve Account
U. 8. Treasury Bonds 8.22% 11/15/13 $ 3,059,858 § 3,059,858
Depreciation Fund Sweep Account 4.51% 7,419,053 7,419,053
Infrastructure Replacement
Sweep Account 4.51% 1,057,898 1,057,898
Appertionment Warrant Reeserve
Sweep Account 4.51% 1,260,330 1,260,330
System Development Charge Reserve
Sweep Account 4.51% 22.705 22,703
U. 8. Treasury State and
Local Government Fund
U. §. Treasury Bonds 8.22% 1,640,143 1,640,143
Bond Service Account — Series 2000
First American Funds 3.81% 534,082 534,082
Bond Service Account — Series 2001
First American Funds 3.81% 513,511 513,511
Bullitt County Water Reserve
Sweep Account 4.51% RO 89
Shepherdsville Water Reserve
Sweep Account 4.51% 1,443 1,443
$ 15,509,110 $ 15,509,110

See Irdependent Auditors” Report

LOUISVILLE WATER. COMPANY 2001 SERIES BOND ISSUE

December 31, 2005

The Water Reevenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only from revenue of the

Company.
Master resolution date
Secondary resolution date
Original amount
Interest rate
Bonds payable
Interest payable
Call provisions in whole or n part

See Irdependent Audhtors” Regort

July 14, 1992
February 13, 2001

$60,300,000

4.00% to 4.70%
November 15

May 15 and November 15

100% after November 15, 2010
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LOUISVILLE WATER. COMPANY 2000 SERIES BOND ISSUE
December 31, 2005

The Water Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only from revenue of the

Company.
Resolution date September 1, 2000
Original amount $78,500.000
Interest rate 5.00% to 5.50%
Bonds pavable November 15
[uterest payable May 15 and November 15
Call provisions 100% after November 15, 2010

See Independent Auditors’ Report

Sinking Fund installments for 2022 and 2024 maturity bonds:

November 15, 2022 November 15, 2024
Year Amount Year Amount
2021 $ 4,710,000 2023 $ 5,260,000
2022 4,975,000 2024 5,555,000
$ 9,685,000 $ 10,815,000

See Indeperdznt Auditors’ Report

SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING BOND INDEBTEDNESS
AND ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

December 31, 2005

2001 Bonds Aggregate

Principal . - Bond

Year Ending December 31 Installments Interest Service
2006 $ 4,000,000 $ 1,959,978 $ 5,959,978
2007 4,185,000 1,789,978 5,974,978
2008 4,380,000 1,612,115 5.992,115
2009 4,590.000 1,415,015 6,005,015
2010 4,820,000 1,208,465 6,028,465
2011 5,055,000 991,565 6,046,565
2012 5,305,000 764,090 6,069,090
2013 5,570,000 525,365 6,095,365
2014 5,845,000 274,715 6,119,715

$ 43,750,000 % 10,541,286

$ 54,291,286

Ser Independent Auditors’ Report
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SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING BOND INDEBTEDNESS
AND ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

December 31, 2005

o 2080 Bewidx  Aggregate

ol e ~ Principal : e ~ Bond
Year Ending December 31  Installments Interest Service
2006 $ 2,210,000 § 3,835,519 § 6,045,519
2007 2,310,000 3,725,019 6,035,019
2008 2,420,000 3,609,519 6,029,519
2009 2,540,000 3,488,519 6,028,519
2010 2,660,000 3,361,519 6,021,519
2011 2,790,000 3,228,519 6,018,519
2012 2,930,000 3,089,019 6,019,019
2013 3,075,000 2,942,519 6,017,519
2014 3,235,000 2,788,769 6,023.769
2015 3,405,000 2,627,019 6,032,019
2016 3,590,000 2,452,512 6,042,512
2017 3.790,000 2,264,037 6,054,037
2018 4,000,000 2,065,062 6,065,062
2019 4,225,000 1,855,062 6,080,062
2020 4,460,000 1,633,250 6,093,250
2021 4,710,000 1,399,100 5,109,100
2022 4,975,000 1.151.,825 6,126.825
2023 5,260,000 890,637 6,150,637
2024 5,555,000 614,487 6,169,487
2025 5,870,000 322,850 6,192,850
$ 74,010,000 § 47.344.762 $ 121,354,762

See Independent Auditors” Report
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SCHEDULES OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES AND TAXES

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004
Operation and Maintenance Expenses i o '
Pumping $ 5,029,576 $ 4,935,538
Water treatment . 6,@27, 11 5,462,392
Transmission and distribution . 11,3&'?,218 9,588,064
Customer accounts expenses : 6,833,294 6,521,681
Administrative and general expenses o 17,791{119 16,450,227
Operation expenses under applied 343365 644,667
Total Operation and Maintenance Expenses o 47,4414974 .4 $ 43,602,569
Taxes . - o
Water and fire services in lieu of taxes 59,415,5@(] $ 8,471,902
Social security taxes : :‘ 1,940,162 1,926,686
State unemployment taxes . 19,689 26,414
Payroll taxes allocated . [1,940,162) (1,926,686)
Total Taxes $ 9,435,189 $ 8,498,316

See Independent Auditors” Report
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BOARD MEMBERS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF WATER WORKS

Stewar! E. Conner

Jerry Abramson
Board Chairman

Maryor, Lovisville AMetro

fex officio) Managing Pariner
Viyat, farrant & Cormbs

Margaret Leavell Harris Gerald Martin

Retired Executive Vice Fresident and

BellSauth lelecommuniectians. Managing Membsr
River Hill Cepital, LLC

Wenay-C. Welsh Marifa Willis
Board Vice Chairman Assistant Vice Presdent
Senior Vice President, PNC Bank

Informarien Technology

E. ONU:S. Services Inc.

Dr. Joseph B Wise; I

Businass Marager,
Sacretary/Treasurer

Grealer Lovisville Building

and Canstruction Trades Council

The Board of Water Works is composed of seven members:

* The Louisville Metro Mayor appoints all members

« The membership is bi-partisan, with no more than 50% from the
same political party

« All new board members serve staggered four—year terms

+ The Louisville Metro Mayor serves as ex officiv

The Board meets the second Tuesday of each month at 12:30 pm
at 550 South Third Street. Fach April they appoint officers of the
company.

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM

Front row: Rilly Meeks, President. AFSCME Local 16€3

Ecunn Chestnut, I, Assistant fo the President, Director of Business Performance
Marogement

John Huber, Pres'dent and Chief Exscutive Officer

Susan Lehriginn. Vice President, Human-Ressurces and Organizaticnal Eflectiveness
Barbara Dickens, Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Back row: Gregory C. Heizman, Vice Presidert, Chief Engireer

Robert K. Miller, Vice Fresideat and Treasurer, Business Resourcing

Karla Olscn Teasley, Vice President, Serving Custorers and Business Developrent

IN MEMORY OF OWEN HAMMONS

We were saddened to learn in December of the death of Owen C.
Hammons, who served on our board from 1988 until he retired in
2003.A civic leader as well as a long-time official with the United Auto
Workers union, he helped inspire our award-winning lahor/manage-
ment partnership.
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LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY

550 5. Third Street

Louisville, KY 4(

Phone
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6600 OM1

Message in a Bottle - 2

Louisville Water Company’s “Message in a Bottle” s,
quite simply, quality. Water is essential, key to good
health and is the building block for our community.
From the moment you awake to the moment you go
to sleep, your day revolves around water.

Louisville Water Company provides water to about
810,000 people in Louisville Metro and parts of
Oldham and Bullitt counties. In 2004 the company
delivered an average of nearly 126 million gallons per
day through nearly 3,600 miles of water main.

Water is drawn from the Ohio River at two points: the
raw water pump station at Zorn Avenue and River
Road, and the B.E. Payne pump station northeast of
Harrods Creek. Water is also drawn from a riverbank
filtration well at the Payne plant.

The water is treated at two locations: the Crescent Hill
plant, which has a capacity of 180 million gallens per
day, and the Payne plant, which has a capacity of 45
million gallons per day. Both plants treat the water
using processes that include coagulation, softening,

corrosion stabilization, disinfection, filtration,
fluoridation, and final disinfection.

Storage capacity for treated water totals over go
million gallons in reservoirs, elevated tanks, and
standpipes.

Mains range up to 60 inches in diameter. Booster
pump stations, pressure-reducing stations and water
storage facilities are used to maintain the appropriate
pressure throughout the system.

To ensure the highest quality, the company operates
a laboratory certified by the state of Kentucky under
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency standards,
performing more than 120,000 water quality tests
every year.

In addition to water sold to its retail customers, the
company wholesales water to West Shelby Water
District, North Shelby Water Company, North Nelson
Water District, Taylorsville,and Mount Washington.
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Every filter, pipe, valve, hydrant,
and meter vault appears in a

computerized mapping system.

Message in a Bottle - 5

The project is expected to be completed in 2008, at a cost of about $38 million.

Our historic Crescent Hill treatment plant is also in line for majer improvements. Our 2002-2021 facilities plan
calls for spending more than $S1oo million for advanced treatment there. Studies are under way to determine
which of several technologies would be best for the site; a ground water source using riverbank filtration is one
of the major options.

P
Bl bl TECHNOLOGY AT WORK - =

Advances in information technology are helping us manage our growing system more efficiently. Two major
areas were the focus of attention in 2004.

First, we completed a five-year program to put all of our pipeline transmission and distribution network on an
automated mapping and facility management (AM/FM) system.

In simple terms, this means that every pipe, valve, hydrant, meter vault and other components of LWC’s
infrastructure, appear in a computerized mapping systern—along with information about
its size, age, composition, etc.

. The new system also allows increased benefits from the Louisville/Jefferson County

i Information Consortium (LOJIC), providing references to information about streets, roads,

| drainage systems, sewer lines, build ngs, easements, and other landscape features that can
affect our facilities.

. The AM/FM/Geographic Information System (GIS), also has links to our customer
% information and financial systems. Information is available by computer to all employees to
. help them with their work.

Second, we began using a mobile dispatch system which uses wireless technology to
transmit customers’ service requests to the laptop computers of our field technicians. The
i central records are updated from the field when the work has been accomplished. The
results: quicker response to customer requests and more efficient record-keeping.
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We continued our pilot program in automated meter reading. This system uses small radio transmitters on
water meters to transmit their readings to a hand-held or vehicle-mounted receiver.

More than 7300 meters in Goshen, Shepherdsville and Bullitt County are part of this program. 5o far,
automated meter reading has reduced the percentage of missed readings that result in estimated bills and the
time it takes to read the meters.

The system will continue ta be evaluated in 2005 to judge its overall
efficiency and impact on operations.

: EXPANSION AND DEVELOPMENT

While our average customer may be using slightly less water, our
community and service area continue to grow. A total of 3,209 customers was
added in our retail service area in 2004.

During the year, we accepted 49.1 miles of new water mains built by
developers in Jefferson, Oldham and Bullitt counties. These new lines have
the potential to serve 4,566 new customers.

In Louisville Metro, the shift of population growth to the east and southeast
requires significant expansion measures to meet the demand. During the
year, we put the finishing touches on a project that started in 1990 to provide
water service throughout Jeffersen County. Nearly all the major construction
was comnplete; only two small projects remained to be built. We built 2.25
miles of new water mains, serving 50 new customers.

A total of 3,209 custormers

was added i aur retail Also in Jefferson County, we completed 85 percent of our $20.5 million

service area in 2004. prograrm Lo increase the capacity, improve reliability and improve water
quality at our B. E. Payne plant, which supplies most of the eastern part of
the county plus customers in adjoining counties. The project is scheduled to
be comypleted in 2005, increasing the plant’s capacity from 45 million gallons per day to 560 million gallons per
day, and increasing the reliability of the plant. New electric power feeds and backup emergency generators are
part of this work.
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Message in o Bottle - 6

Outside Jefferson County, we continued to make impreve

ments in systems acquired during the past few years.
These improvements are financed by the higher rates historically paid by the customers served. Their rates will
be adjusted to Louisville Water Company rates when the improvements are paid for. (Because they are

already paying more than our standard rates, they wer= not subject to the rate increases in January 2004

and January 2005.)

Major accomplishments in these service areas during 2004 included:

. $3.86 million spent in the former Kentucky Turnpike systems in Bullitt County, as part of a 10 year program
of improvements. More than 10.2 miles of new pipe were installed, and 163 customers were added.

- $1.59 million spent on improvements in Goshen. Nearly 2.4 miles of new pipe were installed as grid ties,
relocations or replacerment of undersized mains. In addition, Goshen Utilities, which was operating as a
wholly-owned subsidiary, was merged inte Louisville Water Company at midnight Dec. 31, 2004, increasing
efficiency in operations and reporting.

- $370,000 spent on improvements in Shepherdsville.

- $360,000 spent on improvements in Oldham Courty outside Goshen. About 2.6 miles of new pipz were
installed as replacements for mains that had a high number of breaks annually.

§ ol L liliis MAINTAINING OUR SYSTEM

Careful stewardship is the key to maintaining reliable operation in asystem that has parts more than a
century old. Reqular maintenance and rehabilitation are a very important part of our effort to continue to
provide high quality water.

In 1993, we began a 15-year program to replace or rehabilitate 500 miles of unlined cast iron water mains that
were installed before 1935. Many of the older mains were still sound and could be rehabilitated by lining them
with corrosion-resistant materials, saving the cost and inconvenience of replacing them.The rest of the old
lines wete becoming {roublesome and had to be replaced.

In 2004, we spent $6 million on the program: g miles were rehabilitated, and another 5 miles were replaced. All
of the scheduled rehabilitation had been completed by the end of the year; the remaining lines older than 1935
will be replaced by the end of 2006.
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Louisville Water Company’s
earnings for 2004 were more
than 528 5 million, a strang
achievement following two

years of declining demand

for water.

In addition, we are replacing old lead-pipe services that connect
our mains with water meters in older sections of our system.

In 2004, we teplaced about 1,800 of them; the program will
continue until all are replaced.

Our Crescent Hill reservoirs were reopened to the public in the
summer of 2004, after more than eight years of work to repair
underground leaks. The reservoirs, more than 125 years old,
began leaking badly in the mid-1990s; the weathered limestone
bedrock posed problems that were difficult to solve.

The scenic walkway around the reservoir has been a popular
place for walking and jogging for many years. They now feature
advanced security measures and are open to the public only
during daylight hours.

-~

: M FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Louisville Water Company’s earnings for 2004 were more than $28.5 million, a strong achievement following
two years of declining demand for water.

The immediate problem was the weather. Wet summer weather reduces water sales, because less water is
used for irrigation. 2003 had been wetter than normal, prompting the company to take measures toreduce
expenses; most of these measures took effect in 2004.Then 2004 became the wettest year on recordin
Louisville, with a rainfall total that was 47 percent more than normal.

Oddly, the wet weather took a vacation as fall approacned. September 2004 was the driest on record,and a
39-day dry spell that began in early September was the longest on record. Water sales rebounded somewhat,
but most of the irrigation season had already passed. And once the dry spell ended, the wet weatherreturned:
October was the wettest on record.

Sharp swings in weather in recent years, however, masked a trend that was unexpected: an actual decline in
average residential and commercial water use.
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 Louisville Water Company was founded more than 150 years ago to 1‘mﬁrove the health of th e-ccmmuni'ty by
providing safe water. The health and welfare of our community are still among our major concerns.

Our award-winning educational programs for children reached more than 31,000 youngsters in 1,100 different
sessions in 2004. And 150 teachers attended our “in-service” workshops.

@ \We also cooperate with the Kentucky Dental Association and the University of Louisville School

i@ of Dentistry in the “Smile Kentucky!” program, which provided education and screening for more
¢ than 15,000 children at 31 schools in Jefferson, Bullitt, Henry, Spencer and Nelson counties. Free

| dental treatment will be provided to 300 of these children in 2005. The three-year-old program

. won the American Dental Association's Community Partnership Award in 2004.

L About 500 Girl Scouts took part in our Belle of Louisville “Adventures in Water” cruise, each
. winning a patch for their participation.

[ The Beautification League of Louisville gave us two awards for landscaping in 2004: for cur
| corporate office downtown, and for our Crescent Hill plant on Frankfort Avenue.

i Our commitment to historic preservation brought First Lady Laura Bush to our historic Water

& Towerin April. She designated Louisville and 30 other Kentucky cities and towns as the nation’s
. newest “Preserve America” communities for their efforts to preserve the nation’s heritage while
L ensuring opportunities for the future.

The University of Louisville Center for nfrastructure Research, in which we are a partner,
| received a $500,000 federal grant in 2004 to study the problems of aging water and wastewater
i infrastructure.

i President John Huber received the Water For People’s Kenneth J. Miller Founder's Award in

recognition of outstanding volunteer service to the organization. Water for People was founded
in1991 hy the American Water Works Association to help the most impoverished people worldwide to improve
their quality of life by supporting sustainable drinking water, sanitation and hygiene projects.

Message in a Bottle -8
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LWC FINANCIAL
SECTION FOR DECEMBER 31,
2004 AND 2003

GENERAL PRESSURE SERVICES

Residential
Commercial
Industrial

Fire Services & Fire Hydranis
Public Fire Hydrants

Municipal
Wholesale *

Total GP Services

ELEVATED PRESSURE SERVICES

Residential
Commercial
Industrial

Fire Services & Fire Hydrants
Public Fire Hydrants

Municipal
Wholesale *

SALE OF WATER REVENUE ANALYSIS

Number of
Customers
2004 2003
151,421 151,483
16,861 16,857
321 331
3,067 3,022
1,956 11,741
541 524
2
184,167 183,260
87,472 84,423
5,518 5,395
8 10
1,450 1,405
7013 7141
3 3
3

1,468,758

Consumption - YTD

(1,000 Gallons)

through Dec 31,
2008 2003
9,457,082 9,556,240
10,976,437 11,197,613
4,506,099 4,633,789
40,045 36,228
1,149,253 1,266,808
36,768 Ql 750

26,165,684 26,752,428

6,578,838 6,099,354
3,766,378 3,587,029
252,565 241,662
11,097 9,220
102 18,749

1,335,655

26,450,814.79
24,08),024.87
7,440,323.30
1,185,466.02
3,704,605.32
2,413,563.21
38,209.50

65,314,007.01

18,726,249.65
9.,449,575.11
431,843.95
600,051.64
2,290,550.00
59,101.14
2,165,468.52

Revenue - YTD

2003

25,532,284.81
23,484,138.45
7,339,314.37
1,088,551.21
3,484,178.75
2,326,148.42

105,694

63,360,309.66

16,591,673.39
8,462,701.82
394,410.34
552,782.38
2,075,578.46
60,729.75

1,824,42711

Revenue
(1,000 Gallons)

2004

279693
2.19388
1.65117

2.10011

1.03921

2.32450

2.84644
2.50893
1.70991

579.42294
1.47435

——

2.67179
2.09725
1.58387

183623
171164

2.21981

2.72023
235925
1.64035

3.23909
1.36594
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- Net Income before distributions and contributions increased by $3,988,482, or 16.2%, from $24,580,534 to
$28,569,016 due to increases in sale of water revenues which were greater than increases in operating
expenses.

- Dividends Paid and Payable increased by $2,233,306, or 18.1%, from $12,318,831 to $14,552,137.
Statement of Net Assets

Total Net Assets increased by $30,447,780 ot 5.6% in 2c04 (see Figure A-2). The largest portion of Net Assets is
Utility Plant, which increased by $33,269,964 in 2004 through capital improvements. The capital improvements
were funded by cash generated from operations, draws fromn the Depreciation Fund, and by Contributions in

Aid of Construction from developers, customers and governmental agencies. Non-Current Assets decreased by
$10,690,678 due to the draws from the Depreciation Fund. There were no deposits made to the Infrastructure
Replacement Reserve during 2004. Long-term Liabilities decreased by $8,047782 due to principal payments on the
Series 2000 and 2001 Bonds made during the year and buyout of a portion of the refunding contracts payable to
developers. Long-term debt is discussed in more detail in the section titled Debt Administration.

Figure A-2

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

i 2004 2003 Difference Percent
Current Assets $ 28,426,260 $ 22,549,969 $ 5,876,291 26.1%
Non-Current Assefs 30,766,065 41,456,743 (10,690,678) (25.8%)
Utility Plant 663,950,648 630,680,684 33,269,964 53%
Total Assets 723,142,973 694,687,396 28,455 577 41%
Current Liabilities 29,706,440 23,650,861 6,055,579 25.6%
Long Term Liabilities 122,237,436 130,285,218 (8,047,782) (6.2%)
Total Net Assets $ 571,199,097 $ 540,751,317 $ 30,447,780 5.6%

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Revenues increased by $5,774,910, 0T 5.9%, in 2004 (see Figure A-3). Water sales increased by 209.3
million gallons in 2004. This is equivalent to approximately two days of billable consumption. The increase in

e
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borrowing. Management will also evaluate opportunities for advance refunding of the existing bonds at the time
of the new money borrowing.

Figure A-5

Debt Service Coverage

S 2004 2003 Difference Percent
Income Available for Debt Service $33,329,216 $30,588,6009 $2,740,607 9.0%
Current Aggregate Net Debt Service $11,368,396 $ 10,971,434 $ 396,962 3.6%
Coverage Times 293 2.79 0.14 5.0%

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

Following lower water sales in 2003 and 2004 versus budget, management developed the 2005 Annual Budget
based on sales of 37.5 billion gallons, which is 1.2 billior gallons below the amount budgeted for the previous two
years, Water rates will be increased for retail water service by 6.5% for water service on and after January 1, 2005.
Approximately 3.2% of the rate increase was attributable to the lower planned water sales. Management believes
that the 2005 Budget adequately addresses all revenuz requirements.

Water rates will be increased for wholesale water service by 4.7% effective May 1, 2005. Wholesale water rates

were increased in 2004 for the first time since 1994. The wholesale customers whose rates are regulated by the
Kentucky Public Service Commission submitted letters at that time stating that they did not object to the increase.
Management intends to request similar statements from those wholesale customers again in 2005.

Management is working with the University of Louisville to continue analysis of historical water trends and update
the long-range water sales forecast using economic data from the Kentucky Data Center and weather data from
the Kentucky Agricultural Weather Center. Management intends to incorporate this sales forecast into the long-
range financial plan.

Management is considering the establishment of a risk mitigaticn / rate stabilization reserve in 2005 to allow for
greater flexibility in financing business risks while optimizing the stability of water rate changes and dividend
payments. This reserve could be funded from one or more methods: a rate component specifically established to
build the reserve over time; additional income provided during unusually high water sales years; or existing cash
reserves. This reserve is not required by the Master Bond Resolution.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS

Board of Water Works
Louisville Water Company
Louisville, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of net assets of the Louisville Water Company as of
December 31,2004 and 2003, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash
flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consclidated financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of the Louisville Water Company as of December 31,2004 and 2003, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles gererally accepted
in the United States of America.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements

of the Louisville Water Company taken as a whole. The data contained on pages 28 through 31 is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic consolidated financials statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) on pages 10 through 13 is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting

)
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Message in a Bottle - 15

U.S. Treasury State and Local Government Fund

Bullitt County Water Reserve
Shepherdsville Water Reserve
Retirement plan past service costs, net
Unamortized debt discount and expense
Preliminary engineering charges

Other deferred charges

Utility plant, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

1,640,143 1,640,143
856,513 509,670
164,365 171,725
1,351,541 1,564,943
941,070 971,381
262,798 974,096
19,142 81,418
663,950,648 30,680,684
Ty 694,716,713 672137427
$723,142,973 $ 694,687,396
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Operating revenues

Operating expenses
Operation and maintenance expenses
Depreciation
Amortization
Taxes and water service provided in lieu of taxes
Loss from sale and salvage of refired assets

Total operating expenses

Net operating revenue

Non-operating income (expense)
Interest income
Other expense

Interest expense

Nel non-operating expense

Income before distributions and contributions

Dividends paid and payakle
Contributions in aid of construction

$103,462,053

43,602,569
16,825,061
(3,500
8,498,316
1,101,674
70,024,120

33,437,933
1,024,396
(1,123,891)

(4,769,422
(4,868,917)

28,569,016

(14,552,137)
16,430,901

2004

2003

$ 97687143

44,076,070
15,535,467
(39,283)
7,984,209
1,424,354
68,980,817

28,706,326

1,231,207
(154,798)
(5,202,201)

(4125,792)
24,580,534

(12,318,831)
13,249,414
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d1spos1t on of ﬁxed assets rather than t‘ne transfer of cost to accumu]ated deprematlon as provided by the National
Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners.

Estimates in the Consolidated Financial Statements: The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates

Utility Plant: Utility plant is stated at cost of acquisition or construction, including certain indirect cests. The
Company applies the straight-line method of depreciation to the estimated useful lives of the various classes of
depreciable property. The estimated useful lives of some significant asset categories are as follows:

Buildings 50 to 100 years
Pipelines 65 to100 years
Fire hydrants 50 years
Services 40 years
Meters 15 years
Equipment 5 lo10 years
Trucks and autos 5 years

Depreciation expense for 2004 was $18,076,337 of which $1,251,276 was allocated to other operating expenses.
Depreciation expense for 2003 was $16,718,211 of which $1,182,744 was allocated to other operating expenses.

Capitalized Interest: The Company follows the practice of capitalizing interest during construction on the capital
projects paid with the proceeds of bond issues. Interest in the amount of $1,578,120 and 41,358,720 was capitalized
during 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Revenue: Revenue is recognized in the period in which billings are rendered to consumers. The Company does not
accrue revenue for water delivered but not billed.

— e
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NOTE 6 — UTILITY PLANT, NET

The follewing is a schedule of utility plant for the year ended December 31, 2004:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Capital assets not being deprecicted:
Land $ 5,808,420 i ) $ - $ 6,122,892
Construction in progress 63,854,050 61,574,_]40 (61,659,148) A3 769042
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 69,662,470 61,688,612 (61,659,148) 69,891,934
Other capital assets:
Buildings 69,546,266 2,450,641 (87,400) 71,909,507
Machinery and equipment 32,262,790 5,651,940 (1,120,922) 36,793,808
Infrastructure 2HE 674,493,889 45,859,897 {3473713) 716,880,073
Total other capital assets
at historical cost 776,302,945 53,962,478 (4,682,035) 825,583,388
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (26,557,268) (1,463,738) 21,378 (27,999,628)
Machinery and equipment (20,491,307) (3,356,181) 987,278 (22,860,210)
Infrastructure (168,236,156) (13,252.417) = 1823737 = [180,664,836]
Total accumulated
de_precicltion (2]5,284,73]) el (]78,072,336) 1,832,393 {231,524,674)
Other capital assets, net 561,018,214 35,890,142 (2,849,642) 594,058,714
Capital assets, net $ 630,680,684 $97778,754 $ (64,508,790) $ 663,950,648
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The following is a schedule of utility plant for the year ended December 37, 2003:

Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital ossets
not being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total other capital assets
at historical cost

$

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated
depreciafion

Other capital assefs, net

Capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balonce Additions Reductions Balance
5,689,588 $ 268,926 $ (150,094) $ 5,808,420
47,291,394 61136458 (44573802) 63854050
52,980,982 61,405,384 (44,723,896) 69,662,470
68,544,116 2,181,810 (1,179,660) 69,546,266
32,058,079 1,944,045 (1,739,334) 32,262,790
644,297,412 41,643,260 (11,446,783) 674,493,889
744,899,607 45,769,115 (14,365,777 776,302,945
[26,259,444) (1,409,119) 1,111,297 (26,557,268)
(19,084,114) (3,001,861) 1,684,670 [20,491,307)
(164,197182) (12,217,231) 8178257  (168,236,156)
(209,540744) (16718211 10974224 (215,284,731)
535,358,863 29,050,904 (3,391,553) 7 561,9'L8,2i4 :
$ 588,339,845 $90,456,288 $(48,15449)  $0630,680,684
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The Water System Revenue Bond resolutions contain a rate covenant requiring that the schedule of rates and
charges, and the rules and regulations for water services will not be revised so as to result in a decrease of
revenues. Future adjustments to water rates and charges are required as necessary so that annual net revenues
will not be less than 1.30% of the total annual bond debt service requirements for the then outstanding bonds.

(A) Funds are being held in escrow to pay off this debt so it is classified as current.

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

N N |

e Yeor Principal Interest . 0 Totdl
2005 $ 6,453,388 § 6,061,809 $ 12,515,197
2006 5,210,000 5,795,497 12,005,497
2007 6,495,000 5,514,997 12,009,997
2008 6,800,000 5,221,634 12,021,634
2009 7,130,000 4,903,534 12,033,534
20102014 41,285,000 19,174,545 60,459,545
20152019 19,010,000 11,263,692 30,273,692
2020-2024 24,960,000 5,689,299 30,649,299

2025 : . 5870000 322,850 6,192,850
$ 124,213,388 $ 63,947,857

$ 188,161,245

NOTE 8 - DIVIDENDS

The Company is required by bond resolution to pay a dividend to the City of Louisville, the sole stockholder.

The dividend is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the resolution and paid quarterly based on
budgeted income. The required annual dividend is sixty percent of the Company’s income before distributions
and contributions with certain adjustments and exclusions. The dividend computed under these provisions was
$14,093,410 for 2004 and $11,251,319 for 2003. A settlement based on actual income is made after year-end.

= e — =
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NOTE 9 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company offers its employees a deferred compersation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plan permits participating employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
An employee may contribute up to a maximum of 25 percent of his or her adjusted gross compensation or
$13,000; whichever is less, to the plan. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirerent, death or unforeseen emergency. Plan asscts and liabilities are not recorded by the Company. The
Company contributes $0.25 for every $1.00 of an employee’s contribution up te $1,500 ($375 maximum Company
contribution) te the plan. The amount contributed to the plan by the Company and charged to expense was
approximately $83,000 and $86,000 for the years ended December 31,2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company has a defined contribution plan covering substantially all employees of the Company. An eligible
employee can contribute up to an annual maximum of 25 percent of his or her adjusted gross compensation or
$13,000; whichever is less, to the plan. The Company contributes $0.25 for every $1.00 of an employee’s contribution
($375 maximum Company contribution) to the plan. The amount contributed to the plan by the Company and
charged to expense was approximately $31,000 and $23,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN

All full-time employees of the Company participate in the County Employee Retirement System (CERS) which is a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan administered by Kentucky Retivement Systems, an
agency of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

Normal retirement is at age 65 with at least 48 months of service. This entitles an employee to a basic benefit of
2.2% of final compensation multiplied by years of service. Final compensation is the employee’s average salary for
the highest five plan years. A reduced early retirement benefit is available from ages 55 to 64 with 60 months of
service, at least 12 of which are current, or at any age after 25 years of service. CERS also provides death, disability,
optional joint and survivorship, and certain health care benefits. Eligibilily and benefits are establishad by state
statute.

Eligible employees are required by state statute to contribute 5% of their salary to the Plan. The Company is
required by the same statute to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to pay benefits when cue The
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Company’s actuarially determined contribution rate was 6.33% effective July 1, 2002 through June 2003, 7.34%
effective July 1, 2003 and 8.48% effective July 1,2004. For 2004 and 2003, participating employees contributed 5%
of creditable compensation to CERS totaling $1,353,898 and $1,391,160, respectively. Employer contribution rates are
intended to fund the normal cost on a current basis plus an amount equal to the amortization of unfunded past
service costs over thirty years. The Cornpany contributed $2,354,391 and 52,092,949 for 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The Company’s total payroll was $27,181,871 and $28,133,934 for 2004 and 2003, respectively. CERS covered payroll
was $26,084,394 and $27,811,890 for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Vesting in a retirement benefit begins immediately upon entry into the System. The participant has a fully vested
interest after the completion of sixty months of service, 12 of which are current service.

The “pension benefit obligation”is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits,
adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future
as a result of employee service to date. The measure, which is the actuarial present value of credited projected
benefits,is intended to help users assess the CERS’s funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among the Public Employee
Retirement Systems and employers. The CERS does not make separate measurements of assets and pension benefit
obligations for individual employers.

The following table provides information on the CERS as a whale, determined through the most recent actuarial
valuations:

June 30
2004 2003
Net assets available for benefits $ 6,645,463,572 $ 6,753,584,903
_ Pension benefit obligation 6,577289,608  5917,226,584

Net assets in excess of
pension benefit obligation

e e e e i e

$ _6R173964 § 836356319
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SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION

LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2004

Bond Reserve Account
U. S. Treasury Bonds

Depreciation Fund
FHLB
Goldman Sachs
Certificate of Deposit
Sweep Account

Infrastructure Replocement
Reserve Fund
Sweep Account

Apportionment Warrant Reserve
Sweep Account

System Development Charge Reserve
Sweep Account

Bullitt County System Development
Sweep Account

U. S. Treasury State and
Local Government Fund
U. S. Treasury Bonds

Bond Service Account - Series 2000
Armada Funds

8.220%

1.850%
1.810%
3.500%
1.812%

1.812%

1.812%

1.812%

1.812%

8.220%

1.440%

Maturity Par Fair Value
11/15/13 § 3,059,858 $ 3,059,858
05/20/05 6,041,440 6,041,440
251,319 251,919

03/06/05 100,000 100,000
8,684,431 8,684,431

219,970 219,970

1,224,710 1,224,710

2,906,880 2,906,880

22,374 22,374

1,640,143 1,640,143

510,837 510,837
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SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING BOND INDEBTEDNESS AND
ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

December 31, 2004

2001 Bonds Aggregate
Principal Bond
Installments Interest Service
Year Ending December 31

2005 $ 3,825,000 $ 2,122,540 $ 5,947540
2006 4,000,000 1,959,978 5,959,978
2007 4,185,000 1,789,978 5,974,978
2008 4,380,000 1,612,115 5,992,115
2009 4,590,000 1,415,015 6,005,015
2010 4,820,000 1,208,465 6,028,465
2011 5,055,000 991,565 6,046,565
2012 5,305,000 764,090 6,069,090
2013 5,570,000 525,365 6,095,365
2014 5,845,000 b W 6,119,715
Total 2001 Bonds $ 47575,000 $ 12,663,826 $ 60,238,826

SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING BOND INDEBTEDNESS AND
ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

December 31, 2004
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The Message in the Bottle:
“If you want great tasting, high quality
bottled water in Louisville, all you need
is the bottle.”

LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY
550 S. Third Street
Louisville,KY 40202
Phone 502.569.3600
www.louisvillewater.com
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Louisville Water Company provides water fo about 810,000 people in Greater Louisville end parfs of
Oldham and Bullitt Counties. In 2002, the company delivered an average of more than 130 million
gallons per day through about 3,300 miles of water main.

Water is drawn from the Ohio River at two poinls: the raw waler pump station at Zorn Avenue and River
Road, and the B. E. Payne pump station northeast of Harrods Creek. Water is also drawn

“._  from a riverbank infiltration well af the Poyne plant.
CONTENTS :
s~ 0 The water is treated at two locations: the Crescent Hill plant which has o

Highlighis— 3 \_ capacity of 180 million gollons per day, and the Payne plant, which has a
v \\. capacity of 45 million gallons per day. Both plants treat the water using

President’s Message — 5
% processes that include coagulation, softening, corrosion stabilization,
|

Year in Review — 7

Suef Wilor Revmons Anolsis — 1 disinfection, filtration, fluoridation and final disinfection. The Crescent Hill plant

Miimenonts Diissian / ako uses presedimentation.

and Analysis — 17 /
/ Active storage capacity for treated water totals 58.98 million gallons, in

Financials —23 /

\ Caepeste lamansr.~ 47/ /. reservoirs, elevated tanks and standpipes.
= r Mains range up to 60 inches in diameter. Booster pump stations, pressure-reducing

stations and water storage facilities are used to maintain the appropriate
pressure throughout the system,

To ensure the highest quality, the company operates a laboratory certified by the state of Kentucky under U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency standards, performing more than 120,000 water quality tests every year.

In addition to water sold fo its retail customers, the company wholesales water to West Shelby Water. District,
North Shelby Water Company, North Nelson Water District, Taylorsville and Mount Washington.

|
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OFERATIONS

The folowing i millons of galles:

Water defivered o mains 47,405
Total consumption 40,204
Unaccounted-for water 7,201
Average daily delivery 130
Average daily water usage 110
Average daily pumpage 130
Maximum daily pumpage 178
Other measures:

Percent of water uncccounted for 15%

Average resdoniial monthly water bill *  $ 1413

*Based upon median usage of 6,000 gollons per month

002

2001

46,313
39,378
6,934
127
108
127
175

15%

SRS

™ Figures conected from 2000 annval rport figures, whith are shown in parenthases

2002 WATER

REVENUE Residential

45%

Private Fira Services -

i

45,414
39,776
6,639
1
109
127 (130)
** 188 (190)

W

e 1) 4 G

Municipal

3h

.

1%

49092
41,989
7103
134
115
138
198

14%

Wholesale
2%

ok

45,357
38,538
4,521
124
106
12
173

185%
$ 1228

il

45,126
38,541
6,461
124
106
126
162

14%

ST
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Louisville and Jefferson County underwent a historic change in 2002: the
transition to a new metropolitan city-county govemment that became effective in

January 2003.

As the city and county became one, we completed our program fo offer the opportuni-

ty of water service to every property along a public roadway in the new cily. Jahn Huber, IWC Presidert

We also expanded service in nearby counties, acquiring the Goshen and Shepherdsville water utilities
and continuing improvements in Bullitt County.

To keep up with a developing service area and to continue to offer the finest quality water possible, our
board adopted a 20year, $900 million facilifies plan. Major projecis will provide advanced freatment,
increased capacity, and continued renovation and replacement of older facilities.

Safety and security measures were improved, and will continue to be improved, as a result of the terror-
ist attacks of September 11, 2001.

Financially, 2002 was a favorable year despite the downturn in the national economy. Sales exceeded
our forecast, operation and maintenance costs were less than budgeted, and the number of customers
continued to grow.

The normal sales pattern was skewed by abnormal weather conditions; while louisville had its fourth-
largest annual rainfall on record, there was a major dry spell in July and August.

Despite tasfe and odor problems caused by the drought, customer satisfaction matched the high levels
of the previcus year, reflecting our continuing efforts to improve water quality, service and communication.
Our Customer Advisory Council and Technical Advisory Committee helped considerably by providing
valuable feedback on new programs and customer expectafions.

The company has adopted Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34),
and financial statements are reported for the first time in the new formal. Note 1 of the financial statements
provides a summary of how rescurces are classified under the rule. Financial statements for 2001 have been
restated in the GASB 34 format fo provide comparable information for the two years.

G
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VISION
* To be o water supplier of
choice throughout the regicn, operat
_ing in a highly cempetitive, cusiomer-
focused manner; celivering outstonding
quality, customer safislaction and value.

MISSION
To serye the water needs of our
customers through outstending quality,
. service and v’uie at a market refurn
to aur shareholders.
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PLANNING FOR THE FUTURE
Qur 20-year facilities plan, adopted in mid-2002 after three years of work, provides a detoiled guide

for meeting the challenges of the future. The plan provides for spending more than $200 million (in 2002
dollars) to provide adequate supplies of the highest quality water for our growing metropolitan area.

The basic areas for improvement include:

* Advanced treatment facilities to continue to provide the highest quality water possible;
» Infrastructure renewal to maintain and improve cur existing system; and

« System expansion to provide service for developing areas.

ADVANCED TREATMENT

Water treatment methods throughout the nation are being improved to meet new, stricter standards that
cre being imposed to assure public health prolection and water quclity in general.

While the Chio River provides an abundant supply of water, the qudlity of the water varies consider-
ably, and ireatment is challenging.

We plan to spend about §140 million over the next 20 years fo meel these challenges—most of it in
the next 10 years.

Across the country, water quality experts are cancerned chout natural and man-made substances that
can contaminate surface water, including:
* Cryptosporidium, a harmful organism that cannot be killed by chlorine disinfection;
» Harmful byproducts that can be formed by the reaction of chlorine with certain pollutants;
* Atrazine and ofher herbicides, pesficides and other harmful chemicals; and

 Pharmaceuticals.

)
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The New Well System

Tests at Louisville Water Company since the mid 1990s have shown that
water drawn from wells in the aquifer along the Ohio River is essentially free
of nearly all of these substances. As a result, the company decided in 2002
to proceed with a plan to install enough wells near the B. E. Payne plant to
provide a total of 60 million gallons per day.

The system, as currenfly proposed, will cost about $30 million. It will include:
» About 35 to 40 wells, drilled through the aquifer and down to a tunnel in
bedrock;
* A 6,000400t tunnel, about 10 feet in diameter, to collect the water from the wells; and
« A small pump house, adjacent to the pump house that now draws water from the river at the
B. E. Payne plant.
The advantages of the well system include:
« Water from the ground essentially meets the present safe drinking water standards (and will be
treated further to assure consistent high quality);

« Water temperatures vary much less than river water, providing cooler water in the summer and
warmer water in the winter, and reducing thermal siress on water mains;

« Protection from spills on the Ohio River; and
* Protection from cryptosporidium and other harmful microorganisms.
Design of the new system is scheduled to be made final in the summer of 2003. Construction is
scheduled to start early in 2004, and to be completed by 2007.
Crescent Hill Plant Improvements

An improvement scheduled at the Crescent Hill plant by 2007 is a $13 million ultraviolet disinfection
system to supplement the present chlorine-based system for water drawn from the river. (A $4.5 million ultra-
violet system will be considered at the B. E. Payne plant later)

)
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Experience with the wells and the new ultraviolet system over the next few years will help determine
how to treat the water at the historic Crescent Hill plant in the future. Major improvements are planned
between 2007 and 2011, at an estimated cost of $21 million.

MAINTAINING OUR SYSTEM

Keeping our present system up-to-date and in good repair is vital. We plan to spend $250 million over
the next 20 years fo do so.

One example of our maintenance challenges is the pair of reservoirs at the Crescent Hill plant, now
125 years old. Increasing problems with underground leaks made it necessary to begin an extensive reno-
vation program in the mid-1990s: by the end of 2003, most of the major work will be complete.

Another example is our network of water mains, some more than 100 years old. An
ongoing program to replace or rehabilitate all 660 miles of mains installed before 1935
is on schedule to be completed by the end of 2007. And we plan fo replace all of

the remaining lead-pipe service lines between our mains and our customers’ lines
by 2015.

Some highlights of these acfivities in 2002:
* 10.6 miles of old mains replaced;
= 10.5 miles of old mains rehabilitated; and

* More than 2,500 lead pipe services replaced.

EXPANSION AND DEVELOPMENT
More than $150 million in new water mains, pumping facilities and storage facilities will be
required to meet anticipated growth over the next 20 years. Progress in 2002 included work in all three

counties of our service area.
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VALUES
Customer Focus

: Teamwork
 Pride in Workmansh
Trust.
Empowerment
Diversity 8
- Coniinuous Learning %
- Continous lmpmm

To keep up with o devel
oping service area and fo
continue 1o offer the finest quality

water possible, our bourd adopled a
20year, $900 million facilities plan, Major
projects will provide advanced treatment,
increased capacity, and continued

renovation and replocement of
older facilities.
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B. E. Payne Plant Expansion

A $20.5 million program to increase the capacity and improve facilities at the B. E. Payne plant was
approved in 2002, The expansion, scheduled to be completed by fall 2004, will increase capacity from the
present 45 million gallons per day to 40 million gallons per day—helping serve a rapidly growing part of
our service areq.

Jefferson County

In Jefferson County, we completed our program to provide the opportunity for service to every property
along a public road.

« We installed nearly 17 miles of new mains along existing roads in Jefferson County, offering serv-
ice to 272 new properfies.
* Developers installed more than 35 miles of new mains, offering service fo 3,039 new properties.
Bullitt County
The 10-year program fo improve and expand the former Kentucky Turnpike systems was on schedule
at the end of its second year.
* $5.2 million was committed for iransmission mains and extensions;
= 17.7 miles of new main were placed in service;
* 131 new fire hydrants were installed; and
* A new elevated fank was finished fo improve service fo areas of higher elevation in the county.
The Shepherdsville water system, a former wholesale customer of Louisville Water Company, was
acquired on December 23.
* Purchase price: assumption of $650,000 in debt and other obligations
« Cusfomers: about 1,800
» Cost of improvements scheduled over next three years: about $1.6 million

+ Rates remain at the former level until costs of acquisition and improvements are recovered, then
will be reduced to IWC rates. Estimated fime frame: four to seven years

LWC 0171



Oldham County
The Goshen Utilities water system, which bought part of its water from Louisville Water Company, was
acquired on July 31. It will be operated os a subsidiary of Louisville Water Company.
* Purchase price: $3.5 million
= Customers: about 1,900
* Water supply: converted entirely to Louisville Water Company in November
* Cost of improvements scheduled aver next two years: about $1.5 million

* Rates remain at the former level until costs of acquisition and improvements are recovered, then
will be adjusted to LWC rates. Estimated time frame: 16 years

We also continued to expand and improve our services in Bullitt and Oldham
Couniies. During 2002, we installed nearly 18 miles of new mains in these coun-
ties, offering service to 222 new properties.

SERVING OUR CUSTOMERS
Several programs to improve customer service were inifiated and
completed in 2002. As a result, our customer satisfaction levels remained high,
reflecting our continuing efforts to improve water quality, service and

communication.

One factor helped keep satisfaction levels from being higher: taste and odor prob-
lems in late September and early October as a result of unusually dry weather. When lack of rainfall
increases the clarity of the Ohio River, more sunlight penstrates the water, increasing the growth of algae.
The clgae, in urn, create substances that can be tasted and smelled in the water. Treatment with activated
carbon removes most of these substances, and most customers do net notice any remaining faste or odor.

However, sensitive people can still detect the substances in the water.

|
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Among the major accomplishments in 2002:

* Customers were given the option, for the first time, of paying
their bills with debit or credit cards;

* The program to reorganize meter reading routes for increased
efficiency was completed;

= Customer service representatives handled calls more quickly and effi-
ciently, and the number of customer calls with quesfions cnd complaints
declined. Both factors reduced the frequency af which customers hung up after waiting on hold;

* A new internal customer satisfaction survey measured how well our employees and departments
interact with one another. The results were fovorable, but also identified areas for improvement in
2003;

* Our Customer Advisory Council met regularly, providing valuable ideas on new programs and
customer communication opporiunifies; and

* Our Technical Adyisory Council, made up of a variety of experts from outside the company,
provided valuable advice on developing plans for the new system of wells along the Ohio River.

FINANCES

Woater sales increased in 2002, bringing a carrespanding increase in revenue.

Sales, however, did not increase as much as the number of customers, reflecting the wetterthan-normal
year and the slump in national economy. A slight decline in industrial sales—the result of the continuing slow
change from an industrial to a service sconomy in our service area—was more than offset by an increase in
residential and commercial sales.

In 2002, we paid $12,379,623 in dividends ta our owner, the City of Louisville, and provided water
in lieu of taxes valued at $8,165,765.
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In 2003, we expect to pay the new Louisville-Jefferson County Metro government $12,318,800 in div-
idends. With the increase in government agencies and facilities, we expect to provide about $8,628,200
in water in lieu of taxes.

Water Rates

At the end of 2002, our board approved a rate increase averaging 3.5 percent effective lanuary 1,
2003. This followed increases averaging 4.25 percent on January 1, 2002, and 3.5 percent on January
1,2001.

Financing Qur Facilities Plan

Our 2002-2021 facilities plan, which calls for $212 million in improvements (in 2002 dollars), includes
the following assumptions:

* An annual inflation rate averaging 3 percent;

« Annual rate increases at or below 3.5 percent;

* Annual growth in operating expenses at or below 3.5 percent;
* Annual depreciction expenses of 2.3 percent of utility plant;
 Annual increases in water consumption of 0.5 percent or less;
* Maintaining our capacity for issuing dividends; and

* Maintaining our present bond rating.

With these factors in mind, we anticipate borrowing about $57 million in 2006 to help finance the
improvements. The remaining funds would come from earnings and capital contributions.
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CUSTOMER
INVOLYEMENT
- IWC depends onits -
© customers for feedboack. ©
- Tweniy customers serve °
: on a Cusfomer Advisory: -
- Council that meets every -

- Financially, 2002 was o
Y favorable year despite the down:

turn in the national econamy. Sales

exceeded our forecast, operalion and

maintenance costs were lass than bud-

\ geted, and the number of customers

continued fo grow.
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SALE OF WATER REVENUE ANALYSIS

T8

0

. Fovonie YD
2002
11,436,390.40 10,960,404.12
13,524,107.62 12,968,593.86
315959313 3,43,568.02
49918140 490,761.05
1,791,926.06 1,714,168.68
2,210,235 2,637,618.47
RME N
13,506,075.45 12,678,401.17
9,418,794.08 9,140,196.09
406272131 342700991
553,565.24 52141142
1,487.462.91 1,343,185.04
47,618.90 45,629.09
S5paST K78
19,412,052 46 27,551,626.42
17,523,078.91 14,938,516.14
9,133,855.30 8,467,422.97
388,682.92 475,087.63
543,926.25 482,667.03
1,910,212.00 1,733,998.29
544,804.82 553,636.86
182968508 180920905
31,874,247.03 28,460,548.27
42,485 54476 38,577,371.48
,086,757.00 30,575,212.92
7610,997.36 7,045,705.46
1,596,472.89 1,494,339.70
5,189,400.97 4,791,352.01
1,863,149.24 3,230,944.42
2,155,499.60 2.204,993.00
93,968,321.82 §7.926,869.19

[AUDITED)
Number of
(ustomers
Ve e . through December 31,

] / 2001
GENERAL PRESSURE PLANE SERVICES - CITY
Residentiol 72,361 12429
Commeiciol 9,557 9,610
Industricl 259 267
Fire Services & Fire Hydrants 1,535 1,524
Public Fire Hydrants 6,227 6,218
Municipl 445 388
Totol City 90,384 90,436
GENERAL PRESSURE PLANE SERVICES - COUNTY
Residential 71439 1167
Commercial 7052 7,007
Industricl L) 72
Fire Services & Fire Hydrants 1453 1,435
Public Fire Hydrants 530 4984
Hunicipel 40 8
Whalesale el o e
Total County 7,400 90,675
ELEVATED SERVICES CITY & COUNTY
Residentiol 81,286 76,515
Commerdial 5251 5,035
Industrial 9 b
Fire Senvices & Fire Hydiants 1370 1313
Public Fire Hydrants 6,745 6,429
Municipal 3 4
Total Elevated Services 94,668 89,317
TOTALS
Residential 231,086 261
(ommerdal 21,860 21,652
Industrial 342 345
Fire Services & Fire Hydmnts 4358 4282
Public Fire Hydrants 18,293 17631
Municipal 508 400
Wholesals 6 7
Other/Fil Stations 98
GRAND TOTALS 6841 170,666

; ’“ Al categories, excluding Whelesule, ore sarvicas acive in the Jast 30 days,

Consumption - YTD
_ (1000 Gallons)
2002 201
4,656,910 4,490,454
6,657,455 6718110
1817958 1,750,138
14,953 24854
1,249,554 1,574,065
MA06800  WMISTEN
5,188,069 5,084,369
4,576,311 4,560,733
2,800,654 2775015
12559 15,866
2,757 11,84
o msw 261420
292157 12709467
6,882,175 6,121,340
4,003,668 3,902,006
239.820 324,004
10,259 11,39
408,37 25,045
1300472 1,326,545
12,864,765 11,911,134
16,737.214 15,896,143
15,237 434 15,180,849
493843 4,850,157
qm 52,114
6168 18091
1,573,279 1,587,965
0208812 38,1

Revenue
(1000 Golens)
000 20
245050 233675
20347 193039
739 179619
203965 205739
260330 24930
206035 200411
14105 123487
203504 203%1
254615 244040
2019 217002
152073 146269
136496 136386
231630 220051
25719 24268
200578 201413
154118 145248
137007 138857
219087 20899
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4
The following discussion and analysis of Louisville Water Company's financial performance provides an overview of the

Company’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. Please read if in conjunction with the President’s
Message on page 5 and the Company's consolideted financial statements, which follow this section.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual financial report consists of three parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Consolidated Financial
Statements, and Additional Information. The Consolidated Financial Statements also include notes that explain in more detail some
of the information in the financial statements. The statements are followed by a section of Additional Information that further
explains and supports the information in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of the
annual financial report are arranged and relate o one another. The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company report
information about the Company using accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies, except for the report-
ing of contributions in aid of construction, equity capital and retained earnings (see the section tiled New Accounting Standard
for more detail on adoption of GASB 34). These statements offer short and longterm financial information about its activities.

Figure A-1
Required Components of Louisville Water Company’s Annual Financial Report
Management’s Basic Additional
Discussion Financial Information
and Analysis Statements
e e o SR gl

Statement of Statement Statement Noles to the
Net Assets of Revenues, of Cash Flows Financial

Expenses and Statements

Changes in

Net Assets
Summdry e A aE S T IS P e e Defui]

The Statement of Net Assets, successor to the Balance Sheet, includes all of the Company’s assets and liabilities and pro-
vides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets| and the obligations to Company creditors
(liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Company and assessing the liquidity and financial
flexibility of the Company.

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Assets, successor to the Income Statement. This statement measures the success of the Company's operotions over the past

1
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year and can be used to determine whether the Company has successfully recovered all of its costs through its water rates and

other charges, has earned a profit, and has maintained credit worthiness.

The final required financial siatement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of this statement is to provide
information about the Company's cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, and
financing activities and provides information on the sources and uses of cash and the changes in cash balances during the year.

Financial Highlights

= Total Assets increased by $27,035,349 or 4.18%, from $646,554,753 in 2001 to $673,590,102 in 2002, due 1o
increases in Utility Plant.

* Operating Revenues increased by $5,402,875 or 5.82%, from $92,769,156 to $98,172,031, due to a 4.25% rate
increase and additional drought-related water sales to residential accounts.

* Operating Expenses increcsed by $2,028,527 or 4.66% from $62,814,427 to $65,742,954, due to increases in
Operation and Maintenance Expenses, Depreciation Expense, and Water Service Provided in Lieu of Taxes.

* Income before distributions and contributions increased by $1,560,786 or 5.94%, from $26,271,962 to
$27,832,748 due to Operating Revenues increasing faster than Operating Expenses.

* Dividends Paid and Payoble decreased by $696,721 or 5.33%, from $13,076,344 to 12,379,623. The Company
also distributed the former corporate headquarters property, valued at $879,564, to the City of Louisville.

* The Company acquired Geshen Utilities, Inc. and the City of Shepherdsville water system in 2002.

Statement of Net Assets

Total Net Assets increased by $31,220,330 in 2002 (see Figure A-2). The largest porfion of Net Assets is Utility Plant, which
increased by $45,377800 in 2002 through acquisitions and capital improvements. The capital improvements were funded by
requisitions from the Construction and Acquisifion Fund and by Contributions in Aid of Construction from developers, customers
and governmental agencies. The Construction and Acquisition Fund was established with the proceeds from the Series 2000
Revenue Bond lssue in September 2000. The criginal amount depusited inlo the Construction and Acquisition Fund was
$74,463,587. The balance as of Jonuary 1, 2002 was $15,374,616. This was requisitioned and spent by June 2002, as reflect
ed in the decrease in non-current assets. Debt decreased by $4,338,224 primarily due to principal payments on the Series 2001
Bonds made during the year. No bond principal payments were due on the Series 2000 Bond Issue in 2000, 2001 and 2002.
The first principal payment for the Series 2000 Bonds is in November 2003. Debt is discussed in more detail in the section filed
Capital Assets and Debt Administration.

|
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Figure A-2
Condensed Statement of Net Assets

Percent
_______ SR G el e SR, 2001 Difference Change
Current Assets $ 26,630,856 $28792,555 [$2,161,699) (7.51%)
Noncurrent Assets 58,619,401 74,800,153 (16,180,752) (21.63%)
Utility Plant 588,330,845 542,962,045 45,377,800 8.36%
Total Assets 673,590,102 646,554,753 27,035,349 4.18%
Current Liabilities 20,992,932 20,676,124 316,808 1.53%
Long-Term Liabilities 137,356,970 141,858,759  (4,501,798) (3.17%)
Tofol Net Assets. | $515240200  $484019.670  $31220330 6.45%

Contributions in Aid of Construction are composed of: pipeline contributions from developers for water main extensions and
from governmental agencies for water main relocations; service installation fees from customers; apportionment warrant fees and
tapping fees from customers to extend water service info unserved residences; and system dave|opmenr chdrges from customers
for growth-related expansion. The level of capital contributions varies from yearfo-year and is affecied by economic cycles. These
types of projects are fully funded or nearly-fully funded by outside entities in advance of consiruction.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Revenues increased by $5,402,875 (see Figure A-3). Water sales increased by 825.6 million gallons in 2002.
This is equivalent fo approximately eight days of billable consumption. The increase in operating revenues is due to o 4.25% rate
increase effective January 1, 2002, ond additional droughtrelated water scles to residential accounts. Operating Expenses
increased by $2,928,527. The key components of operating expenses are: Operation and Maintenance Expenses, Depreciation
Expense, and Water Service Provided in Lieu of Taxes. Operations and Maintenance Expenses increased by $2,333,507 due
to addifional water treatment and pumping costs, raw water transmission main break repairs, and increased labor wage and
salary rates. Non-operating expenses increased by $1,124,300 due to: a write-down in uncollectable damage claims receiv-
able, @ modification to the policy for accruing vacation expense, and prior research and development cosis for @ capital project
design that will not be pursued. Non-operating income decreased by $2,589,252 or 57.9% in 2002 as investments earning
between five and six percent interest malured and were reinvested ai between one and two percent. Net non-opercting expens-
es [non-operating expenses less non-operating income] increased by $3,166,918. Income before distributions and contributions
increased by $1,560,786 due to Operating Revenue increasing faster than Operating Expenses. The formula for computing the
dividend is established as a covenant in the Series 1992 Bond Resolution. The dividend is calculated s sixty percent of net
income after deducting bond principal payments and certain other items. Dividends Paid and Payable decreased by $696,721
or 5.33%, from $13,076,344 to $12,379,623, though, due te exclusion of higher principal payments made during the year.
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The adoption of GASB 34 requires the recording of contributions in aid of construction as a change in net assets recorded in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, instead of as liability recorded in the Statement of Financial Position
in previous years. As a result, the change in net assets each year will be the net income before dividends, less dividends paid
and payable, plus contributions in aid of construction.

Figure A-3
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Percent
G i 2002 2001  Difference  Change
Operating Revenue $ 98,172,031 $ 92,769,156 § 5,402,875 5.82%
Operating Expenses (65,742,954) (62,814,427 ) 2,928,527 4.66%
Net Operating Revenue 32,429,077 29,954,729 2,474,348 8.26%
Net Non-Operating Expenses (4,596,329) (1,429,411) 3,166,918 221.55%
Income Befare Extraordinary Item 27,832,748 28,525,318 (692,570) (2.43%)
Extraordinary Loss 0 (2,253,356) (2,253,356)
Income Before Distributions and Contributions 27,832,748 26,27],962 1,560,786 5.94%
Dividends Paid and Payable (12,379,623) (13,076,344) (696,721} {5.33%)
Distributed Property (879,564) 0 879,564 -
Contributions 16,646,769 14,527,045 2,119,724 14.59%
Increase in Net Assets 31,220,330 27,722,663 3,497,667 12.62%
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 484,019,870 273,398,799 -
Cumulative Effect, GASB No. 34 0 182,898,408 :
Net Assets, Beginning of Year, As Restated 484,019,870 456,297207
Net Assets, End of Year $515240,200 $484019870  $31220,330 6.45%

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash from Operafing Activities increased by $7,031,851 (see Figure A-4) due to increased amounts receivad from cus-

tomers. Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities decreased by $10,843,430 due increased acquisition and construc-
tion of utility plant. Cash from Investing Activities increased by $7,007,053 due to reduced reinvestment of securities in order to
fund the investments in utility plant. The net change in cash and temporary invesiments was negligible and was consistent with
Management’s expectations,

]
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Figure A-5

Debt Service Coverage
Percent
s RSl 2002 2001 _Difference _ Change
Income Available for Debt Service $33,184,600  $35,596,200 (2,411,600) 6.77%)
Current Aggregate Net Debt Service $ 9,951,400 $ 8,175,200 1,776,200 NT73%
Compgutons’ - n e T B8 0 vdids S e (889N

New Accounting Standard

The Company adopted Statement No. 34 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB 34) for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2002. For financial reporting purposes, the Company is considered a Specialpurpose Government
Engoged Only in Businesstype Activifies. Management completed the appropriate planning and software changes to be fully
compliant with GASB 34 prier to the beginning of 2002. The primary effects of this Stalement have been the transfer of contri-
butions in aid of construction to net assets and the change in the names and presentation formats of the financial statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Water sales in 2003 are not expected to increase over the 2002 Budget due to lagging local and national economic con-
ditions. Residential and commercial consumption is expected fo remain level, while indusirial consumption is expected fo
decrease and municipal consumption increases. Operation and maintenance expenses in 2003 are budgeted to increase by
$1,133,700 or 2.7% from the 2002 Budget to address increased expenses and to provide funding for new initiatives. Water
rates will be increased by 3.50% for water service on and cfter January 1, 2003. Management believes that the 2003 Budget
adequately addresses all revenue requirements, pending stable economic conditions. If the economy worsens, Management
anticipates it can reduce expenses by an adequate amount to offset reduced sales.

Contacting the Company’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, ratepayers, customers, creditors and stockholder with a general
overview of the Company's finances and to show the Company’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions
about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Treasurer’s Office at Louisville Water Company, 550 South
Third Street, Louisville, KY, 40202

}
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 2

Board of Water Works
Louisville Water Company
Louisville, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of net assets of Louisville Water Company as of December 31, 2002
and 2001, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stendards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the ameunts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounfing principles used and significant eslimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audits provide a reasonable bosis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial siatements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Louisville Water Company as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then

ended, in canformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, Louisville Water Company adopted the provisions of Governmental Accaunting

Standards Board Statement No. 34, ond related statements.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of Louisville Water
Company taken as a whole. The data contained on pages 42 through 46 is presented for purposes of addifional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjecfed to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of

the basic financial stalements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation ta the basic financial statements
taken as a whole,

The Mcnagemant's Discussion and Anclysis (MD&A) on pages 17 through 22 is not a required part of the consclidated financial
statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limit-
ed procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the

required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Crowe, Chizek and Company LLP

Louisville, Kentucky éf'n«_ %‘L a‘“févf? Lp
February 10, 2003
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STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2002 and 2001

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and temporary investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance:
Water
Sewer (contra)
Other
Materials and supplies
Bond Service Account - Series 2001
Bond Service Account - Series 2000
KTWD Debt Discharge Fund
Prepaid expenses
Accrued interest receivable
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Non-utility property
Contracts receivable
Bond Reserve Account
Depreciation Fund
Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund
Apportionment Warrant Reserve
System Development Charge Reserve
US. Treasury State and Local Government Fund
Construction and Acquisition Fund
Bullitt County Water Reserve
Retirement plan past service costs, net
Unamortized debt discount and expense
Other deferred charges
Utility plant, net i
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

e

$ 6,627144

4,000,285
5,652,228
2,909,623
4,280,110
614,756
445,513
1,367,161
656,881

26,630,856

105,121
3,987,043
3,059,858

39,674,829
5,453,412
22,817
324,863
1,640,143

234,141
1,778,344
1,001,692
1,337,138
388,339,845

sdavovaas
. $673590102

77155

2001

$ 4753218

4,441,521
6,254,697
2,244,527
4,885,595
1,942,777
449,781
2,786,664
726,852
306,923
28,792,555

105,384
5,105,565
3,059,858

32,753,561
9,052,295
223,069
429,502
1,640,143
15,374,616
1,196,167
1,991,745
1,032,004
2,836,244
542,962,045
617,762,198

_ $646,554,753
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2002 2001

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,797378B $ 1032910
Sewer Collections (contra) 6,265,040 7041524
Customer advances, currently refundable 34,812 40,533
Customer Deposits 107,895
Tax collections payable 234,680 277037
Bonds and notes payable, current porfion 5,719,268 5,572,502
Accrued interest payable 810,805 881549
Dividend payable 357,886 477094
Contracts payable, retainage percentage |, 788,267 1,188,474
Accrued payroll 292,510
Accrued vacation and sick leave 2,492,786 2,398,768
Insurance reserve _ _ 1,417115 11,473,223
Total current liabilities 20,992,932 20,676,124
Longterm liabilities
Customer advances for construction 8,616,970 8,633,759
Bonds payable, less current portion 128,740,000 133,225,000
Total long-term liabilities . 137,356,970 141,858,759
Total liabilities 158,349,902 162,534,883
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 453,880,577 404,164,543
Restricted, expendable 52,837493 68,908,433
Unrestricied iy 8,522,130 10,946,894
Total net assets $515,240200 $484,019.870
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Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

Opemtiﬁg-réve:n;e; 7

Operating éxpensas
Operation expenses
Mammnoine expeis

Total operation and maintenance expenses
Depreciafion expense
Amortizalion expense
Taxes and water service provided in lieu of taxes
_ Loss from sale and salvage of retired assets
_ Total operating expenses

Net operating revenue

Nonoperating income [expense)
Interest income
Other income
_ Interest expense
_ Net non-cperating expense

Income before extraordinary items

Extraordinary items - loss on early extinguishment of debt

Income before distributions and contributions
Distributed property
Dividends paid end payable

[ncracm in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,
_adoption of GASB Statement No. 34

Net assets, beginning of year, as restated

Net assets, end of year

o T

2002

33,569,645
_ B.798,278

42367923

14,553,175
(133,958)

8,165,765

790,049

BRI
. 32,429077

1,880,024
310,827

_ 16,787,180)

(4,596,329)
27,832,748
0

27,832,748

(879,564)
(12,379,623)

16,646,769

31,220,330

484,019,870

L BRI RAD
$515,240200

2001

$ 92,769,156

32,147,328

__ 7,887,088

40,034,416

14,233,126
(185,814)
8,016,185
716,514
62,814,427

29,954,729

4,469,276
1,172,132

_ (7,070,819)
(1,429,411)

28,525,318

_ (2,253,35¢)

26,271,962

(13,076,344)
14,527,045

. 27722,663

273,398,799

182,898,408

436,297,207
_ $484,019,870
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and others
_Cash paid to employees for services

Net cash from operating acfivities

Cash Hows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of utility plant
Allowance for funds used during construction
Debt issued
KTWD Debt Discharge Fund
Proceeds from sale and salvage of refired assets
Contributions in aid of construction
Customer advances for construction
Refunds of customer advances for construction
Costs incurred fo retire assets
Extraordinary loss on bond refinance
Principal paid
Interest paid
Dividends paid
_MNonutility property reduction
Net cash from capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
System Development Charge Reserve
Apportionment Warrant Reserve
Purchase of securifies
Proceeads from maturities and sales of securities
Interest received
Other non-operating income
Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund
Contracts

Net cash from investing activities

2002

$ 90,495,215
(12,380,792)

_ [26,213,240)

51,901,183

(62,639,948)
1,054,894
490,000
1,419,503

(53,779)
16,646,769
5,718,816

(5,741,326)

(4,828,234}
(6,731,069)
(12,498,831)
sl 26
(67,162,942)

104,639
200,252
(28,686,679)
39,434,341
2,109,792
(744,066)
3,598,884

N L R
L Nhtegets

2001

$ 84,734,578
(15,743,481)

_ (24121,765)

44,869,332

(48,515,271)
810,261

764,371
77,349
14,527,044
5,024,350
(4,120,505)
(198,843)
(2,253,356)
(2,670,271)
(7.064,810)
(12,699,506)
375
(56,319,512)

(344,424)
(80,590)
(33,702,159)
43,050,820
4,940,472
361,871
(3,387,238)
(710,122)
10,128,632

)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

Net decrease in cash and temporary investments
Cash and temporary investments, beginning of year

Cash and temporary investments, end of year

Reconciliation of net operating revenue to net cash provided by operating aclivities

Net operaling revenue

Adjusiments to reconcile net operating revenue to net cash from operating acfivities:

Debt discount/expense

Depreciation

Amortization

Amortization of retirement plan past service costs
Loss from sale and salvage of retired assets

{Increase) decrease in cash due to changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable
Materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses
Other deferred charges
Accounts payable
Accounts payable, sewer collections
Customer deposits
Tax collections payable
Contracts payable, refainage percentage
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Accrued payroll
Insurance reserve

Totol adjustments

Net cash from operating acfivities

e o SReilce
$ 1,873,926 $ (1,321,548)
4753218 6074766
$ 6627144 $ 4753218
$32,429,077 $29,954,729
30,311 1,511,878
15,780,272 15,424,708
(133,958) {185,814)
213,401 213,401
790,049 716,515
(223,860) 478,797
605,485 (258,628)
130,756 (139,701)
1,499,106 (821,790)
637,613 (2,585,900)
(174,015) 131,244
107,895 (2,656)
(42,357) (163,636)
566,793 70,918

94,018 138,812
(353,295) 223,899
(s108] 162,556
19472106 14914603
_$51,901,183  $44,869,332

)
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Description of the Business: Louisville Water Company (“Company”) is a provider of water and related services to resi-
dential, commercial, industrial, fire and wholesale consumers in Jefferson, Bullitt and Oldham Counties. The Company is whal-
ly owned by the City of Louisville and therefore follows Governmental Accounting Standards.

Basis of Presentation: The accompanying consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordence with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Leuisville Water Company and ifs
wholly owned subsidiary, Goshen Utilities (see Note 12) and have been prepared on the accrual basis of aceounting. Under
the accrual basis of accounting, revenves are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when an obligation has
been incurred. The Company reports as a Business Type Activity (BTA). BTAs are those activities that are financed in whole or in
part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services.

The Company adopted GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis
- for States and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 37. The Company also adopted GASB Statement
Nao. 38, Certain Financial Statement Nate Disclosures. GASB Statement No. 34 establishes standards for external financial
reporting for state and local governments and requires that resources be classified for accounting and reparting purposes into
the following net asset categories:

s Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding prin-
cipal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of thase assets.
* Restricted:
Nonexpendable - Net assets subjected to externally imposed sfipulations that they be maintained permanently
by the Company.
Expendable - Net assets whose use by the Company is subject to externally imposed stipulations that can be ful
filled by actions of the Company pursuant fo those stipulations or that expire by the passage of time.

* Unresiricted: Net assefs whose use by the Company is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. Unrestricted net
assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board of Water Works or may oth-
erwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.
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Beginning of year equity capital has been restated fo reflect the upplication of the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34,

as follows:

Total equity capital, as previously reported $273,398,799

GASB No. 34 adjustments:
Contributions in aid of construction
required to be reported as net

assets by GASB No. 34

_Total equity capital, restated as net assets

182,898,408
_ $436,207,207

Method of Accounting: The Company’s accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America for water ufilities. Although the Company is not subject to regulation, the accounts are maintained in
accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners,
except with respect to the treatment of gains and losses from the retirement or disposition of fixed assets. The Company recog-
nizes gain or loss, including cost of removal, upon the retirement or disposition of fixed assets rather than the transfer of cost fo
accumulated depreciation, as provided by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners.

Estimates in the Financial Statements: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of confingent assets and liabilities at the date of the finandal statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Utility Plant: Utility plant is staled at cost of acquisition or construction, including certain indirect costs. The Company
applies the siraightline method of depreciation to the estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable property. The
estimated useful lives of some significant asset categories are as follows:

Buildings 50 to 100 years
Pipelines 65 to 100 years
Fire hydrants 50 years
Services 40 years
Meters 15 years
Equipment 5to 10 years
Trucks and autes 5 years

Deprecidation expense for 2002 was $15,780,272 of which $1,227,097 was allocoted io other operating expenses.
Depreciation expense for 2001 was $15,424,708 of which $1,191,582 was allocated to other operating expenses.

P
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Capitalized Interest: The Company follows the practice of capitalizing interest during construction on the capital projects
paid with the proceeds of bond issues. Interest in the amount of $1,054,894 and $810,261 was capitalized during 2002 and
2001, respectively.

Revenue: Revenue is recognized in the period in which billings are rendered to consumers. The Company does not accrue

revenue for water delivered but not billed.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: The allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on historical collection expe-
rience and a review of the current status of existing receivables.

Materials and Supplies: Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market.

Statements of Cash Flows: For purposas of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid invest
ments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be temporary investments.

Accrued Vacation and 5Sick Leave: Employees’ vested and accumulated vacation and sick leave are recorded as liabili-
ties in the financial statements. Accrued vocation ond sick leave was $2,492,786 ot December 31, 2002, and $2,398,768 at
December 31, 2001.

Customer Deposits: In 2002, the Company aquired Goshen Utilities, which required a security deposit for new cusiomer
accounts, The Company retained the policy for the Goshen customers and pays 6% interest on all deposits held for ane year.
Total security deposits at December 31, 2002 was $107,895. Customer deposits are included as current liabilities on the state-
ment of net assets.

Customer Advances for Construction: The Company requires customers to make a deposit for the cost of construction of
pipelines and special services. Advances are refundable, within certain time limits up to twenty years, under the terms of the var-

ious confracts.

The customer advance accounts reflect the liability for probable refunds of these construction advances. The amount esti-
mated to be puyable within the next fiscal year is shown as a current liability. Once the refund period has expired, any balance
is transferred to net assets as contributions in aid of construction.

Investment Securities: Investments are reported at fair value with gains and losses included in the statements of income
and retained earnings. Gains or losses on dispositions are determined using the specific identification method.

Union Employees: The Company has numerous employees who are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. At
December 31, 2002 and 2001, 45% of the Company’s employees were covered by a collective bargaining agreement. The
existing agreement was renegotiated in 2001 and expires on January 31, 2006.
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Taxes: The Company, by virtue of its ownership by the City of Louisville, is exempt from taxation by federal, state and local
taxing authorities. However, the Company is liable for certain other taxes and provides water and fire services in lieu of taxes
to the City of Louisville. Tax expense, which includes water and fire services in lieu of taxes, for December 31, 2002 and 2001
was $8,165,765 and $8,016,185, respectively.

Reclassification: Certcin reclassifications have been made to the 2001 financial statements to conform to the classifica-
tions used in 2002,

NOTE 2- 2001 BOND ISSUE RESOLUTION FUNDS

Bond Reserve Account: The Master Bond Resolufion requires that a bond reserve account be established at one-half of
the highest fulure annual maximum aggregate net bond service of $6,119,715 to be poid in 2014. The fund is to be used to pay
maturing bonds and interest in the event funds in the Bond Service Account are not sufficient. Otherwise, funds may not be with-

drawn unfil the bond issue is paid in full. However, the income earned on investments may be transferred to the Bond Service
Account. The reserve is invested in U. S. Treasury Bonds and is shown at fair value.

Depreciation Fund: The Master Bond Resolution requires the Company to mcke monthly deposits of an amount equal to
onetwelfth of an amount not less than the annual depreciation charges info a depreciation fund. The balance includes interest
income earned and the gain on sale of property and is available to fund capital improvements to the water system. The fund is
invested in a U. S. Treasury Note, a fixed income obligalion, repurchase agreements and a sweep account, which are stated at
fair valve. This fund and the funding requirements are also included in the 2000 bond issue (see Note 3).

Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund: The Master Bond Resolution was revised to provide for the creation and fund-
ing in 1993 of the Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund to support the infrastructure main replacement and rehabilitation
projects. Budgeted funding was $2,520,000 and $3,000,000 for 2002 and 2001, respectively. The balance at December
31 is stated at fair value and represents the ramaining budgeted funds and interest eamed on monies invested in a sweep

account.

U. S. Treasury State and Local Government Fund: The Series 2 Nofe Reserve was established in the amount of
$1,440,400 pursuant to the Master Bond Resolufion. The note was paid in August 1993 and the reserve amount was trans-
ferred to the Company and was deposited in the U.S. Treasury State and Local Government Fund. The excess funds from the
2001 Bond Refunding were deposited in this fund. The fund is invested in U.S. Treasury bonds and is shown at fair value.

Bond Service Account: Except to the extent that the interest and principal are to be paid from other available sources, the
Company is required to deposit monthly, into the Trustee's Bend Service Fund, onesixth of the amount of the next succeeding
interest payment on the 2001 Bonds outstanding and ane-twelfth of the next maturing principal of those bonds. The account is
invested in a money market fund and commercial paper, which are stated at fair value.

|
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NOTE 3 - 2000 BOND ISSUE RESOLUTION FUNDS

Bond Reserve Account: The resolution autherizing the Bond (ssue of 2000 requires that a bond reserve account be estob-
lished ot one-half of the highest future annual maximum aggregate net bond service. As an clternative, the Resolufion provides
for deposit of an insurance policy, surety bond or other comparable securily into the Reserve Account in an amount sufficient to

meet the bond reserve requirement. The Company meintains an insurance policy fo meet this requirement. The fundis to be used
to pay maturing bonds and interest in the event funds in the Bond Service Account are not sufficient.

Depreciation Fund: The Series 2000 Bond Resolution authorizing the Bond Issue of 2000 requires the Company to main-
tain the depreciation fund in the same manner as required for the 2001 series (refunding 1992) bond issue (see Note 2).

Construction and Acquisition Fund: The Series 2000 Bond Resolution authorizing the Bond Issue of 2000 requires the
establishment of a Construction and Acquisition Fund. Amounts in the Series 2000 Construction Account in the Construction Fund
shall be applied to the cost of construction of any project upon receipt by the Trustee of requisitions and certificates as required
by the Resolution. To the extent that any other monies are not available, amounts in such fund shall be applied to the payment
of principal and interest when due. The acquisition and construction of the 2000 Project was completed in 2002, as evidenced
by a certificate from the Chief Engineer of the Company, and as per the resolution, the balonce in the Construction Account in
the Construction and Acquisition Fund was transferred by the Trustee to the credit of the Bond Service Account to redeem the
Series 2000 Bonds, including payment of current principal and interest. Before the transfer, the fund was invested primarily in
U.S. Treasury Bills and U. S. Treasury Notes, which are stated at fair value.

Bond Service Account: Per the Series 2000 Bond Resolution, except to the extent that the interest and principal are to be
paid from other availeble sources, the Company is required o deposit monthly, into the Trustee’s Bond Service Account, one-
sixth of the amount of the next succeeding interest payment on the 2000 Bonds outstanding and [beginning with the twelfth
month preceding the first maturity of any bonds) onetwalfth of the next maturing principal of those bonds. The account is invest-

ed primarily in U. $. Treasury Noles and commercial paper, which are stated a fair valus.

Operafion Fund: Per the Series 2000 Bond Rasolution, each month the Company shall, after making required payments
to the Bond Service Account, the Bond Reserve Account, and the Depreciation Fund, withdraw from the Revenue Fund and
deposit with a Depositary in the name of the Company fo the credit of the Operation Fund the balance remaining in the Revenue

Fund. The fund isincluded in cash and temporary investments.

Rebate Fund: The Rebate Fund is crected by the Series 2000 Bond Resolution. Monies credited to the Rebate Fund shall
be free from the fien of the Resolution. Payments shall be made by the Board and the Company within 15 days following each
five-year computation period for the calculation of excess rebatable arbitrage under the Code. The Board and the Company
have covenanted fo rebate excess earnings to the United States in accordance with law. There were no deposits required to be
made to this fund during 2001 or 2002.
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NOTE 4 - EXTENSION OF WATER SERVICE IN JEFFERSON COUNTY
The Company is implementing a plan to extend water service to unserved residences in Jefferson County. The planned exten-
sion of water service will cost approximately $54 million and will be funded by a combination of customer, government, and

Company funds, summaorized as follows:

Apportionment Warrant Reserve: Monies from the County and from new customers in the extension area are deposited
in the Apportionment Warrant Reserve account. New customers in the extension area must pay an “apportionment warrant”
fee. To supplement these customer monies, Jefferson County made commitments to fund a total of $6 million of the cost of
the water service extension project through 2003. Disbursements from this account can only be used to pay for the cost of
construction of water main extensions in the designated area. The account is invested in a sweep account, which is stated

ot fair value.

System Development Charge Reserve: A System Development Charge Reserve has been established to finance growth-
related expansion in the apporfionment warrant extension area and is assessed for new service connections other than ini-
tial connections. The collections are deposited fo the System Development Charge Reserve account and disbursements from
this account can only be used 1o pay for growth-related expansion. The account is invested in a sweep account, which is

stated ot fair value.

Company Monies: The Company has budgeted a total of $17 million of Company funds to pay for the transmission com-
ponent, or “backbone grid”, of the extension program.

Al December 31, 2002 and 2001, the carrying value of the Company’s cash and temporary investments was $6,627,144
and $4,753,218, respectively, and the bank balance, including temporary investments, was $6,470,215 and $6,129,430,
respectively, which were collateralized by U.S. Government Agency securities.

The fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2002 and 2001, are as follows:

. 2002 2001

U.S. Government obligations $ 17,659,769 $ 14,521,711
Certificates of deposit 100,000 557,791
Money market investments 30,701,533 31,037,324
Repurchase agreements 4,376,191 18,391,607
Fixed income obligations _ 7 7 B ) - _ 4,400,000
52837493 $68,908433

Proceeds from the sale of investment securities was $307,680 and $6,400,000 in 2002 and 2001, respectively. The loss
from the scle of investment securities was $0 and $125,320 in 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,

no investment securities were pledged.
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NOTE 6 - UTILITY PLANT, NET
The following is a schedule of ufility plant for the year ended December 31, 2002:

! Beginning Ending .
. = = ~ Balance  Addiions Reductions  Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
| land $ 57332102 $ 357486 § - $ 5,689,588
] _ Construction inprogress 49,682,614 66,872,207  [69,263447) 47,291,394
Total capital assefs not being depreciated 55,014,716 67,229,713  |69,263,447) 52,980,982
Other capital assets:
Buildings 15,041,288 99234 (2,417,228) 12,723,294
Machinery and equipment 30,980,150 3,017,817 (1,892,467) 32,105,500
_ Infrqsirucfgrg g - 638,823,028 63,140,471 __(_1,8‘?_2_,99!5)7 ___7007,0770,8];3
Total other capital assets at historical cost 684,844,466 66,257,522 (6,202,381) 744,899,607
Less accumulated depreciation for: i
Buildings (2,733,821) (367,242) 1,537,151 (1,563,912)
Machinery and equipment (17,482,887) |3,223,757) 1,119,634 (19,587,010)
Infrastrucore ~~ [176,680,429) (12,189,273) 479,880 ~ (188,389,822)
Total accumulated depreciation (196,897137) (15,780,272) 3,136,665 (209,540,744)
Other capital assefs, net 487947329 50477250  (3,065716) 535358863 .
Capital assets, net $ 542,962,045 §$ 117,706,963 $ (72,329,163) $ 588,339,845 |
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The following is a schedule of uiility plant for the year ended December 31, 2001:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress - o
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total other capital assets at historical cost

less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

Infrastructure =
Total accumulated depreciation

Other capital assets, net

Capital assets, net

___$510,280,688

Beginning
Balance

$ 4,844,430
41,799,737
46,644)67

15,018,882
28,937,327
602,696,585
646,652,794

(2,327,156)
(15,115,911)
(165,573,206)

(183,016,273)

463,636,521

Additions

$ 487672
48,730,624
49,218,296

22,406
3,111,933
37,187,705
40,322,044

(406,665)
(3,365,989)
(11,652,054)
(15,424,708)
24,897,336

$ 74,115,632

Reductions

$
(40,847,747
|40,847,747)

(1,069,110)
(1,061,262)
(2,130,372

999,013
544,831
1,543,844

(586,528)

$(41,434275) § 542,962,045

$

Ending
Balance

5,332,102
49,682,614
55,014,716

15,041,288
30,980,150
638,823,028
684,844,466

(2.733,821)
(17,482,887)
(176,680,429)
(196,897,137)
487,947,329
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Longterm liabilities at December 31, 2002, are summarized as follows:

Beginning
. Balance
Bonds payable $138,797502
Customer advances
for construction 8,674,292

Total longterm
liabilities

$ 147471794

Additions Reducfions
$ 490,000 $ 4,828,234
5,718,816 5,741,326
$6,208,816 $]Qé_t§?,560

Ending

Balance

$134,459,268

8,651,782

$143111,050

Longterm liabilities at December 31, 2001, are summarized as follows:

Beginning
‘Balance

Bonds payable  $ 141,468,473

Customer advances

for construction 7,770,447
Total longterm
liobiliies $ 149,238,920

Additicns Reductions
$ 348,660 $ 3,01963I
5,024,350 4,120,505
$ 5,373,010 $ 7,140,136

Ending
Balance

$ 138,797,502

8,674,292

Current
~ Portion
$ 5,719,268
34,812
$ 5,754,080
Current
Portion

$5,572,502

40,533

Noncurrent

Portion

$128,740,000

8,616,970

$ 137,356,970

Noncurrent

Portion

$133,225,000

8,633,759 |

_$ 147471794 $5413035 _$141,858,759

In May, 2001, the City of Louisville authorized the issuance of $60,300,000 of its Lovisville Water Company Water System

Louisville Water Company System Revenue Bonds, Series 1992.

Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 (the “Series 2001 Bonds”) secured under the Water System Revenue Bond Resolution Authorizing
the Issuance of Water System Revenue Bonds, adopted by the Board on July 14, 1992 (the “Master Resolution”), as amended
and supplemented and as further amended and supplemented by the Second Supplemental Resolution adopted by the Board
on February 13, 2001. The Series 2001 Bonds were issued for the purpose of providing funds to refund all of the cutstanding

The accounting recognilion of this transaction resulted in o loss of $2,253,356 for defeasance of the Louisville Water

Company Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 and is shown as an extraordinary loss in 2001. The refunding of the Series
1992 bonds with the Series 2001 will provide a present value savings of $3,910,658.

)
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Bonds and notes payable at December 31, 2002 and 2001 consist of the following:

Water System Revenue Bonds, 2000 tax exempt, interest rates ranging from
5.0% to 5.5% with maturities from 2003 through 2025

Water System Revenue Bonds, 2001 tax exempt, interest rates of 4.0% to
4.7% with maturities from 2001 through 2014

Water System Revenue Bonds, 2000 tox sxempt, interest rates of 5.25% with
principal payments due January and July 2001, balance due January 2002

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Assistance Agreement, interest rates ranging
from 4.25% to 5.75% with final maturity in 2008

Kentucky Infrastructure Autharity Deferred Loan, interest rate of 7.0% with
maturity in 2008

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Note, interest rates ranging from 4.25% to
5.75% with principal and interest paid semi-annually from 2001 through 2008

GMAC Bonds acquired from Shepherdsville system acquisition, interest rate
of 3.875% with principle and interest paid semi-annually with maturity in 2006

GMAC Bonds acquired from Shepherdsville system acquisition, interest rate
of 5.0% with principle and interest paid semi-annually with maturity in 2019

Less current portion

All bonds are subject to optional redemption provisions.

$128,740,000 _ $133,225,000

2002 2001

$ 78,500,000 $ 78,500,000

54,725,000 58,060,000

0 1,405,500 (A]

465106 (A) 536,898 (A)

175,888 (A) 175,888 (A)
103,274 (A) 119,216 [A)
205,000(A)
285,000(4)

134,459,268 138,797,502
5,719,268 5,572,502

)
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The Water System Revenue Bond resolutions contain a rate covenant requiring that the schedule of rates and charges, and
the rules and regulations for water services will not be revised so as fo result in a decrease of revenues. Future adjustments fo
water rates and charges are required as necessary so that annual net revenues will not be less than 130% of the total annual
bond debt service requirements for the then outstanding bonds.

(A) Funds are being held in escrow to pay off this debt so it is classified as current.

Maturities of longterm debt are as follows:

Year _ Principal  Interest Total
2003 $ 5,719,268 $ 6,674,668 $ 12,393,936
2004 5,080,000 6,337,896 11,417,896
2005 5,900,000 6,061,809 11,961,809
2006 6,210,000 5,795,497 12,005,497
2007 8,230,000 5,514,997 13,744,997
Thereafter , 103,320,000 46,526,054 149,846,054
N §134.459;268 376,910,921  §211,370.189
NOTE 8 - DIVIDENDS

The Company is required by bond resolution to pay a dividend to the City of Louisville, the sole stockholder. The dividend
is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the resolution and paid quarterly based on budgeted income. The required
annual dividend is sixty percent of the Company’s net income with certain adjustments and exclusions. The dividend computed
under these provisions was $12,379,623 for 2002 and $13,076,344 for 2001. A settlement based on actual net income is
made after yearend.

NOTE 9 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in uccordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan permits participating employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. An employee may con-
ribute up to a maximum of 25 percent of his or her adjusted gross compensation or $8,500, whichever is less, to the plan. The
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, refirement, death or unforeseen emergency. Plan assets
and liabilities are not recorded by the Company. The Company contributes $0.25 for every $1.00 of an employee's coniribu-
fion up to $1,500 ($375 maximum Company contribution) to the plan. The amount contributed fo the plan by the Company and
charged fo expense was approximately $91,000 and $122,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respec-
fively.
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During 2001, the Company adopted a defined contribution plan covering substantially cll employees of the Company. An
eligible employee can contribute up to an annual maximum of 25 percent of his or her adjusted gross compensation or
$10,500, whichever is less, to the plan. The Company contributes $0.25 for every $1.00 of an employee's contiibution ($375
maximum Company contribution) to the plan. The amount contributed to the plan by the Company and charged to expense for
the year ended December 31, 2002 was approximately $23,000.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN
All full-fime employees of the Company participate in the County Employee Retirement System (CERS) which is a costshar-

ing multipleemployer defined benefit refirement plan administered by Kentucky Refirement Systems, an agency of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky.

Normal refirement is at age 65 with at least 48 months of service. This entitles an employee 1o a basic benefit of 2.2% of
final compensation multiplied by years of service. Final compensation is the employee’s average salary for the highest five plan
years. A reduced early retirement benefit is available from ages 55 to 64 with 60 months of service, ot least 12 of which are
current, or of any age ofter 25 years of service. CERS also provides death, disability, optional joint and survivorship, and cer-
tain health care benefits. Eligibility and benefits are established by state statute.

Eligible employees are required by state statute to contribute 5% of their salary to the Plan. The Company is required by
the same statute to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to pay benefits when due. The Company’s actuarially deter-
mined contribution rate was 7.17% effective July 1, 2000 through June 30, 2001, 6.41% effective July 1, 2001 through June
30, 2002 and 6.34% effective July, 1, 2002. For 2002 and 2001, participating employees contributed 5% of creditable com-
pensation to CERS totaling $1,293,074 and $1,285,246, respectively. Employer contribution rates are intended to fund the nor-
mal cost on a current basis plus an amount equal to the amortization of unfunded post service costs over thirty years. The
Company contributed $1,648,628 and $1,652,766 for 2002 and 2001, respecfively. The Company's total payroll was
$25,953,963 and $24,484,475 for 2002 and 2001, respectively. CERS covered payroll was $25,799,047 and
$24,324,712 for 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Vesting in a retirement benetit begins immediately upon entry into the System. The participant has a fully vested interest after
the completion of sixty months of service, 12 of which are current service.

The “pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for
the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee serv-
ice to date. The measure, which is the actuarial present value of credited projecied benefits, is intended to help users assess the
CERS'’s funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulcting sufficient assets to pay benefits when
due, and make comparisons among the Public Employee Retirement Systems and employers. The CERS does not make separate

measurements of assets and pension benefit obligations for individual employers.
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The following table provides information on the CERS as a whole, determined through the most recent actuarial valuations:

June 30
7 ' ) 2002 2001
Net assets available for benefits $6,883,298,951 $6,910,500,545
Pension benefit obligation _ 5,492,646,422 4,900,142,654

_Net assets in excess of pension benefit obligation  $1,390,652529  $2,010357911

Ten-year historical trend information showing the CERS's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due
is presented in the Kentucky Refirement Systems’ June 30, 2002, annual financial report [which is a maiter of public record).

In addition to the assels transferred from its previous plan, the Company became obligated to CERS for $4,273,873 for
remaining unfunded past service costs. The remaining liability for unfunded past service costs plus accrued interest was paid with
proceeds from the 1992 Series 2 Note Payable. The related past service cost asset is being amortized over twenty years on the
straight-line method.

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company retains certain insurable risks up to a fixed maximum per cloim exposure. liability claims are retained up to
$500,000 per occurrence, with insurance coverage for any judgment or setflement of up to $35,000,000 above that amount.
Workers' compensation is selffunded up to $225,000 per claim, with an aggregate limit of 90% of the premium that would be
developed by applying the rate times the payroll. A reserve of $1,417,115 and $1,473,223 was established ot December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively, to provide for aggregate claims incurred.

The Company is involved in litigation, which has arisen out of operations in the ordinary course of business. While it is not
possible to forecast the outcome of this litigation, it is the opinion of the Company’s management that it will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial statements of the Company.

NOTE 12 - ACQUISITIONS

During 2002, the Company acquired Goshen Utilities (Goshen) and the Shepherdsville Water System (Shepherdsyille).
Goshen was a stock purchase, which took place on July 31, 2002. Goshen is being held by the Company as a wholly owned
subsidiary. The Company assumed the assets and liabilities of Shepherdsville on December 31, 2002, from the City of

Shepherdsville. The assets and liabilities from these acquisitions have been included in the consolidated financial statements of

the Company and are not material.
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December 31, 2002

Bona Reserve A;c;éounf
U. §. Treasury Bonds

Depreciation Fund
FHLMC
FHLR
FHLB
Federal Farm Credit Bank
FNMA
Goldman Sachs
Cerlificate of Depasit
Sweep Account

Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund
Goldman Sachs
Sweep Account

Apportionment Warrant Reserve
Sweep Account
System Development Charge Reserve
Sweep Account
U. S. Treasury State and Local Government Fund
U. S. Treasury Bonds
Bond Service Account - Series 2000
Armada Funds

Bond Service Account - Series 2001
Armada Funds

Bullitt County Water Reserve
Sweep Account
Kentucky Infrastructure

Deposits
KTWD Debt Discharge Fund

Sweep Account

8.220%

2.50%
2.5%
2.0%
2.0%
1.7%

1.09%
3.5%

1.143%

1.09%
1.143%

1.143%

1.143%

8.220%

1.47%"

1.143%

1.143%

Maturity

11/15/13

10/01 /04
12/27/04
6/30,/04
4/23/04
8/22,/03

3/6/05

1/25/13

$ 3,059,858
$ 3,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000
24,765,664

100,000
1,849,397

$ 4,875,599
577,813

$ 22817
$ 324,863
$ 1,640,143
$ 445513
$ 614,756

$ 755

233,386

_$ 1,367,161
$52,877,725 $52,837,493

Par

Fair Value
$ 3,059,858

$ 3,003,000
2,002,000
2,000,500
3,003,000
2,951,268

24,765 664
100,000
1,849,397

$ 4,875,599
577813

$ 22817
$ 324863
$ 1,640,143
$ 445513
$ 614,756

$ 755

233,386

$ 1367161

|
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2001 SERIES BOND ISSUE

December 31, 2002

The Water Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only from revenue of the Company.

Master resolution date
Secondary resolution date
Original amount

Interest rate

Bonds payable

Interest payable

Call provisions in inverse

2000 SERIES BOND ISSUE

The Water Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only from revenue of the Company.

Sinking Fund installments for 2022 and 2024 maturity bonds:
November 15,2022

Resolution date
Original emount
Interest rate
Bonds payable
Interest payable

Year __ Amount

2021 $4,710,000

2022 4975000
_$9.685,000

July 14, 1992

February 13, 2001
$60,300,000

4.00% to 4.70%
November 15

May 15 and November 15

100% after November 15, 2010

September 1, 2000
$78,500,000

5.00% to 5.50%
November 15

May 15 and November 15

~ November 15, 2024

Year ~ Amount

2023 $ 5,240,000

2024 5,555,000
$10,815,000
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SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING BOND INDEBTEDNESS AND ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
December 31, 2002

2001 Bonds Aggregate
Principal Bond
- Installments _Interest ~ Service
Year Ending December 31

2003 $ 3,495,000 $ 2,426,415 $ 5921415
2004 3,655,000 2,277877 5,932,877
2005 3,825,000 2,122,540 5,947,540
2006 4,000,000 1,959,978 5,959,978
2007 4,185,000 1,789,978 5,974,978
2008 4,380,000 1,612,115 5992115
2009 4,590,000 1,415,015 6,005,015
2010 4,820,000 1,208,465 6,028,465
2011 5,055,000 991,565 6,046,565
2012 5,305,000 764,090 6,069,090
2013 5,570,000 525,365 6,095,365
2014 5,845,000 o715 6,119,715

~ Total 2001 Bonds $54,725,000 ~ $17348,118 $72,093,118
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SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING BOND INDEBTEDNESS AND ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

December 31, 2002

- ?éorEndmg December 31
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

_Tolal 2000Bonds

$

Principal
Installments

990,000
1,425,000
2,075,000
2,210,000
2,310,000
2,420,000
2,540,000
2,660,000
2,790,000
2,930,000
3,075,000
3,235,000
3,405,000

3,590,000

3,790,000
4,000,000
4,225,000
4,460,000
4,710,000
4,975,000
5,260,000
5,555,000
5,870,000

_$78,500,000

2000 Bonds

Interest

$ 4,060,019
4,010,519
3,939,269
3,835,519
3,725,019
3,609,519
3,488,519
3,361,519
3,228,519
3,089,019
2,942,519
2,788,769
2,627,019
2,452,512
2,264,037
2,065,062
1,855,062
1,633,250
1,399,100

1,151,825
890,637
414,487
322,850

_ $59,354,569

Aggregate
Bond

~ Service

$ 5,050,019
5,435,519
6,014,269
6,045,519
6,035,019
6,029,519
6,028,519
6,021,519
6,018,519
6,019,019
6,017,519
6,023,769
6,032,019
6,042,512
6,054,037
6,065,062
6,080,062
6,093,250
6,109,100
6,126,825
6,150,637
6,169,487
6,192,850

_ $137,854,569
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SCHEDULES OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES AND TAXES

Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

. OFPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
Pumping
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Customer accounts expenses
Administrative and general expenses
Operation expenses under (over) applied

Totulg_pergiion_ond maintenance expenses

2002

$ 4,448,788
6,482,921
11,594,133
7,421,797
12,446,022

(25,738)

$42,367,923

TAXES
Water and fire services in lieu of taxes
Sacial security taxes
State unemployment taxes
Payroll taxes allocated

Totaltaxes

$ 8,051,931
1,915,696
4,584
(1,806,446)

. $.8165785

2001

$ 4,529,938
5,729,963
10,864,095
7,458,256
11,445,074
7,090

340,034,416

$ 8,028,696
1,761,783
6,601

~ (1,780,895)
_$ 8,016,185
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
Board of Water Works
The Board of Water Works is composed of seven members:
» Four appointed by the City of Louisville to serve staggered fouryear terms;

» Two appointed by Jefferson County to serve staggered five-year terms; and

* The Mayor of Louisville, who serves ex officio.

David L. Armstrong Phillip D. Bond
Mayer, Cily of Louisville Vice Presicent for Financasand
The Board of Water Works meets the second Tuesday of each month at fex offcic) Adminishation
5 i e Metro United Way -
12:30 pm at 550 South Third Street. The President of Louisville Water Company Ciy .?raprmemmivzf
serves as Chairman of the Board, without a vote. At its meeting each April, the Board i Chpties C"'/WD/?A

appoints the officers of the company.

Stewart E. Conner Stephen C. Gault

Owen C. Hammons leck H. Segell Wendy C. Welsh
WMchagmg ??er " S'ef-"h‘-”; C ;i““h Ca Ratired Frasident Senior V)n‘rr_'e .Fresfdenr, |
C,YU”, aé'm,:p = pc\r.n % c Rourn "’:f ; United Auto Workers Jack H. Segeil Corporation Informetion Technalogy I
. ougry : ep‘ 'Ssﬂ_';ﬁyoes - rmﬂE’ i «?s;e o /53 IV :jo% Counly Representative City Representatve LGAE Enegy Corp I

orm Expires: Ud S * Term Expires: 03,/31 /03 Term Expires 09/2C/05 City Representalive

Term Expires: 01 /30,/04
EXECUTIVE
LEADERSHIP TEAM

Front row: Laura Douglas, Vice President,
General Counsel und Secrstary; Billy Meeks,
Prasident AFSCME Local 1683; John Huber, /
i Precident and Chiel Execulive Cfficer; Robert K. Ailler, « \
B Vice President and Treasurer, Business Resourcing:  © |
E Back row: Kerla Oison Teasley, Vice Presidant, Serving
Customers and Business Developmeni; Steven A ]
Hubbs, Vice President. New Techrclogy; Susan
L lehmann, Vice President, Human Resources and |
y Orgar\izaﬁonof Fifectiveness; Grego’y‘ e

Heitzman, Vice Presdent, Chief
Engineer, Operations

)
LWC 0207



WATER
MPANY
550 South Third Street ‘ A
Louisville, KY 40202
Phone 502-569-3600
Fax 502-585-2806

LOUISVILLE
COMPA

www.louisvillewater.com
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